AGENDA
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022
7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET

Call to Order by the Mayor
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Minutes
1. Regular meeting of August 1, 2022.
Agenda Revisions

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City
business.)

Staff Updates
Old Business

2. Pass Ordinance #3014, amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain
property located at 2209 North Union Road from the R-1, Residence District and placing the same in
the A-1, Agricultural District, upon its third & final consideration.

3. Pass Ordinance #3015, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of
Ordinances relative to electric vehicle (EV) charging parking spaces, upon its second consideration.

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)

4. Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of standing committees for the
remainder of calendar year 2022.

5. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to
Boards and Commissions:
a) Kyle Wiebers, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024.
b) Jennifer Onuigho, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2025.
c¢) Michele Jensen, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2024.

|©

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:

a) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine — renewal.

b) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.

¢) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.

d) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
e) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal.

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered
separately.)

Page 1 of 3




|~

|

|©

Resolution approving and authorizing a form of Loan Agreement and authorizing and providing for
the issuance of $3,860,000 General Obligation Loan Notes, Series 2022, and levying a tax to pay
said notes; and approving the Tax Exemption Certificate and Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

Resolution approving and adopting a job classification for the position of Horticulturist in the Public
Works Department.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Mutual Confidential Disclosure Agreement with
N. Harris Computer Corporation (CityView) relative to replacement of Financial and Community
Development Software Systems.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Confidentiality & Non-Disclosure Agreement
with Tyler Technologies, Inc., relative to replacement of Financial and Community Development
Software Systems.

Resolution approving and accepting a Quit Claim Deed, in conjunction with the 1990 transfer of
jurisdiction of portions of University Avenue, Main Street, West 6th Street and Franklin Street (f/n/a
U.S. Highway 218).

Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Kirk Gross Company for furniture
relative to the City Hall Remodel Project.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with Lehman
Trucking & Excavating Inc., relative to demolition of buildings located at 4919 Hudson Road, in
conjunction with the Ashworth Drive Extension Project.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of fifty-seven Owner Purchase Agreements and two
Tenant Purchase Agreements; and approving and accepting fifty-seven Temporary Construction
Easements and two Tenant Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the Main Street
Reconstruction (6th Street to University) Project.

Resolution approving and accepting a Warranty Deed and two Partial Releases of Real Estate
Mortgage, in conjunction with the Greenhill Road & South Main Street Intersection Improvement
Project.

Resolution approving and accepting completion of public improvements in Terraces at West Glen
First Addition.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 4B to the
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the West Viking Road
Industrial Park Expansion Project - Phase 1.

Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the Olive
Street Box Culvert Replacement Project.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair
Agreement with Western Home Services, Inc. and Western Home Independent Living Services,
Inc. relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for Western Home Communities
Tenth Addition.

Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Western Home Communities Tenth Addition.
Resolution approving the final plat of Western Home Communities Tenth Addition.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Letter of Agreement for asbestos testing and
clearance monitoring services with Asbestos Inspections, Testing & Training, Inc., in conjunction with
the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of Improvements with
Midwest Development Co. relative to the final plat of Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition.

Page 2 of 3




24. Resolution approving the final plat of Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition.
Allow Bills and Claims

25.  Allow Bills and Claims for August 15, 2022.
Council Referrals
Council Updates and Announcements

Adjournment

Page 3 of 3




53920 -

53921 -

53922 -

53923 -

53924 -

53925 -

53926 -

COMMUNITY CENTER
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 1, 2022
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, met in Regular Session,
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr,
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr that the minutes of the
Regular Meeting of July 18, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of
record. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Green read a proclamation recognizing August 2022 as Gastroparesis
Awareness Month.

Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, commented on the need for convenient
public restrooms in the Downtown area and made some recommendations on
what the restrooms should include.

Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 22,
2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans,
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2022 Sidewalk
Assessment Project - Zone 5. It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by
Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed
on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing
to speak about the proposed project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and
passed to the next order of business.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #22,872,
approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of
cost for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5, be adopted. Following
guestions by Councilmembers Ganfield and deBuhr, and responses by City
Engineer Wicke, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz,
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then
declared Resolution #22,872 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Schultz that Ordinance #3014,
amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain
property located at 2209 North Union Road from the R-1, Residence District and
placing the same in the A-1, Agricultural District, be passed upon its second
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the

Iltem 1.




53927 -

53928 -

-2-

guestion on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding,
Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the following items on
the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved:

Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment
of members to Boards and Commissions:
a) Charles Blair-Broeker, Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2028.

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to
the certified list for the position of Public Safety Officer.

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of June 2022.

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:

a) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B wine — renewal.

b) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - renewal.
c) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.
d) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Carter House Market & Cafe, 115-119
Main Street, Class B liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal.

e) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service -
renewal.

f) David’s Taphouse and Dumplings, 200 West 1st Street, Class C liquor —
renewal.

g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service
- renewal.

h) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street — Plaza, Special Class C liquor &
outdoor service — temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 12-13,
August 19-20, August 26-27, September 9-10, & September 23-24, 2022)

i) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary
expansion of outdoor service area. (August 1- October 1,2022)

j) Fast Track Racing, 200 block West 2nd Street, Class B beer & outdoor service
- 5-day permit.

k) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - new -
change in ownership.

Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn to receive and file the City
Council Standing Committee minutes of July 18, 2022 relative to the following
items:

a) City Council Meeting Procedures.

b) Cedar Falls Rotary Memorial Plaza — West 1st Street.

c) Private Shared Parking Requirements.

d) West 12th Street Speed Limit — Barnett Drive to Union Road.

Following comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse and
Ganfield, and Mayor Green, and responses by City Attorney Rogers, it was

Iltem 1.




53929 -

-3-

moved by Councilmember Ganfield and seconded by Harding to amend the
minutes from the Community Relations & Planning Committee to include
Planning & Zoning Commission consideration of whether to include existing
parking into shared parking and whether the shared parking requirement should
be contiguous or within a certain distance. Following comments by Attorney
Rogers, Ganfield withdrew the motion. Following additional comments by
Councilmembers Kruse, Dunn, Ganfield and Harding, and responses by Attorney
Rogers, the motion carried 6-1, with deBuhr voting Nay.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the following resolutions
be introduced and adopted:

Resolution #22,873, approving and adopting amendments to the City’s
Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing Manual.

Resolution #22,874, approving and authorizing execution of a Second
Amendment to Agreement for Professional Services with Operation Threshold for
Community Development Block Grant (CDGB-CV3 funding relative to the
CARES Act.

Resolution #22,875, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product
Agreement with lowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for
grant administration and technical services for activities relative to FY2023
(FFY2022) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding project
delivery.

Resolution #22,876, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product
Agreement with lowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for
grant administration and technical services for activities relative to FY2023
(FFY2022) HOME Investment Partnership Program funding project delivery.

Resolution #22,877, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's
Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the 2022 University Avenue Bio Cells Project.

Resolution #22,878, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Blacktop
Service Company for the 2022 Seal Coat Project.

Resolution #22,879, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting
the bid of Peterson Contractors, in the amount of $2,699,537.74, being the only
bid received for the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project.

Resolution #22,880, approving and authorizing execution of thirty Owner
Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting thirty Temporary
Construction Easements, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction
(6th Street to University) Project.

Resolution #22,881, approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding
Agreement for Water Resource Investigations with the U.S. Geological Survey
relative to the Cedar River Streamgage Station.

Resolution #22,882, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional

Iltem 1.




53930 -

53931-

53932 -

53933 -

-4 -

Service Agreement with Ritland+Kuiper Landscape Architects for design services
relative to the Seerley Park Improvements Project.

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,873 through #22,882 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #22,883,
approving and adopting revised City Council Meeting Procedures, be adopted.
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Ganfield and
Harding, and responses by Mayor Green, it was moved by Ganfield and
seconded by Kruse to amend the motion to strike “2/3” majority from section 1.7.
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Harding and
Kruse, and responses by Mayor Green, the motion carried 5-2, with Dunn and
Harding voting Nay. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to
amend the motion to replace the word “exigent” to “pressing” throughout the
document. Motion carried 5-2, with Dunn and Ganfield voting Nay. It was then
moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to strike section 4.6 from the
document. Motion carried unanimously. Following questions and comments by
Councilmembers Harding, Kruse and deBuhr, and responses by City Attorney
Rogers and Mayor Green, it was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding
to strike section 4.16 from the document. Motion carried unanimously. The Mayor
then put the question on the original motion, as amended, and upon call of the
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, Kruse,
Harding, Ganfield. Nay: Sires, deBuhr. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared
Resolution #22,883 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #22,884,
approving a Hwy-1, Highway Commercial Zoning District site plan for
construction of a financial institution to be located at 1000 Brandilynn Boulevard,
be adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Ganfield,
Harding and Schultz, and responses by Planning & Community Services
Manager Howard, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz,
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Abstain: Ganfield. Motion Carried. The
Mayor then declared Resolution #22,884 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,885,
approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the
Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC for
additional services relative to the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project, be
adopted. Following questions by Councilmember Harding and responses by City
Engineer Wicke, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz,
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then
declared Resolution #22,885 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3015,

Iltem 1.




53934 -

53935 -

53936 -

53937 -

53938 -

-5-

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to electric vehicle (EV) charging parking spaces, be passed upon its first
consideration. Following questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse and
Harding, and responses by Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck,
Public Works Director Schrage, City Clerk Danielsen and City Administrator
Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse,
Harding, Ganfield. Nay: Sires. Motion carried.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of
August 1, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding,
Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to refer to the Community
Relations & Planning Committee clarification of the shared parking requirements
referral to Planning & Zoning Commission. Motion carried 6-1, with Dunn voting
Nay.

Councilmember Ganfield responded to an inquiry by Rosemary Beach that a
restroom previously mentioned in a downtown business is private.

At the request of Councilmember Ganfield, Public Works Director Schrage
provided an update on the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project.

Community Development Director Sheetz announced the Historic Preservation
Commission Tour on August 18" at starting at 6:30 PM at the First Methodist
Church.

Mayor Green announced the Celebration of Life planned for the Schmidt Family
on August 2" at 5:30 PM at Overman Park.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the meeting be adjourned
at 8:03 P.M. Motion carried unanimously.

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Iltem 1.




Item 2.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM
Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM:  Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner Il
DATE: July 11, 2022
SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 2209 N Union Road (RZ22-002)

REQUEST: Rezone property from R-1: Residence District to A-1: Agriculture District.
PETITIONER: Kel-Mar, LC (Shawn and Paula Kelly)

LOCATION: 2209 N. Union Road

PROPOSAL

The proposal is to rezone approximately 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N
Union Road, formerly the Martyrs Retreat, and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located
adjacent to the south of 2209 N Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1:
Agriculture District.

BACKGROUND

This property was established as the American Martyrs Retreat House by the Archdiocese of
Dubuque in 1960. The property was annexed into Cedar Falls in 1971 at which time a 1,450 x
600’ area was zoned to R-1 to accommodate the existing private institutional use, which was
not permitted in an agriculture district. In 2019, the facility closed and Mr. Kelly purchased both
tracts.

In February 2021, Mr. Kelly approached the City with a request rezone Tract 2 (shown in blue
on the next page and attached zoning illustration) and the portion of Martyrs Retreat property,
Tract 1 (outlined in black), to R-1 to create a buildable lot for the construction of a new
residential structure. However, this was not possible, because in order to rezone the property
to R-1, city services would have to be extended to the lot per City Code requirement. The
nearest available utilities are greater than 2,000 feet to the south and the existing railroad right-
of-way would make extending the utilities cost-prohibitive.

In March 2021, staff set up a meeting to discuss possible options that would allow the owner to
achieve their goal of building one house on the property. At that meeting, staff suggested




Item 2.

exploring the possibility for reconfiguring the existing parcel lines with plats of survey.
Research by Mr. Kelly’s surveyor identified two existing lots of record, which could be
reconfigured to allow a house to be built in the desired location overlooking the Cedar River.
This reconfiguration of the lots of record involve two plats of survey: a transfer of the portion of
Tract 1 outlined in black to Tract 2; and the transfer of the portion of Tract 2 outlined in red,
which contains the existing Martyrs Retreat building, to Tract 1. The condition for a plat of
survey is that no new building lots can be created nor can the transfer area constitute more
than 25 percent of a parcel after the transfer takes place. Staff also recommended rezoning
the portion of the property not associated with the Martyrs Retreat building from R-1
Residential to A-1, Agricultural District, both to acknowledge the lack of city services and so
that zoning boundaries coincide with the new parcel lines created with the plats of survey. In
other words, the proposed rezoning will clean up the split zoning on these tracts.

City Corporate Boundary /

Tract1

Transferto Tract 2

A-1

f Tract 2
= /‘/ /

Transferto Tract 1

Union Road

Ral7ro g/

In February 2022, VJ Engineering, Mr. Kelly’s surveyor, requested further discussion about the
next steps for the rezoning. Staff recommended completing a plat of Survey for Parcel ‘E’ to
define the area involved in the request to rezone from R-1 to A-1. As part of the approval of the
plats of survey for the property, staff recommended Tract 2 share access from N. Union Road
with the Martyrs Retreat property and a note be added to the plats of survey stating no building
permits can be issued for the transfer areas unless merged with the receiving parcels. Cedar
Falls Utilities requested utility easements be dedicated for electric and communication services
and that all existing utility easements be maintained. Staff also recommended a meeting with
Mr. Kelly to discuss the future use of the Martyrs Retreat property.

On April 18, 2022, the applicant’s surveyor submitted a plat of survey for Tract 2 and a survey
showing the location of easements for both utilities and access.

On May 9" 2022, staff met with Mr. Kelly and his daughter to finalize the documentation

needed for the rezoning and to discuss future options for the Martyrs Retreat property. The
owners do not have any immediate plans for re-use of the Martyrs Retreat building, but the
recent zoning code amendment that allows consideration of requests for alternative uses of

10




Item 2.

defunct institutional buildings will provide more flexibility for an appropriate adaptive re-use of
the building with Board of Adjustment approval of a conditional use permit. In the meantime,
the owner has acknowledged that any re-use of the building must be approved by the City
according to City Code requirements and that the property will not be used for residential
purposes.

ANALYSIS

CURRENT ZONING
R-1 Residence District and A-1 Agriculture District

The R-1 Residence District allows one and two unit dwellings and a limited number of other
uses, including private institutional or community recreation centers; however, all subdivision of
property in the R-1 Residence District requires the installation of public sewer and water.

The purpose of the A-1 Agriculture District is to act as a “holding zone” in areas of the city that
are undeveloped and not served by essential municipal services.

PROPOSED ZONING

The request is to downzone approximately 0.98 acre of land at 2209 N Union Road and 8.86
acres on the adjacent tract to the south from the R-1 Residence zoning district to A-1
Agriculture. The requested change will place those portions of the reconfigured parcel that do
not have adequate services available back into the “holding zone” and clean up the split zoning
on the parcel. The remaining R-1 zoned area where the Martyrs Retreat building is located will
remain zoned R-1 to allow the potential for an adaptive reuse of the building under the R-1
standards.

The A-1 district allows no more than one single-unit or one two-unit residential dwelling in the
following circumstances:
1. as an incidental use to a permitted agriculture use, such as growing crops, grain, and
limited animal production (20 acres minimum lot area) or
2. if located on a lot of record as of August 1, 1979 with a minimum lot area of three acres.
The existing Tract 2 (see image above) is considered a lot of record, so it would be
allowed one single-unit dwelling, as proposed by the applicant.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The Future Land Use Map identifies this entire property and the properties south of the rail line
as Low Density Residential. The characteristics of this designation include an emphasis on
single-family residential forms and civic uses. The intent is that at build-out development is
provided a full range of municipal services (see map next page). Staff finds that the proposed
rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan as the long term goal is for low density
residential development. At this time, however, the A-1 Zoning is appropriate to acknowledge
the lack of city services.

11




Item 2.

City Corporate Boundary

Subject
Property

Legend

Low Density Residential [
Greenways & Floodplain (|

ACCESS TO PUBLIC SERVICES

The property is located in an area of the city where public services are not currently available
and it is difficult to extend water and sewer because of the railroad right-of-way. This lack of
services indicates that the A-1 Agricultural District is an appropriate zoning district, because it
is considered a holding zone until adequate city services are extended to allow for residential
development at an urban density.

ACCESS TO ADEQUATE STREET NETWORK

The property currently has access from N. Union Road. There will be no new streets proposed
to serve this area until city services are available. Therefore, the request to downzone the
property from R-1 to A-1 is warranted and will keep traffic volumes low. A single private drive
that shares the street access point with the Martyrs Retreat property will serve the proposed
single unit dwelling. With the new zoning, no additional development can occur beyond the
construction of the one residential dwelling proposed.

PUBLIC NOTICE
City staff mailed letters to the surrounding property owners notifying them of the rezoning
request. A notice of Public hearing was published in the Courier on June 15, 2022

TECHNICAL COMMENTS

The City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities, has no concerns with the proposed
rezoning request. The two plats of survey that reconfigure the parcel lines to coincide with the
proposed zoning boundaries can be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator,
per the City Subdivision Code regulations.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The Community Development recommends approval of RZ22-002, A request to rezone
approximately 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N Union Road, formerly the
Martyrs Retreat, and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located adjacent to the south of 2209 N
Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1: Agriculture District.

12




Item 2.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

Introduction
6/8/2022

Discussion
& Vote
6/22/2022

Attachments:

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided background
information. He explained that this is a request to rezone approximately 9.94 acres
of the Martyrs Retreat and a parcel to the south property from R-1, Residential to A-
1, Agricultural, which would allow for one residence to be built on the tract of land.
No further residential development would be allowed. The new zoning boundaries
will then match the lot boundaries. Staff recommends that comments be gathered
from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the public and a public hearing be
set for the next Commission meeting on June 22.

Mr. Holst made a motion to move the item forward to public hearing. Ms. Saul
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman,
Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays.

The first item of business was a public hearing regarding a rezoning request for 2209
North Union Road. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided
background information. He stated that the request is to rezone approximately 9.94
acres of land located at 2209 North Union Road and displayed a rendering of the
location and rezoning plat. The petitioner would like to rezone the area from R-1,
Residential to A-1, Agriculture to allow for the addition of one residential structure.

Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The
motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch
and Saul), and 0 nays.

Location Map
Rezoning Plat

Zoning lllustration
Letter of Request
Published Public Notice

13




Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission

June 8, 2022

Corporate Li

4

N

o \
3 Access £ Dennecis Rd W-Dunken
%
L~ € lone Tree =
: Waskrlod
4 5 Regona)
./‘6 _'; Ajrpor
@
‘ 2 wncoln-S1-W Alrim & Hay—
~ P11 STT— R E 15181 1
rFalls & i
= Ceda Is ‘; G;?uhd
s RPTR =
S
V134 St L2
“,
be Raabg,
W2IhS o~ Universiy AV 8 O
¥ = =y
Q l = Orchard Dr =" %
S, = o~
PR ol— £ Grasnhill Rd— g Orser® -
EGrasah x‘ R 2 B
| N o>
WikisgRa SG-Evikn®
w Vimg | .
Incuswial Park =
2209 N Union Road
-
= ===\ Riigaway A¥
_ : R-1to A-1
Location -
Map &
=




(
Rezon | ng Plat Legal Description of land to be rezoned from R-1 to A-1: Rezone Request -
R-1 R id ial . The West 1450.0 feet of the North 300.0 feet of the Northwest Quarter (NW3) of Section Three (3), Township
-1, Resl ential to A-1 ) AQFICU|tUFa| Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5th) Principal Meridian, except the North 70 feet
. f the East 700 f fthe Northwest Fractional rter of the Northwest Fractional rter of sai ion
KeI-Mar, LC, 2209 N. Union Road of the East 700 feet of the Northwest Fractional Quarter of the Northwest Fractiona Qu? tero s?dSe?to 3, "
and that part of West 1450.0 feet of the South 300.0 feet of the Southwest Quarter (SW3z) of Section Thirty-four S
(2]
(34), Township Ninety (90) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5th) Principal Meridian, Black Hawk §
County, lowa, lying within the Southeast Quarter of said Southwest Quarter except that parcel of land recorded
on File 2018-00018291 in the office of the Black Hawk County Recorder .
Keith & Cathy Dahlstrom Kel-Mar, LC — Owner:
2305 N. Union Road 2209 N. Union Road 70.10 Kel-Mar, LC ol | |
623 E. 19th Street HEFEES
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 i =
LO)|
N
N
0
v
>
O
X )
e o Kel-Mar, LC =5 =
50.02' _Uni £
_\ Kel-Mar, LC 2209 N. Union Road gy
2209 N. Union Road N89°21'32"E 1326.27' 23!
W1/16N to N1/4 Do 5
S89°21'32'W - z .§ _%
44057 \ Kel-Mar, LC > 5
2209 N. Union Road p——
ay . 8 35
1°09'01"E — NS oy
278.30' 300 éo/b“bfb §
&
°
@
e’
X u |
c ©
Sl 55 1
c 3
o 3¥|
| 2 ® N10°57'56"W S
= | 278.82' < N43°27'06"W
'052773601'2‘ Kel-Mar, LC ) 9.78
: iy SR 100')
\ 2209 N. Union Road CSI NORTH Kel-Mar, LC m
| N7o 2209 N. Union Road @
. 607 > o
| ogs8W T (602, \ & ®
\ | Sﬂ« 04.20 st «« 208! 2 Y O O
(50 ' e
\\1\ Taylor Morris Residence Trust 588°13'24"W cs -
1901 N. Union Road 462.50' 87 5
e U~ ~U ( . . . N\ - — - —
NITOSesE LEGEND T i bttt optiotod ot Il E=IC =
_— \\\\\\\oV\b‘\’ °°°°° /////,/ personal supervision and that lam a duly licensed Land Surveyor o D
Notes: 0 75 150 300 S\\\\o?\ \9%;///2 under the laws of the State of lowa. qN) E Z
: - N7A 2%
1.) All dimensions are in US Survey feet and decimals thereof. — e — EXISTING R-1 ZONING R X:=so
2.) Proprietor: Kel-Mar, LC, 623 E. 19th Street, Cedar Falls, 1A 2% 12088 ;"%ss WENDELL J. LUPKES, P.L.S. DATE - — O
REQUESTED A-1 ZONING | %k, S | License numoer 12088 L O
//’///,/ IOWP\ \\\\\\\} My license renewal date is December 31, 2022 m X 15
Il//llll/m"“\\\\\\\\\ Pages or sheets covered by this seal: , -
\ 218007)




Prepared by: Thomas Weintraut, Planner 111, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, A 50613 (319) 273-8600

ORDINANCE NO. 3014

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 9.94 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN,
REMOVING SAID AREA FROM THE R-1, RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND ADDING IT TO
THE A-1, AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning
Commission to rezone approximately a 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 North
Union Road and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located adjacent to the south of 2209 North
Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1, Agricultural District: and

WHEREAS, said A-1, Agricultural District allows for the establishment a single-unit
residential dwelling on a lot of record as of August 1, 1979 and recognizes the A-1: Agriculture
District as a holding district for property(s) until services are available; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and
find that said rezoning is consistent with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and the
intent of the A-1, Agricultural District; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of said
rezoning under case #RZ22-002; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, lowa, deems it to be in the best interests of
the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, to approve said rezoning; and

WHEREAS, Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article IlI,
Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar
Falls, lowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance;

Item 2.

16




WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such
hearing held on the proposed amendment; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, be and the same is
hereby amended to show the property legally described below, as now being in the A-I,
Agricultural District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City
of Cedar Falls, lowa, as amended.

The West 1450.0 feet of the North 300.0 feet of the Northwest Quarter (NW %) of
Section Three (3), Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the
Fifth (5TH) Principal Meridian, except the North 70 feet of the East 700 feet of the
Northwest Fractional Quarter of said Section 3, and that part of West 1450.0 feet of the
South 300.0 feet of the Southwest Quarter (SW ¥4) of Section Thirty-four (34) Township
Ninety (90) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5th) Principal Meridian, Black
Hawk County, lowa, lying within the Southeast Quarter of said Southwest Quarter except
that parcel of Land recorded on File 2018-00018291 in the office of the Black Hawk
County Recorder.

INTRODUCED: July 18, 2022
PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION: July 18, 2022
PASSED 2"P CONSIDERATION: August 1, 2022
PASSED 3RP CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

Item 2.

Robert M. Green, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

17




Item 3.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

319-273-8600
FAX 319-268-5126

w/ INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM
/e

TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members
FROM: Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk
DATE:  August 3, 2022
SUBJECT: Designation of Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Spaces

R

In November 2019, City Council approved a pilot program for installation and
designation of a public electric vehicle charging parking space on West 2" Street
(located just north of City Hall). Although the charging unit that was installed had two
charging cables, we started with designating only one space to determine how much
use it would get. During the test period, we did not draft an ordinance, but we posted
signs designating the space for actively charging electric vehicles only, and we
monitored the space by giving other vehicles warnings.

Since installation, the number of charging sessions has been increasing and the second
charging cable has been pulled over to other parking areas and even pulled across the
sidewalk, creating potential hazards. As the usage continues to increase, CFU and City
staff feel that designation of the second charging space is needed to safely
accommodate the additional vehicles wanting to use both charging spaces at this
location. Therefore, we recommend designating the adjacent parking space as an
electric vehicle charging space and adopting the attached ordinance to enable
enforcement of proper use of the spaces.

Please feel free to contact Jennifer Rodenbeck or myself with any questions.

18




Item 3.

ORDINANCE NO. 3015

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV,
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR
FALLS, IOWA, BY ENACTING A NEW SECTION 23-372, ELECTRIC VEHICLE
(EV) CHARGING SPACE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
IOWA:

Division I, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter
23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa is hereby amended by adding thereto a new Section 23-372, Electric vehicle
(EV) charging space, as follows:

Sec. 23-372. Electric vehicle (EV) charging space.

(a) For the purposes of this section, "electric vehicle charging space" means a public
parking space that is located on a public street or in a public parking lot that is
served by charging equipment that has as its primary purpose the transfer of
electric energy to a battery or other energy storage device in an electric vehicle.

(b) Where signs are posted, no person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle in a
designated electric vehicle charging space if the vehicle is not electrically
connected to the charging equipment via the electric charging cord, and where
the electric vehicle charging station is indicated by signage identifying the station
as an electric vehicle charging station and indicating that it is only for electric
vehicle charging.

(c) Violations of this section are subject to fines enumerated in Section 23-356.

INTRODUCED: August 1, 2022
PASSED 1t CONSIDERATION: August 1, 2022
PASSED 2" CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3 CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

Robert M. Green, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

19




Iltem 4.

ROBERT M. GREEN

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM
Office of the Mayor

Zoau—dnm/
FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green
TO: City Council
DATE: August 9, 2022
SUBJECT: CFD 1142.22b: Annual Appointment of Standing Committee Members (Revised)

REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, lowa §2-68
(b) CFD 1121.22: Council Meeting Procedures

1. Inaccordance with reference (a) and (b), and to account for new committees established
on August, 1, 2022, | hereby appoint the following standing committees of the Cedar
Falls City Council for the remainder of Calendar Year 2022:

1. Committee of the Whole: Simon Harding, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin
Ganfield, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires.

2. Finance & Business Operations Committee: Kelly Dunn, Susan deBuhr, Dustin
Ganfield, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires.

3. Public Safety Committee: Dustin Ganfield, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon
Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires.

4. Public Works: Gil Schultz, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Simon
Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dave Sires.

5. Community Development Committee: Simon Harding, Susan deBuhr, Kelly
Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires.

6. Administration Committee: Daryl Kruse, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin
Ganfield, Simon Harding, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires.

2. The first person named on each committee shall be the chair of that committee.

Xc:  City Administrator
City Clerk

HitHt

20




MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126
W www.cedarfalls.com

FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green
TO: City Council
DATE: August 8, 2022

SUBJECT: Appointment of Human Rights Commissioners
REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls 812-27: Human Rights Commission
(b) lowa Code §69.16A: Gender Balance

1. Inaccordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), | hereby
nominate the following citizens for appointment to the Human Rights Commission to fill the
remaining terms of current vacancies:

e Mr. Kyle Wiebers — Term ends 7/1/2024
e Ms. Jennifer Onuigbo — Term ends 7/1/2025

2. General Applications and Candidate Questionnaires are attached for your consideration.

3. These appointments comply with the provisions of reference (b).

Encl: (1) General Application and Candidate Questionnaires for Wiebers and Onuigbo
Xc: City Administrator

Director, Finance and Business Operations
Staff Liaison

it

Item 5.

21




FROM:
TO:
DATE:
SUBJECT:
REF:

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126
www.cedarfalls.com

Zowéu./

Mayor Robert M. Green

City Council

August 8, 2022

Appointment to Visitors & Tourism Board

Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls 817-300

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), | hereby
nominate Ms. Michele Jensen for appointment to the Visitors & Tourism Board for an
unfilled three-year term ending on July 1, 2024.

2. Ms. Jensen’s General Application and Candidate Questionnaire are attached for your
consideration.

Encl: (1) General Application and Candidate Questionnaire for Jensen

Xc: City Administrator
Director, Community Development
Visitors & Tourism Manager

HitH

Item 5.

22




Iltem

5.

GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONs

Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hall
at (319) 273-8600 with questions. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

Kyle .................................... A Wlebers Gender: Male Date6/27/2022
Mi Last
HOME ADAIESS: ..ottt it et et e et e e e e HOME PRONE: i
Work Address: ... s e e . WOTKPRONE: L
E-mail Address: .. oo e e CelTPRORED
Employer: Central Rlvers Area Educatlon Agenﬁ Position/Occupation: SchoolPsychologlst
If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: 9years City Ward: CF2 B | have a LinkedIn Profile

DESIRED NOMINATIONS: Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https://bit.ly/cf-boards

@ Art and Culture Board U Board of Rental Housing Appeals @ Human Rights Commission

0 Board of Adjustment Q Civil Service Commission B Library Board of Trustees

Q Board of Appeals @ Community Center & Senior Services Board B Parks & Recreation Commission
Q Board of Electric Examiners & Appeals Q) Health Trust Fund Board Q Planning & Zoning Commission
O Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeais B Historic Preservation Commission O Utilities Board of Trustees

O Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals B Housing Commission B8 Visitors & Tourism Board

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, including voluntary, socidl, city,
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable).

Cedar Falls Community Theatre - Actor; 2014-present

Pastoral Council, Blessed Sacrament Catholic Church - Member; 2013

Cedar Falls Pickleball Club - Member; 2016-present

QUALIFICATIONS: Please list any special qualifications for board service, including skills, training and certifications.

Masters of Arts in Education from the University of Northern Iowa (2018)
Educational Specialist Degree in School Psychology from the University of Northern Iowa (2021)

MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and what contributions do you believe you can make?

I want to serve the community I have lived in since I was in grade school. Now that I am a working adult, I
have a strong desire to be more involved with the city and with local government. As an educator in the Cedar
Valley, I work every day to do what is best for students, and I want to grow my impact to the larger
community by serving on the city boards and commissions.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: Please list organizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of
interest during your service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organizations
and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but is intended to provide transparency and accountability for board service.

School Psychologist at Central Rivers AEA, Member of the Cedar Falls Pickleball Club.

Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfalls.com
or Mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, A 50613

23

You will be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs.




Item 5.

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

W Name: Kyle Wiebers Date: 6/28/2022
Lp##

Can you regularly attend commission meetings on the 2" Monday of the month at 6pm at City Hall? X Yes 1 No

1. Why are human rights and civil rights laws and regulations necessary?

Human and civil rights laws and regulations are necessary to ensure equitable practices in the many systems
within our city. By having these laws and regulations in place, this allows for all residences to have equal social
opportunities in programs within the city. By promoting human rights and civil rights laws and regulations, we
can work to ensure that all members of the community are afforded opportunities and a voice within the

community.

2. What unique contributions or perspectives can you bring to the Human Rights Commission?
As a school psychologist, | am very passionate about figuring out practices and procedures that are best
students, but also working to ensure those practices are equitable for all students, including minority students,
and students with disabilities. | would bring strong critical thinking skills to the Human Rights Commission, and
would provide a perspective from the world of education, to ensure that opportunities are being afforded to
everyone within the community, regardless of race, gender, or disability. As an individual who works with
students and families with disabilities, and as a person who also has a physical disability, | have strong ties to
the populations who are impacted most by the work done by the Human Rights Commission. My perspective
of always striving towards what's best for all within my work as a school psychologist, and as a community

member, would make me a valuable asset to the Human Rights Commission.

3. What experience do you have with diverse community groups and diversity/inclusion education?
As mentioned in the previous response, | am a school psychologist, employed by Central Rivers Area Education
Agency. It is my daily work to advocate for students with physical, mental, and emotional disabilities, and to
also advocate for their families. It is part of my job to help students with disabilities receive an inclusive
education, and | also work every day to ensure practices within the school are equitable for students with
disabilities, and for students of color, since there is a disproportionality of Black and Brown students who are

identified for special education services within the American school system.

24




4. What experience do you have with discrimination case review and/or investigation?

Item 5.

As part of my undergraduate and graduate course work, | spent many hours reviewing and analyzing special
education law and civil rights law. | am particularly familiar with special education law, and the procedures of
due process within the world of special education, and am willing to learn more, and gain more exposure to

discrimiation case review and investigation.

What resources and activities would you employ to be an informed Human Rights Commissioner?

| would engage with resources and activities that the Commission would bring together, but | also feel it is my
duty as a citizen of Cedar Falls, a citizen of lowa, and a citizen of the United States, and as an educator, to never
stop learning. | am a lifelong learner, and am always trying to better my understanding of perspectives and
worldviews that are different from mine, especially those perspectives which I will never be able to experience

first hand; such as the experiences of those who are a different race, gender, or religion than myself.

Why are you interested in serving on the Human Rights Commission?
| am very interested in engaging more with local government, and | believe that my work and passions as a
school psychologist fit well into the scope of the Human Rights Commision. | feel that | would be a great fit for

the Commission and would bring valuable knowledge and perspectives if appointed.

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:
City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126,
or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment

25




e Iltem
pEi GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONS

5.

Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hall

e o) at (319) 273-8600 with questions. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.
Zp#
Name: Jennlfer A Onulgbo Gender: F Date: 5/15/2022
First Mi Last
HOmMeE ADAress: ... ..o i e e e e it ee e HOME PRONE: L
WOTK AQOI@SS: ootie i ot e et e e e e et e e e e e e e, WWOTK PHONED L
E-mail AdAress: .. o oot e et s i e CellPRONET
Employer: UNI-GallagherBluedorn ...... Position/Occupation: CommumtyRelatlonsMgr
If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: 20years ...... City Ward: 5 QA 1 have a LinkedIn Profile

DESIRED NOMINATIONS: Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https://bit.ly/cf-boards

0 Art and Culture Board O Board of Rental Housing Appeals @ Human Rights Commission

0 Board of Adjustment Q Civil Service Commission Q Library Board of Trustees

Q Board of Appeals O Community Center & Senior Services Board Q) Parks & Recreation Commission
O Board of Electric Examiners & Appeals Q Health Trust Fund Board Q Planning & Zoning Commission
O Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeals [ Historic Preservation Commission O Utilities Board of Trustees

Q Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals O Housing Commission Q Visitors & Tourism Board

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, including voluntary, social, city,
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable).

I am currently the community relations manager at the Gallagher Bluedorn, and the main focus of my role is
developing connections and equal access to the performing arts within our community. I have served on the
CF schools equity committee, Foundation, safe schools committee, and PTA. I currently serve on the Cedar
Valley economic inclusion council and am a co-leader of Embrace Celebrating Diversity.

QUALIFICATIONS: Please list any special qualifications for board service, including skills, training and certifications.
I have an undergradutate degree in intl business and Spanish, an MBA, and a certificate in DEI from Cornell
University. I worked extensively with international students at my prior employer, Wartburg College, and am
well-versed in both the challenges and opportunities members of this community face in our region. Last year,
I also served on a committee to address inclusion in an international organization with 250k members.

MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and what contributions do you believe you can make?
I recognize that if change is to happen, it must be on several levels. While we can each have impact on an
within our individual spheres of influence, equity can be achieved only through changing systems, laws and
policies. Serving on the HRC would enable me to work with other like-minded individuals to begin impacting
systemic change within our city.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: Please list organizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of
interest during your service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organizations
and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but is intended to provide transparency and accountability for board service.

UNI, CF Schools

Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfails.com
or Mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

26

You will be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs.




Iltem

5.

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

W Name: Jennifer Onuigbo Date: 07/01/22
Lp##e

Can you regularly attend commission meetings on the 2™ Monday of the month at 6pm at City Hall?  xYes 0O No

1.

Why are human rights and civil rights laws and regulations necessary? Human and civil rights laws
and regulations are necessary because systems of power are designed by the people in power to remain
in power. Historically excluded groups have been excluded from full participation in our society. Rules and
regulations are necessary to ensure everyone has equal opportunity and access to resources to

succeed.

What unique contributions or perspective can you bring to the Human Rights Commission? While
| identify as a white, cisgendered, straight woman, my life is filled with wonderful family, friends, colleagues,
students, and members of the community who have diverse identities. | have seen first hand the impact of

laws and rhetoric related to religion, immigration, race, ethnicity,ability, sexuality and gender.

What experience do you have with diverse community groups and diversity/inclusion education?

| obtained an executive certificate in DEI from Cornell University. | am a member of Embrace, a diversity action
group from Waverly. | have served on the CF Schools equity committee and worked with members of the CF
Human Rights Commission to create a joint community education project for the 1619 Project with the
Waterloo HRC. | have participated and led several book groups, including Caste, The New Jim Crow, and White
Rage. | worked for five years with students from over 50 countries in higher education, saw their talents and
gifts, and also saw their struggle to belong in our community. | currently serve as the community relations
manager at the Gallagher Bluedorn. My job is to work with other community organizers and organizations to

ensure equal access and participation.

What experience do you have with discrimination case review and/or investigation?

At Wartburg, | was a member of the DEI Council who played a role in investigating cases of bias and discrimination on campus. |

am also trained in Title IX and served as a student advisor in student sexual assualt review.

What resources and activities would you employ to be an informed Human Rights Commissioner?

| consider myself to be a lifelong learner. | read books and articles that challenge my way of thinking. For my position at the
GBPAC, | attend professional development that improves my ability to bring inclusive and equitable programming to schools in the
area, and would be eager to participate in additional professional development as a commissioner.

Why are you interested in serving on the Human Rights Commission?

While Cedar Falls offers residents many wonderful opportunities, there is still work to be done to ensure it offers equitable

27




treatment and opportunity to people with diverse identities. | recognize that oppression in our country is a complex tapestry
laws, regulations, power structures and attitudes. If we can all tug at the strings, we can begin to unravel that tapestry.

Item 5.

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:
City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126,
or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment

28




Iltem

5.

Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hall
at (319) 273-8600 with questions. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

_I GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONS

NameMwhele L Jensen Talber v e Gender: F Date3/30/2022
First Mmi Last

Home AdAress: ... ...ooooiit oo e e e e i e e e eeeee.. HOmME PhiONE L

WOTrK AQArESS: ..oovviiiot et e e e e e aee s eee i eee e eeeeaee e WOTKPRON@D L

E-mail Address: . i s eiernee e eenneee e, Cell Phoner o

Employer: Moxne, a lelSlon of VGM isssssimsrenes POSItion/Occupation: . Vice Presndent/Marketmg

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: . 13 DAL City Ward: 2 M | have a LinkedIn Profile

DESIRED NOMINATIONS: Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https://bit.ly/cf-boards

0 Art and Culture Board 0 Board of Rental Housing Appeals Q Human Rights Commission

O Board of Adjustment Q Civil Service Commission Q Library Board of Trustees

Q) Board of Appeals QO Community Center & Senior Services Board Q Parks & Recreation Commission
Q) Board of Electric Examiners & Appeals QO Health Trust Fund Board Q Planning & Zoning Commission
O Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeals  Q Historic Preservation Commission Q Utilities Board of Trustees

Q Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals 1 Housing Commission & Visitors & Tourism Board

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, including voluntary, social, city,
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable).
Junier Achievement Board Member, 2020- present
Community Foundation of Northeast Iowa, Advancement Oversight Committee, 2019- present
WCFSymphony, Upbeat/Friends Committee/Board, 2015- 2021
Rotary Club Cedar Valley 2015 -2017

QUALIFICATIONS: Please list any special qualifications for board service, including skills, training and certifications.

Dale Carnigie Training Graduate
Cedar Valley Leadership Institute Graduate

MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and what contributions do you believe you can make?

I grew up in the Cedar Valley and I have enjoyed the progress I've seen, the amenities we've brought, the
enhancements to what has always been and the growth potential of the future. I want to contribute to continue
making Cedar Falls a wonderful place to live, work, play and...visit.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: Please list organizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of
interest during your service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organizations
and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but is intended to provide transparency and accountability for board service.

Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfalls.com

or mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613
You will be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs.

29




Item 5.

o

I = I VISITORS AND TOURISM BOARD CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

w Name: Michele Jensen Date:  4/49/2022
Zp##

Can you attend board meetings on the 379 Wednesday of the month at 4pm at the Visitors Center? xYes W No

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Visitors and Tourism Board?

| grew up in the Cedar Valley and | have enjoyed the progress I've seen, the amenities we've brought, the
enhancements to what has always been and the growth potential of the future. | want to contribute to
continue making Cedar Falls a wonderful place to live, work, play and...visit.

2. What is your background and experience in the tourism and service industry?

My work history has all been in the service industry, from high school at Von Maur to present day in the
marketing and communication service industry.

3. What would you see as your role in this advisory board?

Happy to serve in any capacity needed.

4. What unique perspective or insights could you bring to the Visitors and Tourism Board?
| can bring perspective as a working mother, as a lifelong resident: a child who grew up here, a teen who

attended UNI and a young adult who chose to start and raise my own family here.

5. What changes would you like to see in the City's visitor and tourism services and programs?

Would need to learn more of what's been done, what's worked and hasn't in order to provide meaningful
feedback.

6. Please list your organizational and relational connections which might pose potential conflicts of
interest for items under consideration by the Visitors and Tourism Board.

Not aware of any conflicts.

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:
City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, |A 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126,
or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment

30




Item 6.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

POLICE OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

319-273-8612

MEMORANDUM
To: Mayor Green and City Councilmembers
From: Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director
Mark Howard, Acting Police Chief
Date: August 8, 2022
Re: Beer/Liquor License Applications

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and
recommend approval.

Name of Applicants:
a) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine — renewal.
b) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
c) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.

d) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service -
renewal.

e) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal.

31




ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022

. Resolution approving and authorizing a form of Loan Agreement and authorizing and
providing for the issuance, and levying a tax to pay the Notes; Approval of the Tax
Exemption Certificate and Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY.

Iltem 7.

32




August 15, 2022

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa, met in _Regular
session, in the Community Center, 528 Main Street, Cedar Falls, lowa, at _7:00 P.M., on the

above date. There were present Mayor _Robert M. Green

following named Council Members:

, in the chair, and the

Absent:

Vacant:

* k kX kK %

Iltem 7.

33




Council Member introduced the following Resolution entitled
"RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING A FORM OF LOAN AGREEMENT
AND AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF $3,860,000 GENERAL
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2022, AND LEVYING A TAX TO PAY
SAID NOTES; APPROVAL OF THE TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE AND
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE" and moved that it be adopted. Council
Member seconded the motion to adopt, and the roll being called
thereon, the vote was as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

Whereupon, the Mayor declared said Resolution duly adopted as follows:
RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING A FORM
OF LOAN AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING AND
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF $3,860,000 GENERAL
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2022, AND
LEVYING A TAX TO PAY SAID NOTES; APPROVAL OF
THE TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE AND CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS, the Issuer is duly incorporated, organized and exists under and by virtue of
the laws and Constitution of the State of lowa; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer is in need of funds to pay costs of City capital projects, including
opening, widening, extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways,
avenues, alleys and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and replacement of dead
or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street
improvements, bridges, grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition, installation,
and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, water service
lines, street lighting, and traffic control devices, and the acquisition of any real estate needed for
any of the foregoing purposes; and equipping the fire department, essential corporate purpose(s),
and it is deemed necessary and advisable that General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the
amount of not to exceed $3,200,000 be authorized for said purpose(s); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 384.24A and 384.25 of
the Code of lowa, this Council has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to

-2-

Iltem 7.

34




institute proceedings for the issuance of the Notes, and the Council is therefore now authorized
to proceed with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and

WHEREAS, the City is in need of funds to pay costs of City capital projects, including
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of City
facilities, including camera installation, replacement and maintenance, and a finance system; and
expanded public infrastructure, related amenities and site improvements, general corporate
purpose(s), and it is deemed necessary and advisable that General Obligation Capital Loan
Notes, to the amount of not to exceed $600,000 be authorized for said purpose(s); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has a population of more than 5,000 but not more than 75,000,
and the Notes for these purposes do not exceed $700,000; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 384.24A and 384.26 of
the Code of lowa, the Council of the City has held public meeting and hearing upon the proposal
to institute proceedings for the issuance of Notes for general corporate purpose(s) in the amounts
as above set forth, and, no petition for referendum having been received, the Council is therefore
now authorized to proceed with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and

WHEREAS, the City is in need of funds to pay costs of City capital projects, including
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, drainage enhancements,
grading and terracing, slope stabilization and protection, and equipping of recreational trails and
parks associated with the Cedar River Recreation Project, general corporate purpose(s), and it is
deemed necessary and advisable that General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the amount of
not to exceed $700,000 be authorized for said purpose(s); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has a population of more than 5,000 but not more than 75,000,
and the Notes for these purposes do not exceed $700,000; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 384.24A and 384.26 of
the Code of lowa, the Council of the City has held public meeting and hearing upon the proposal
to institute proceedings for the issuance of Notes for general corporate purpose(s) in the amounts
as above set forth, and, no petition for referendum having been received, the Council is therefore
now authorized to proceed with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 384.28 of the Code of lowa, it is hereby found and
determined that the various general obligation capital loan Notes authorized as hereinabove
described shall be combined for the purpose of issuance in a single issue of $3,860,000 General
Obligation Capital Loan Notes as hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, the above mentioned Notes were heretofore sold and action should now be
taken to issue said Notes conforming to the terms and conditions of the best bid received at the
sale.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA:

Iltem 7.

35




Section 1. Definitions. The following terms shall have the following meanings in this

Resolution unless the text expressly or by necessary implication requires otherwise:

. "Authorized Denominations™ shall mean $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof.

. "Beneficial Owner" shall mean, whenever used with respect to a Note, the
person in whose name such Note is recorded as the beneficial owner of such Note by a
Participant on the records of such Participant or such person’s subrogee.

. "Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations” shall mean the Representation
Letter from the Issuer to DTC, with respect to the Notes.

. "Cede & Co." shall mean Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any
successor nominee of DTC with respect to the Notes.

. "Continuing Disclosure Certificate™ shall mean that certain Continuing
Disclosure Certificate approved under the terms of this Resolution and to be executed by
the Issuer and dated the date of issuance and delivery of the Notes, as originally executed
and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof.

. "Depository Notes " shall mean the Notes as issued in the form of one
global certificate for each maturity, registered in the Registration Books maintained by
the Registrar in the name of DTC or its nominee.

. "DTC" shall mean The Depository Trust Company, New York,
New York, which will act as security depository for the Note pursuant to the
Representation Letter.

. "Issuer” and "City" shall mean the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa.

. "Loan Agreement" shall mean a Loan Agreement between the Issuer and a
lender or lenders in substantially the form attached to and approved by this Resolution.

. "Note Fund" shall mean the fund created in Section 3 of this Resolution.

. "Notes" shall mean $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes,
Series 2022, authorized to be issued by this Resolution.

. "Participants” shall mean those broker-dealers, banks and other financial
institutions for which DTC holds Notes as securities depository.

. "Paying Agent" shall mean the City's Controller/City Treasurer, or such
successor as may be approved by Issuer as provided herein and who shall carry out the
duties prescribed herein as Issuer's agent to provide for the payment of principal of and
interest on the Notes as the same shall become due.

Iltem 7.

36




. "Project” shall mean the costs of City capital projects, including opening,
widening, extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways,
avenues, alleys and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and replacement
of dead or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any
street improvements, bridges, grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition,
installation, and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, sanitary
sewers, water service lines, street lighting, and traffic control devices, and the acquisition
of any real estate needed for any of the foregoing purposes; and equipping the fire
department; City capital projects, including acquisition, construction, reconstruction,
enlargement, improvement, and equipping of City facilities, including camera
installation, replacement and maintenance, and a finance system; and expanded public
infrastructure, related amenities and site improvements; and City capital projects,
including acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, drainage
enhancements, grading and terracing, slope stabilization and protection, and equipping of
recreational trails and parks associated with the Cedar River Recreation Project.

. "Project Fund" shall mean the fund required to be established by this
Resolution for the deposit of the proceeds of the Notes.

. "Rebate Fund" shall mean the fund so defined in and established pursuant
to the Tax Exemption Certificate.

. "Registrar” shall mean the City's Controller/City Treasurer of Cedar Falls,
lowa, or such successor as may be approved by Issuer as provided herein and who shall
carry out the duties prescribed herein with respect to maintaining a register of the owners
of the Notes. Unless otherwise specified, the Registrar shall also act as Transfer Agent
for the Notes.

. "Resolution™ shall mean this resolution authorizing the Notes.

. "Tax Exemption Certificate™ shall mean the Tax Exemption Certificate
approved under the terms of this Resolution and to be executed by the Treasurer and
delivered at the time of issuance and delivery of the Notes.

. "Treasurer" shall mean the Controller/City Treasurer or such other officer
as shall succeed to the same duties and responsibilities with respect to the recording and
payment of the Notes issued hereunder.

Section 2. Levy and Certification of Annual Tax; Other Funds to be Used.

a) Levy of Annual Tax. That for the purpose of providing funds to pay the
principal and interest of the Notes hereinafter authorized to be issued, there is hereby
levied for each future year the following direct annual tax on all of the taxable property in
the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa, to-wit:

Iltem 7.

37




FISCAL YEAR (JULY 1 TO JUNE 30)

Iltem 7.

AMOUNT YEAR OF COLLECTION
$117,358.06* 2022/2023
$405,900.00 2023/2024
$403,400.00 2024/2025
$405,400.00 2025/2026
$401,650.00 2026/2027
$402,400.00 2027/2028
$397,400.00 2028/2029
$396,900.00 2029/2030
$395,650.00 2030/2031
$400,450.00 2031/2032
$404,800.00 2032/2033
$408,700.00 2033/2034
$417,150.00 2034/2035

*Payable from available cash on hand.

(NOTE: For example the levy to be made and certified against the taxable valuations of
January 1, 2022 will be collected during the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2023.)

b) Resolution to be Filed With County Auditor. A certified copy of this
Resolution shall be filed with the Auditor of Black Hawk County, lowa and the Auditor
is hereby instructed in and for each of the years as provided, to levy and assess the tax
hereby authorized in Section 2 of this Resolution, in like manner as other taxes are levied
and assessed, and such taxes so levied in and for each of the years aforesaid be collected
in like manner as other taxes of the City are collected, and when collected be used for the
purpose of paying principal and interest on said Notes issued in anticipation of the tax,
and for no other purpose whatsoever.

c) Additional City Funds Available. Principal and interest coming due at any
time when the proceeds of said tax on hand shall be insufficient to pay the same shall be
promptly paid when due from current funds of the City available for that purpose and
reimbursement shall be made from such special fund in the amounts thus advanced.

Section 3. Note Fund. Said tax shall be assessed and collected each year at the same time

and in the same manner as, and in addition to, all other taxes in and for the City, and when
collected they shall be converted into a special fund within the Debt Service Fund to be known
as the "2022 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTE FUND NO. 1" (the "Note
Fund™), which is hereby pledged for and shall be used only for the payment of the principal of
and interest on the Notes hereinafter authorized to be issued; and also there shall be apportioned
to said fund its proportion of taxes received by the City from property that is centrally assessed
by the State of lowa.

Section 4. Application of Note Proceeds. Proceeds of the Notes, other than accrued

interest except as may be provided below, shall be credited to the Project Fund and expended

-6-

38




therefrom for the purposes of issuance. Any amounts on hand in the Project Fund shall be
available for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Notes at any time that other funds
shall be insufficient to the purpose, in which event such funds shall be repaid to the Project Fund
at the earliest opportunity. Any balance on hand in the Project Fund and not immediately
required for its purposes may be invested not inconsistent with limitations provided by law or
this Resolution.

Section 5. Investment of Note Fund Proceeds. All moneys held in the Note Fund,
provided for by Section 3 of this Resolution shall be invested in investments permitted by
Chapter 12B, Code of lowa, as amended, or deposited in financial institutions which are
members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the deposits in which are insured
thereby and all such deposits exceeding the maximum amount insured from time to time by
FDIC or its equivalent successor in any one financial institution shall be continuously secured in
compliance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa, as amended, or otherwise by a valid pledge
of direct obligations of the United States Government having an equivalent market value. All
such interim investments shall mature before the date on which the moneys are required for
payment of principal of or interest on the Notes as herein provided.

Section 6. Note Details, Execution and Redemption.

a) Note Details. General Obligation Capital Loan Notes of the City in the amount
of $3,860,000, shall be issued to evidence the obligations of the Issuer under the Loan
Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Sections 384.24A, 384.25, 384.26 and 384.28 of
the Code of lowa for the aforesaid purposes. The Notes shall be issued in one or more
series and shall be secured equally and ratably from the sources provided in Section 3 of
this Resolution. The Notes shall be designated "GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL
LOAN NOTE, SERIES 2022", be dated August 31, 2022, and bear interest from the date
thereof, until payment thereof, at the office of the Paying Agent, said interest payable on
June 1, 2023, and semiannually thereafter on the 1st day of June and December in each
year until maturity at the rates hereinafter provided.

The Notes shall be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor
and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk, and impressed or printed
with the seal of the City and shall be fully registered as to both principal and interest as
provided in this Resolution; principal, interest and premium, if any, shall be payable at
the office of the Paying Agent by mailing of a check to the registered owner of the Note.
The Notes shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or multiples thereof. The Notes shall
mature and bear interest as follows:

Iltem 7.

39




Principal Interest Maturity
Amount Rate June 1%
$250,000 5.000% 2024
$260,000 5.000% 2025
$275,000 5.000% 2026
$285,000 5.000% 2027
$300,000 5.000% 2028
$310,000 5.000% 2029
$325,000 5.000% 2030
$340,000 3.000% 2031
$355,000 3.000% 2032
$370,000 3.000% 2033
$385,000 3.000% 2034
$405,000 3.000% 2035

b) Redemption.

i. Optional Redemption. Notes maturing after June 1, 2030, may be called
for optional redemption by the Issuer on that date or any date thereafter, from any
funds regardless of source, in whole or from time to time in part, in any order of
maturity and within an annual maturity by lot. The terms of redemption shall be
par, plus accrued interest to date of call.

Thirty days' written notice of redemption shall be given to the registered
owner of the Note. Failure to give written notice to any registered owner of the
Notes or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for the
redemption of the Notes. All Notes or portions thereof called for redemption will
cease to bear interest after the specified redemption date, provided funds for their
redemption are on deposit at the place of payment. Written notice will be deemed
completed upon transmission to the owner of record.

If selection by lot within a maturity is required, the Registrar shall
designate the Notes to be redeemed by random selection of the names of the
registered owners of the entire annual maturity until the total amount of Notes to
be called has been reached.

If less than all of a maturity is called for redemption, the Issuer will notify
DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed prior to maturity.
DTC will determine by lot the amount of each Participant's interest in such
maturity to be redeemed and each Participant will then select by lot the beneficial
ownership interests in such maturity to be redeemed. All prepayments shall be at
a price of par plus accrued interest.

Iltem 7.

40




Section 7. Issuance of Notes in Book-Entry Form; Replacement Notes.

a) Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Resolution regarding registration,
ownership, transfer, payment and exchange of the Notes, unless the Issuer determines to
permit the exchange of Depository Notes for Notes in Authorized Denominations, the
Notes shall be issued as Depository Notes in denominations of the entire principal
amount of each maturity of Notes (or, if a portion of said principal amount is prepaid,
said principal amount less the prepaid amount). The Notes must be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. Payment of semiannual interest for any Notes
registered in the name of Cede & Co. will be made by wire transfer or New York
Clearing House or equivalent next day funds to the account of Cede & Co. on the interest
payment date for the Notes at the address indicated or in the Representation Letter.

b) The Notes will be initially issued in the form of separate single authenticated
fully registered bonds in the amount of each stated maturity of the Notes. Upon initial
issuance, the ownership of the Notes will be registered in the registry books of the City's
Controller/City Treasurer kept by the Paying Agent and Registrar in the name of Cede &
Co., as nominee of DTC. The Paying Agent and Registrar and the Issuer may treat DTC
(or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Notes registered in its name for
the purposes of payment of the principal or redemption price of or interest on the Notes,
selecting the Notes or portions to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to
be given to registered owners of Notes under the Resolution of the Issuer, registering the
transfer of Notes, obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by registered owners
of the Notes and for other purposes. The Paying Agent, Registrar and the Issuer have no
responsibility or obligation to any Participant or Beneficial Owner of the Notes under or
through DTC with respect to the accuracy of records maintained by DTC or any
Participant; with respect to the payment by DTC or Participant of an amount of principal
or redemption price of or interest on the Notes; with respect to any notice given to owners
of Notes under the Resolution; with respect to the Participant(s) selected to receive
payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Notes, or a consent given or other
action taken by DTC as registered owner of the Notes. The Paying Agent and Registrar
shall pay all principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Notes only to Cede &
Co. in accordance with the Representation Letter, and all payments are valid and
effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Issuer's obligations with respect to the
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Notes to the extent of the sum paid.
DTC must receive an authenticated Bond for each separate stated maturity evidencing the
obligation of the Issuer to make payments of principal of and premium, if any, and
interest. Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent and Registrar of written notice that
DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the Notes will
be transferable to the new nominee in accordance with this Section.

¢) In the event the Issuer determines that it is in the best interest of the Beneficial
Owners that they be able to obtain Notes certificates, the Issuer may notify DTC and the
Paying Agent and Registrar, whereupon DTC will notify the Participants, of the
availability through DTC of Notes certificates. The Notes will be transferable in
accordance with this Section. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services

-9-

Iltem 7.

41




with respect to the Notes at any time by giving notice to the Issuer and the Paying Agent
and Registrar and discharging its responsibilities under applicable law. In this event, the
Notes will be transferable in accordance with this Section.

d) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution to the contrary, so long
as any Note is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments
with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Note and all
notices must be made and given, respectively to DTC as provided in the Representation
letter.

e) In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to
Noteholders by the Issuer or the Paying Agent and Registrar with respect to a consent or
other action to be taken by Noteholders, the Issuer or the Paying Agent and Registrar, as
the case may be, shall establish a record date for the consent or other action and give
DTC notice of the record date not less than 15 calendar days in advance of the record
date to the extent possible. Notice to DTC must be given only when DTC is the sole
Noteholder.

f) The Representation Letter is on file with DTC and sets forth certain matters
with respect to, among other things, notices, consents and approvals by Noteholders and
payments on the Notes. The execution and delivery of the Representation Letter to DTC
by the Issuer is ratified and confirmed.

g) In the event that a transfer or exchange of the Notes is permitted under this
Section, the transfer or exchange may be accomplished upon receipt by the Registrar
from the registered owners of the Notes to be transferred or exchanged and appropriate
instruments of transfer. In the event Note certificates are issued to holders other than
Cede & Co., its successor as nominee for DTC as holder of all the Notes, or other
securities depository as holder of all the Notes, the provisions of the Resolution apply to,
among other things, the printing of certificates and the method or payment of principal of
and interest on the certificates. Any substitute depository shall be designated in writing
by the Issuer to the Paying Agent. Any such substitute depository shall be a qualified and
registered “clearing agency" as provided in Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. The substitute depository shall provide for (i) immobilization of
the Depository Notes, (ii) registration and transfer of interests in Depository Notes by
book entries made on records of the depository or its nominee and (iii) payment of
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes in accordance with and as such
interests may appear with respect to such book entries.

h) The officers of the Issuer are authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to
the purchaser, and to the attorneys approving the legality of Notes, certified copies of
proceedings, ordinances, resolutions and records and all certificates and affidavits and
other instruments as may be required to evidence the legality and marketability of the
Notes, and all certified copies, certificates, affidavits and other instruments constitute
representations of the Issuer as to the correctness of all stated or recited facts.

-10 -

Iltem 7.

42




Iltem 7.

Section 8. Reqistration of Notes: Appointment of Reqistrar; Transfer; Ownership;
Delivery; and Cancellation.

a) Reqistration. The ownership of Notes may be transferred only by the making
of an entry upon the books kept for the registration and transfer of ownership of the
Notes, and in no other way. The City's Controller/City Treasurer is hereby appointed as
Note Registrar under the terms of this Resolution and under the provisions of a separate
agreement with the Issuer filed herewith which is made a part hereof by this reference.
Registrar shall maintain the books of the Issuer for the registration of ownership of the
Notes for the payment of principal of and interest on the Notes as provided in this
Resolution. All Notes shall be negotiable as provided in Article 8 of the Uniform
Commercial Code and Section 384.31 of the Code of lowa, subject to the provisions for
registration and transfer contained in the Notes and in this Resolution.

b) Transfer. The ownership of any Note may be transferred only upon the
Registration Books kept for the registration and transfer of Notes and only upon
surrender thereof at the office of the Registrar together with an assignment duly executed
by the holder or his duly authorized attorney in fact in such form as shall be satisfactory
to the Registrar, along with the address and social security number or federal employer
identification number of such transferee (or, if registration is to be made in the name of
multiple individuals, of all such transferees). In the event that the address of the
registered owner of a Note (other than a registered owner which is the nominee of the
broker or dealer in question) is that of a broker or dealer, there must be disclosed on the
Registration Books the information pertaining to the registered owner required above.
Upon the transfer of any such Note, a new fully registered Note, of any denomination or
denominations permitted by this Resolution in aggregate principal amount equal to the
unmatured and unredeemed principal amount of such transferred fully registered Note,
and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date or dates shall be
delivered by the Registrar.

c) Registration of Transferred Notes. In all cases of the transfer of the Notes, the
Registrar shall register, at the earliest practicable time, on the Registration Books, the
Notes, in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.

d) Ownership. As to any Note, the person in whose name the ownership of the
same shall be registered on the Registration Books of the Registrar shall be deemed and
regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of or on account of
the principal of any such Notes and the premium, if any, and interest thereon shall be
made only to or upon the order of the registered owner thereof or his legal representative.
All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon
such Note, including the interest thereon, to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

e) Cancellation. All Notes which have been redeemed shall not be reissued but
shall be cancelled by the Registrar. All Notes which are cancelled by the Registrar shall
be destroyed and a certificate of the destruction thereof shall be furnished promptly to the
Issuer; provided that if the Issuer shall so direct, the Registrar shall forward the cancelled
Notes to the Issuer.

-11- 43




f) Non-Presentment of Notes. In the event any payment check, wire, or electronic
transfer of funds representing payment of principal of or interest on the Notes is returned
to the Paying Agent or if any note is not presented for payment of principal at the
maturity or redemption date, if funds sufficient to pay such principal of or interest on
Notes shall have been made available to the Paying Agent for the benefit of the owner
thereof, all liability of the Issuer to the owner thereof for such interest or payment of such
Notes shall forthwith cease, terminate and be completely discharged, and thereupon it
shall be the duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest
thereon, for the benefit of the owner of such Notes who shall thereafter be restricted
exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this
Resolution or on, or with respect to, such interest or Notes. The Paying Agent's
obligation to hold such funds shall continue for a period equal to two years and six
months following the date on which such interest or principal became due, whether at
maturity, or at the date fixed for redemption thereof, or otherwise, at which time the
Paying Agent shall surrender any remaining funds so held to the Issuer, whereupon any
claim under this Resolution by the Owners of such interest or Notes of whatever nature
shall be made upon the Issuer.

g) Reqistration and Transfer Fees. The Registrar may furnish to each owner, at
the Issuer's expense, one note for each annual maturity. The Registrar shall furnish
additional Notes in lesser denominations (but not less than the minimum denomination)
to an owner who so requests.

Section 9. Reissuance of Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Notes. In case any
outstanding Note shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer shall at the
request of Registrar authenticate and deliver a new Note of like tenor and amount as the Note so
mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Note to
Registrar, upon surrender of such mutilated Note, or in lieu of and substitution for the Note
destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the Registrar evidence satisfactory to the Registrar and
Issuer that such Note has been destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon
furnishing the Registrar and Issuer with satisfactory indemnity and complying with such other
reasonable regulations as the Issuer or its agent may prescribe and paying such expenses as the
Issuer may incur in connection therewith.

Section 10. Record Date. Payments of principal and interest, otherwise than upon full
redemption, made in respect of any Note, shall be made to the registered holder thereof or to
their designated agent as the same appear on the books of the Registrar on the 15th day of the
month preceding the payment date. All such payments shall fully discharge the obligations of
the Issuer in respect of such Notes to the extent of the payments so made. Upon receipt of the
final payment of principal, the holder of the Note shall surrender the Note to the Paying Agent.

Section 11. Execution, Authentication and Delivery of the Notes. Upon the adoption of
this Resolution, the Mayor and Clerk shall execute the Notes by their manual or authorized
signature and deliver the Notes to the Registrar, who shall authenticate the Notes and deliver the
same to or upon order of the Purchaser. No Note shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or
shall be entitled to any right or benefit hereunder unless the Registrar shall duly endorse and
execute on such Note a Certificate of Authentication substantially in the form of the Certificate

-12 -

Iltem 7.

44




herein set forth. Such Certificate upon any Note executed on behalf of the Issuer shall be
conclusive evidence that the Note so authenticated has been duly issued under this Resolution
and that the holder thereof is entitled to the benefits of this Resolution.

No Notes shall be authenticated and delivered by the Registrar unless and until there shall
have been provided the following:

1. A certified copy of the resolution of Issuer approving the execution of a Loan
Agreement and a copy of the Loan Agreement;

2. A written order of Issuer signed by the Treasurer of the Issuer directing the
authentication and delivery of the Notes to or upon the order of the Purchaser
upon payment of the purchase price as set forth therein;

3. The approving opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Bond Counsel, concerning the
validity and legality of all the Notes proposed to be issued.

Section 12. Right to Name Substitute Paying Agent or Registrar. Issuer reserves the right
to name a substitute, successor Registrar or Paying Agent upon giving prompt written notice to
each registered noteholder.

Section 13. Form of Note. Notes shall be printed substantially in the form as follows:

"STATE OF IOWA"
"COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK"
"CITY OF CEDAR FALLS"
"GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTE"
"SERIES 2022"
CORPORATE PURPOSE

Rate:
Maturity:
Note Date: August 31, 2022
CUSIP No.:
"Registered"
Certificate No.
Principal Amount: $

The City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing
under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the State of lowa (the "Issuer"), for value
received, promises to pay from the source and as hereinafter provided, on the maturity date
indicated above, to

(Registration panel to be completed by Registrar or Printer with name of Registered
Owner).

-13-

Iltem 7.

45




or registered assigns, the principal sum of (enter principal amount in long form) THOUSAND
DOLLARS in lawful money of the United States of America, on the maturity date shown above,
only upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the City's Controller/City Treasurer,
Paying Agent of this issue, or its successor, with interest on the sum from the date hereof until
paid at the rate per annum specified above, payable on June 1, 2023, and semiannually thereafter
on the 1st day of June and December in each year.

Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of the Note as shown on the
records of ownership maintained by the Registrar as of the 15th day of the month preceding such
interest payment date. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-
day months.

This Note is issued pursuant to the provisions of Sections 384.24A, 384.25, 384.26 and
384.28 of the Code of lowa, for the purpose of paying costs of City capital projects, including
opening, widening, extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways,
avenues, alleys and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and replacement of dead
or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street
improvements, bridges, grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition, installation,
and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, water service
lines, street lighting, and traffic control devices, and the acquisition of any real estate needed for
any of the foregoing purposes; and equipping the fire department; City capital projects, including
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of City
facilities, including camera installation, replacement and maintenance, and a finance system; and
expanded public infrastructure, related amenities and site improvements; and City capital
projects, including acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, drainage
enhancements, grading and terracing, slope stabilization and protection, and equipping of
recreational trails and parks associated with the Cedar River Recreation Project, and in order to
evidence the obligations of the Issuer under a certain Loan Agreement dated the date hereof, in
conformity to a Resolution of the Council of said City duly passed and approved. For a complete
statement of the funds from which and the conditions under which this Note is payable, and the
general covenants and provisions pursuant to which this Note is issued, reference is made to the
above described Loan Agreement and Resolution.

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository
Trust Company, a limited purpose trust company ("DTC"), to the Issuer or its agent for
registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name
of Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any
payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other Issuer as is requested by an authorized
representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE
OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered
owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

Notes maturing after June 1, 2030, may be called for optional redemption by the Issuer
and paid before maturity on said date or any date thereafter, from any funds regardless of source,
in whole or from time to time in part, in any order of maturity and within an annual maturity by
lot. The terms of redemption shall be par, plus accrued interest to date of call.

-14 -

Iltem 7.

46




Thirty days' written notice of redemption shall be given to the registered owner of the
Note. Failure to give written notice to any registered owner of the Notes or any defect therein
shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for the redemption of the Notes. All notes or
portions thereof called for redemption will cease to bear interest after the specified redemption
date, provided funds for their redemption are on deposit at the place of payment. Written notice
will be deemed completed upon transmission to the owner of record.

If selection by lot within a maturity is required, the Registrar shall designate the Notes to
be redeemed by random selection of the names of the registered owners of the entire annual
maturity until the total amount of Notes to be called has been reached.

If less than all of a maturity is called for redemption, the Issuer will notify DTC of the
particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed prior to maturity. DTC will determine by lot
the amount of each Participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each Participant
will then select by lot the beneficial ownership interests in such maturity to be redeemed. All
prepayments shall be at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Ownership of this Note may be transferred only by transfer upon the books kept for such
purpose by the City's Controller/City Treasurer, the Registrar. Such transfer on the books shall
occur only upon presentation and surrender of this Note at the office of the Registrar as
designated below, together with an assignment duly executed by the owner hereof or his duly
authorized attorney in the form as shall be satisfactory to the Registrar. Issuer reserves the right
to substitute the Registrar and Paying Agent but shall, however, promptly give notice to
registered Noteholders of such change. All notes shall be negotiable as provided in Article 8 of
the Uniform Commercial Code and Section 384.31 of the Code of lowa, subject to the provisions
for registration and transfer contained in the Note Resolution.

This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation” designated by the City for purposes of
Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

And it is hereby represented and certified that all acts, conditions and things requisite,
according to the laws and Constitution of the State of lowa, to exist, to be had, to be done, or to
be performed precedent to the lawful issue of this Note, have been existent, had, done and
performed as required by law; that provision has been made for the levy of a sufficient
continuing annual tax on all the taxable property within the territory of the Issuer for the payment
of the principal and interest of this Note as the same will respectively become due; that such
taxes have been irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment hereof, both principal and interest;
and the total indebtedness of the Issuer including this Note, does not exceed the constitutional or
statutory limitations.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Issuer by its Council, has caused this Note to be
signed by the manual or facsimile signature of its Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile
signature of its City Clerk, with the seal of the City printed or impressed hereon, and to be
authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized representative of the Registrar, the City's
Controller/City Treasurer, Cedar Falls, lowa.

-15-

Iltem 7.

47




Date of authentication: August 31, 2022

This is one of the Notes described in the within mentioned Resolution, as

registered by the City's Controller/City Treasurer

CITY'S CONTROLLER/CITY TREASURER, Registrar

By:

Authorized Signature

Registrar and Transfer Agent: City's Controller/City Treasurer
Paying Agent: City's Controller/City Treasurer

SEE REVERSE FOR CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

(Seal)

(Signature Block)

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA

By: (manual or facsimile signature)
Mayor

ATTEST:

By: (manual or facsimile signature)
City Clerk

(Information Required for Registration)

-16 -

Iltem 7.

48




ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

(Social Security or Tax Identification No. ) the
within Note and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint
attorney in fact to transfer the said Note on the books kept for registration of the within Note,
with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

(Person(s) executing this Assignment sign(s) here)

SIGNATURE)
GUARANTEED)

IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY

The signature(s) to this Power must correspond with the name(s) as written upon the face
of the certificate(s) or note(s) in every particular without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatever. Signature guarantee must be provided in accordance with the
prevailing standards and procedures of the Registrar and Transfer Agent. Such standards
and procedures may require signature to be guaranteed by certain eligible guarantor
institutions that participate in a recognized signature guarantee program.

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER

Name of Transferee(s)

Iltem 7.

Address of Transferee(s)

Social Security or Tax Identification
Number of Transferee(s)

Transferee is a(n):
Individual* Corporation

Partnership Trust

*|f the Note is to be registered in the names of multiple individual owners, the names of all such
owners and one address and social security number must be provided.

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Note, shall
be construed as though written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM - as tenants in common

TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties
JT TEN - as joint tenants with rights of survivorship and not as tenants in common

-17 -

49




IA UNIF TRANS MIN ACT - Custodian ..........
(Cust) (Minor)
Under lowa Uniform Transfers to Minors Act...................

ADDITIONAL ABBREVIATIONS MAY
ALSO BE USED THOUGH NOT IN THE ABOVE LIST

(End of form of Note)

Section 14. Loan Agreement and Closing Documents. The form of Loan Agreement in
substantially the form attached to this Resolution is hereby approved and is authorized to be
executed and issued on behalf of the Issuer by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk. The
Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver for and on
behalf of the City any other additional certificates, documents, or other papers and perform all
other acts, including without limitation the execution of all closing documents, as they may deem
necessary or appropriate in order to implement and carry out the intent and purposes of this
Resolution.

Section 15. Contract Between Issuer and Purchaser. This Resolution constitutes a
contract between said City and the purchaser of the Notes.

Section 16. Non-Arbitrage Covenants. The Issuer reasonably expects and covenants that
no use will be made of the proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Notes issued hereunder
which will cause any of the Notes to be classified as arbitrage notes within the meaning of
Sections 148(a) and (b) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States, as amended, and that
throughout the term of the Notes it will comply with the requirements of statutes and regulations
issued thereunder.

To the best knowledge and belief of the Issuer, there are no facts or circumstances that
would materially change the foregoing statements or the conclusion that it is not expected that
the proceeds of the Notes will be used in a manner that would cause the Notes to be arbitrage
notes.

Section 17. Approval of Tax Exemption Certificate. Attached hereto is a form of Tax
Exemption Certificate stating the Issuer's reasonable expectations as to the use of the proceeds of
the Notes. The form of Tax Exemption Certificate is approved. The Issuer hereby agrees to
comply with the provisions of the Tax Exemption Certificate and the provisions of the Tax
Exemption Certificate are hereby incorporated by reference as part of this Resolution. The
Director of Finance & Business Operations is hereby directed to make and insert all calculations
and determinations necessary to complete the Tax Exemption Certificate at issuance of the Notes
to certify as to the reasonable expectations and covenants of the Issuer at that date.

Section 18. Continuing Disclosure. The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that it will
comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and the
provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate are hereby incorporated by reference as part

-18-

Iltem 7.

50




of this Resolution and made a part hereof. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Resolution, failure of the Issuer to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not
be considered an event of default under this Resolution; however, any holder of the Notes or
Beneficial Owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking
specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate. For purposes of this section, "Beneficial Owner™" means any
person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to
dispose of ownership of, any Note (including persons holding Notes through nominees,
depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Notes for federal
income tax purposes.

Section 19. Additional Covenants, Representations and Warranties of the Issuer. The
Issuer certifies and covenants with the purchasers and holders of the Notes from time to time
outstanding that the Issuer through its officers, (a) will make such further specific covenants,
representations and assurances as may be necessary or advisable; (b) comply with all
representations, covenants and assurances contained in the Tax Exemption Certificate, which
Tax Exemption Certificate shall constitute a part of the contract between the Issuer and the
owners of the Notes;(c) consult with Bond Counsel (as defined in the Tax Exemption
Certificate); (d) pay to the United States, as necessary, such sums of money representing required
rebates of excess arbitrage profits relating to the Notes;(e) file such forms, statements and
supporting documents as may be required and in a timely manner; and (f) if deemed necessary or
advisable by its officers, to employ and pay fiscal agents, financial advisors, attorneys and other
persons to assist the Issuer in such compliance.

Section 20. Amendment of Resolution to Maintain Tax Exemption. This Resolution may
be amended without the consent of any owner of the Notes if, in the opinion of Bond Counsel,
such amendment is necessary to maintain tax exemption with respect to the Notes under
applicable Federal law or regulations.

Section 21. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. For the sole purpose of qualifying the
Notes as "Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations" pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal
Revenue Code of the United States, the Issuer hereby designates the Notes as qualified tax-
exempt obligations and represents that the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt
governmental and qualified 501(c)(3) obligations which will be issued during the current
calendar year will not exceed Ten (10) Million Dollars.

Section 22. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions or Ordinances. All ordinances and
resolutions and parts of ordinances and resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Section 23. Severability Clause. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Resolution be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining provisions
hereof, and this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval.

-19-

Iltem 7.

51




PASSED AND APPROVED this 15" day of August, 2022.

ATTEST:

Iltem 7.

Robert M. Green, Mayor

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk

-20 -

52




CERTIFICATE
STATE OF IOWA )
) SS
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK )

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa, do hereby certify
that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing
proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the
Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment,
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of
the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the
public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to
the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of lowa, upon reasonable
advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of
the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; | further
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of
their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the
right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this day of
, 2022.

Iltem 7.

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk
City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa

(SEAL)

02081936-1\10283-185

53




Iltem 7.

TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

of

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, ISSUER

$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022

This instrument was prepared by:

Ahlers & Cooney, P.C.
100 Court Avenue, Suite 600
Des Moines, lowa 50309
(515) 243-7611

54




Iltem 7.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

This Table of Contents is not a part of this Tax Exemption Certificate and is provided
only for convenience of reference.

I (@ 7 1 L@ I 1 SR -1-
ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS ...ttt sttt -1-
ARTICLE Il SPECIFIC CERTIFICATIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND
AGREEMENTS ...ttt bbbttt bbb -4 -
Section 2.1 Authority to Certify and EXpectations.............ccoovvvriiinieicneninesee -5-
Section 2.2 Receipts and Expenditures of Sale Proceeds ...........ccccovveveiveienieseenn. -7-
Section 2.3 PUrP0SE OF BONGS ......c.coiiiiiiieiiciiesie e -7-
Section 2.4 Facts Supporting Tax-Exemption Classification ..............c.ccceevviviernnne. -7-
Section 2.5  Facts Supporting Temporary Periods for Proceeds ..........cccccoevvirennnne -8-
Section 2.6 Resolution Funds at Restricted or Unrestricted Yield ...........cccccocevvnen. -8-
Section 2.7 Pertaining t0 Yields.......c.coooiiiiiiiiiie e -9-
Section 2.8 Reimbursement BONUS.........cooviiiiiiniiieiese e -9-
ARTICLE HIEREBATE ..ottt sttt et e sne st nteaneane e -11-
SECION 3.1 RECOIUS .ttt ettt bbb nne s -11-
Section 3.2 ReDAe FUNG ......cvoiieece e -11-
Section 3.3 EXceptions to Rebate.........ccccvcveiiiii i -11-
Section 3.4 Calculation of Rebate AMOUNL...........cccooiieiiiieiiieie e -13-
Section 3.5  Rebate Requirements and the Bond Fund.............cccccceevveiviieiicieenenn, -13-
Section 3.6 Investment of the Rebate FUNd ...........ccooveviiieiiene e -13-
Section 3.7  Payment to the United StateS...........cccoceveereiiieveeie e -14 -
LT ([ TG TR T (=T ol o] o SR -14 -
Section 3.9  Additional PAymENtS...........ccceeieiieiiiicsiese e -14 -
ARTICLE IV INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS........cov it -15-
Section 4.1 Avoidance of Prohibited Payments...........ccccoccevveveiiciicce e -15-
Section 4.2 Market Price REQUITEMENT ..........coeiiiiiiiiiiiirieeieeeee e -15-
Section 4.3 Investment in Certificates of Deposit ........ccccccevveveiiciicce e, -15-
Section 4.4 Investment Pursuant to Investment Contracts and Agreements ........... -16 -
SECHION 4.5 RECOIUS ..veivieiieeieie ettt aneene s -18 -
Section 4.6 Investments to be Legal .........coviiiiiiiiiiiee -18 -
ARTICLE V GENERAL COVENANTS ...oooieiet et -18 -
ARTICLE VI AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS ........cccccvvvvivnea. -18 -
Section 6.1  Opinion of Bond Counsel; Amendments...........ccccvevevievecvieseesieennn, -18 -
Section 6.2 Additional Covenants, AQreemENtS ........cecvevereereereesieereeeeseeseesreenns -19-
Section 6.3  Internal Revenue Service AUILS ........ccoooeiiiieiieieiie e -19-
Section 6.4 AMENAMENTS .....cveiieieeieeeece et reeae e e e neeeree e -19-
ARTICLE VII QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS.......cccoiiieienece e -19-
[ 1 1 I RSO SPSPSPSURIN 21
[ 1 1= 1 I SRRSO 25
i

55




TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA

THIS TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE made and entered into on August 31, 2022, by
the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of lowa (the "Issuer™).

INTRODUCTION

This Certificate is executed and delivered in connection with the issuance by the Issuer of
its $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds
are issued pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of
the Bonds. Such Resolution provides that the covenants contained in this Certificate constitute a
part of the Issuer's contract with the owners of the Bonds.

The Issuer recognizes that under the Code (as defined below) the tax-exempt status of the
interest received by the owners of the Bonds is dependent upon, among other things, the facts,
circumstances, and reasonable expectations of the Issuer as to future facts not in existence at this
time, as well as the observance of certain covenants in the future. The Issuer covenants that it
will take such action with respect to the Bonds as may be required by the Code, and pertinent
legal regulations issued thereunder in order to establish and maintain the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds, including the observance of all specific covenants contained in the Resolution and this
Certificate.

ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS

The following terms as used in this Certificate shall have the meanings set forth below.
The terms defined in the Resolution shall retain the meanings set forth therein when used in this
Certificate. Other terms used in this Certificate shall have the meanings set forth in the Code or
in the Regulations.

. "Annual Debt Service" means the principal of and interest on the Bonds
scheduled to be paid during a given Bond Year.

. "Bonds" means the $3,860,000 aggregate principal amount of General
Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, of the Issuer issued in registered form
pursuant to the Resolution.

. "Bond Counsel” means Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Des Moines, lowa, or an
attorney at law or a firm of attorneys of nationally recognized standing in matters
pertaining to the tax-exempt status of interest on obligations issued by states and their
political subdivisions, duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest court of any
State of the United States of America.

. "Bond Fund" means the Sinking Fund described in the Resolution.

-1-

Iltem 7.

56




. "Bond Purchase Agreement” means the binding contract in writing for the
sale of the Bonds.

. "Bond Year" as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b), means a one-year period
beginning on the day after expiration of the preceding Bond Year. The first Bond Year
shall be the one-year or shorter period beginning on the Closing Date and ending on a
principal or interest payment date, unless Issuer selects another date.

. "Bond Yield" means that discount rate which produces an amount equal to
the Issue Price of the Bonds when used in computing the present value of all payments of
principal and interest to be paid on the Bonds, using semiannual compounding on a 360-
day year as computed under Regulation 1.148-4.

. "Certificate™ means this Tax Exemption Certificate.

. "Closing™ means the delivery of the Bonds in exchange for the agreed
upon purchase price.

. "Closing Date" means the date of Closing.

. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any
statutes which replace or supplement the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

. "Computation Date" means each five-year period from the Closing Date
through the last day of the fifth and each succeeding fifth Bond Year.

. "Excess Earnings" means the amount earned on all Nonpurpose
Investments minus the amount which would have been earned if such Nonpurpose
Investments were invested at a rate equal to the Bond Yield, plus any income attributable
to such excess.

. "Final Bond Retirement Date" means the date on which the Bonds are
actually paid in full.

. "Governmental Obligations™ means direct general obligations of, or
obligations the timely payment of the principal of and interest on which is
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States.

. "Gross Proceeds" as defined in Regulation 1.148-I(b), means any Proceeds
of the Bonds and any replacement proceeds (as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(c)) of the
Bonds.

. "Gross Proceeds Funds™ means the Project Fund, Proceeds held to pay
cost of issuance, and any other fund or account held for the benefit of the owners of the
Bonds or containing Gross Proceeds of the Bonds except the Bond Fund and the Rebate
Fund.

Iltem 7.

57




. "Issue Price" as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b) and (f)(2), means the
price determined pursuant to the Special Rule for Competitive Sales in accordance with
Regulation 1.148-1(f)(2)(iii). The Issuer hereby elects to utilize the Special Rule for
Competitive Sales and treats the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public as
of the sale date as the issue price of the Bonds. The Purchasers have certified the Issue
Price to be not more than $4,123,826.65, as set forth in Exhibit A.

. "Issuer"” means the City of Cedar Falls, a municipal corporation in the
County of Black Hawk, State of lowa.

. "Minor Portion of the Bonds", as defined in Regulation 1.148-2(g), means
the lesser of five (5) percent of Proceeds or $100,000. The Minor Portion of the Bonds is
computed to be $100,000.

. "Nonpurpose Investments" means any investment property which is
acquired with Gross Proceeds and is not acquired to carry out the governmental purpose
of the Bonds, and may include but is not limited to U.S. Treasury bonds, corporate bonds,
or certificates of deposit.

. "Proceeds" as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b), means Sale Proceeds,
investment proceeds and transferred proceeds of the Bonds.

. "Project” means the City capital projects, including opening, widening,
extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways, avenues, alleys
and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and replacement of dead or
diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street
improvements, bridges, grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition,
installation, and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, sanitary
sewers, water service lines, street lighting, and traffic control devices, and the acquisition
of any real estate needed for any of the foregoing purposes; and equipping the fire
department; City capital projects, including acquisition, construction, reconstruction,
enlargement, improvement, and equipping of City facilities, including camera
installation, replacement and maintenance, and a finance system; and expanded public
infrastructure, related amenities and site improvements; and City capital projects,
including acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, drainage
enhancements, grading and terracing, slope stabilization and protection, and equipping of
recreational trails and parks associated with the Cedar River Recreation Project including
sums already expended that meet the requirements of Section 2.8 hereof, as more fully
described in the Resolution.

. "Project Fund™ shall mean the fund required to be established by the
Resolution for the deposit of the Proceeds of the Bonds.

. "Purchasers™ means Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. of Milwaukee,
Wisconsin, constituting the initial purchasers of the Bonds from the Issuer.

. "Rebate Amount” means the amount computed as described in this
Certificate.

Iltem 7.

58




. "Rebate Fund" means the fund to be created, if necessary, pursuant to this
Certificate.
. "Rebate Payment Date" means a date chosen by the Issuer which is not

more than 60 days following each Computation Date or the Final Bond Retirement Date.

. "Regulations™ means the Income Tax Regulations, amendments and
successor provisions promulgated by the Department of the Treasury under Sections 103,
148 and 149 of the Code, or other Sections of the Code relating to "arbitrage bonds",
including without limitation Regulations 1.148-1 through 1.148-11, 1.149(b)-1, 1.149-
d(1), 1.150-1 and 1.150-2.

. "Replacement Proceeds™ include, but are not limited to, sinking funds,
amounts that are pledged as security for an issue, and amounts that are replaced because
of a sufficiently direct nexus to a governmental purpose of an issue.

. "Resolution™ means the resolution of the Issuer adopted on August 15,
2022, authorizing the issuance of the Bonds.

. "Sale Proceeds" as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b), means any amounts
actually or constructively received from the sale of the Bonds, including amounts used to
pay underwriter's discount or compensation and accrued interest other than pre-issuance
accrued interest.

. "Sinking Fund" means the Bond Fund.

. "SLGS" means demand deposit Treasury securities of the State and Local
Government Series.

. "Tax Exempt Obligations™ means bonds or other obligations the interest
on which is excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof under Section 103 of
the Code and include certain regulated investment companies, stock in tax-exempt mutual
funds and demand deposit SLGS.

. "Taxable Obligations" means all investment property, obligations or
securities other than Tax Exempt Obligations.

. "Verification Certificate” means the certificate attached to this Certificate
as Exhibit A, setting forth the offering prices at which the Purchaser will reoffer and sell
the Bonds to the public.

ARTICLE II

SPECIFIC CERTIFICATIONS, REPRESENTATIONS
AND AGREEMENTS

The Issuer hereby certifies, represents and agrees as follows:

Iltem 7.

59




Section 2.1  Authority to Certify and Expectations

@ The undersigned officer of the Issuer along with other officers of the
Issuer, are charged with the responsibility of issuing the Bonds.

(b) This Certificate is being executed and delivered in part for the purposes
specified in Section 1.148-2(b)(2) of the Regulations and is intended (among other
purposes) to establish reasonable expectations of the Issuer at this time.

(© The Issuer has not been notified of any disqualification or proposed
disqualification of it by the Commissioner of the Internal Revenue Service as a bond
issuer which may certify bond issues under Section 1.148-2(b)(2) of the Regulations.

(d) The certifications, representations and agreements set forth in this Article
Il are made on the basis of the facts, estimates and circumstances in existence on the date
hereof, including the following: (1) with respect to amounts expected to be received from
delivery of the Bonds, amounts actually received, (2) with respect to payments of
amounts into various funds or accounts, review of the authorizations or directions for
such payments made by the Issuer pursuant to the Resolution and this Certificate, (3)
with respect to the Issue Price, the certifications of the Purchasers as set forth in the
Verification Certificate, (4) with respect to expenditure of the Proceeds of the Bonds,
actual expenditures and reasonable expectations of the Issuer as to when the Proceeds
will be spent for purposes of the Project, (5) with respect to Bond Yield, review of the
Verification Certificate, and (6) with respect to the amount of governmental and qualified
501(c)(3) bonds to be issued during the calendar year, the budgeting and present planning
of Issuer. The Issuer has no reason to believe such facts, estimates or circumstances are
untrue or incomplete in any material way.

(e) To the best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned officer of the
Issuer, there are no facts, estimates or circumstances that would materially change the
representations, certifications or agreements set forth in this Certificate, and the
expectations herein set out are reasonable.

()] No arrangement exists under which the payment of principal or interest on
the Bonds would be directly or indirectly guaranteed by the United States or any agency
or instrumentality thereof.

(9) After the expiration of any applicable temporary periods, and excluding
investments in a bona fide debt service fund or reserve fund, not more than five percent
(5%) of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be (a) used to make loans which are guaranteed
by the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or (b) invested in federally
insured deposits or accounts.

(h) The Issuer will file with the Internal Revenue Service in a timely fashion
Form 8038-G, Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations with
respect to the Bonds and such other reports required to comply with the Code and
applicable Regulations.

Iltem 7.

60




Q) The Issuer will take no action which would cause the Bonds to become
"private activity bonds" as defined in Section 141 (a) of the Code, including any use of
the Project by any person other than a governmental unit if such use will be by other than
a member of the general public. None of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used directly
or indirectly to make or finance loans to any person other than a governmental unit.

() The Issuer will make no change in the nature or purpose of the Project
except as provided in Section 6.1 hereof.

(K) Except as provided in the Resolution, the Issuer will not establish any
sinking fund, bond fund, reserve fund, debt service fund or other fund reasonably
expected to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds (other than the Bond Fund and any
Reserve Fund), exercise its option to redeem Bonds prior to maturity or effect a refunding
of the Bonds.

() No bonds or other obligations of the Issuer (1) were sold in the 15 days
preceding the date of sale of the Bonds, (2) were sold or will be sold within the 15 days
after the date of sale of the Bonds, (3) have been delivered in the past 15 days or (4) will
be delivered in the next 15 days pursuant to a common plan of financing for the issuance
of the Bonds and payable out of substantially the same source of revenues.

(m)  None of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used directly or indirectly to
replace funds of the Issuer used directly or indirectly to acquire obligations having a yield
higher than the Bond Yield.

(n) No portion of the Bonds is issued for the purpose of investing such portion
at a higher yield than the Bond Yield.

(o) The Issuer does not expect that the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used in a
manner that would cause them to be "arbitrage bonds" as defined in Section 148(a) of the
Code. The Issuer does not expect that the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used in a
manner that would cause the interest on the Bonds to be includible in the gross income of
the owners of the Bonds under the Code. The Issuer will not intentionally use any
portion of the Proceeds to acquire higher yielding investments.

(p)  The Issuer will not use the Proceeds of the Bonds to exploit the difference
between tax-exempt and taxable interest rates to obtain a material financial advantage.

(@  The Issuer has not issued more Bonds, issued the Bonds earlier, or allowed
the Bonds to remain outstanding longer than is reasonably necessary to accomplish the
governmental purposes of the Bonds and in fact, the Bonds will not remain outstanding
longer than 120% of the economic useful life of the assets financed with the Proceeds of
the Bonds.

(n The Bonds will not be Hedge Bonds as described in Section 149(g)(3) of
the Code because the Issuer reasonably expects that it will meet the Expenditure test set
forth in Section 2.5(b) hereof and that 50% or more of the Proceeds will not be invested

Iltem 7.

61




in Nonpurpose Investments having a substantially guaranteed yield for four or more
years.

Except for costs of issuance, all Sale Proceeds and investment earnings thereon will be
expended for costs of the type that would be chargeable to capital accounts under the Code
pursuant to federal income tax principles if the Issuer were treated as a corporation subject to
federal income taxation.

Section 2.2  Receipts and Expenditures of Sale Proceeds

Sale Proceeds (par plus re-offering premium of $263,826.65), less underwriter's discount
of $39,096.25, received at Closing are expected to be deposited and expended as follows:

@ $44,250 representing costs of issuing the Bonds will be used within six
months of the Closing Date to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds (with any excess
remaining on deposit in the Project Fund); and

(b) $4,040,480.40 will be deposited into the Project Fund and will be used
together with earnings thereon to pay the costs of the Project and will not exceed the
amount necessary to accomplish the governmental purposes of the Bonds.

Section 2.3 Purpose of Bonds

The Issuer is issuing the Bonds to pay the costs of City capital projects, including
opening, widening, extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways,
avenues, alleys and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and replacement of dead
or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street
improvements, bridges, grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition, installation,
and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, water service
lines, street lighting, and traffic control devices, and the acquisition of any real estate needed for
any of the foregoing purposes; and equipping the fire department; City capital projects, including
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of City
facilities, including camera installation, replacement and maintenance, and a finance system; and
expanded public infrastructure, related amenities and site improvements; and City capital
projects, including acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, drainage
enhancements, grading and terracing, slope stabilization and protection, and equipping of
recreational trails and parks associated with the Cedar River Recreation Project.

Section 2.4  Facts Supporting Tax-Exemption Classification

Governmental Bonds

Private Business Use/Private Security or Payment Tests

The Bonds are considered to be governmental bonds, not subject to the provisions
of the alternate minimum tax. The Proceeds will be used for the purposes described in
Section 2.3 hereof. These bonds are not private activity bonds because no amount of
Proceeds of the Bonds is to be used in a trade or business carried on by a non-

-7-

Iltem 7.

62




governmental unit. Rather, the Proceeds will be used to finance the general government
operations and facilities of the Issuer described in Section 2.3 hereof. None of the
payment of principal or interest on the Bonds will be derived from, or secured by, money
or property used in a trade or business of a non-governmental unit. In addition, none of
the governmental operations or facilities of the Issuer being financed with the Proceeds of
the Bonds are subject to any lease, management contract or other similar arrangement or
to any arrangement for use other than as by the general public.

Private Loan Financing Test

No amount of Proceeds of the Bonds is to be used directly or indirectly to make or
finance loans to persons other than governmental units.

Section 2.5  Facts Supporting Temporary Periods for Proceeds

@ Time Test. Not later than six months after the Closing Date, the Issuer
will incur a substantial binding obligation to a third party to expend at least 5% of the net
Sale Proceeds of the Bonds.

(b) Expenditure Test. Not less than 85% of the net Sale Proceeds will be
expended for Project costs, including the reimbursement of other funds expended to date,
within a three-year temporary period from the Closing Date.

(© Due Diligence Test. Not later than six months after Closing, work on the
Project will have commenced and will proceed with due diligence to completion.

(d) Proceeds of the Bonds representing less than six months accrued interest
on the Bonds will be spent within six months of this date to pay interest on the Bonds,
and will be invested without restriction as to yield for a temporary period not in excess of
six months.

Section 2.6  Resolution Funds at Restricted or Unrestricted Yield

@ Proceeds of the Bonds will be held and accounted for in the manner
provided in the Resolution. The Issuer has not and does not expect to create or establish
any other bond fund, reserve fund, or similar fund or account for the Bonds. The Issuer
has not and will not pledge any moneys or Taxable Obligations in order to pay debt
service on the Bonds or restrict the use of such moneys or Taxable Obligations so as to
give reasonable assurances of their availability for such purposes.

(b) Any monies which are invested beyond a temporary period are expected to
constitute less than a major portion of the Bonds or to be restricted for investment at a
yield not greater than one-eighth of one percent above the Bond Yield.

(c) The Issuer has established and will use the Bond Fund primarily to
achieve a proper matching of revenues and debt service within each Bond Year and the
Issuer will apply moneys deposited into the Bond Fund to pay the principal of and
interest on the Bonds. Such Fund will be depleted at least once each Bond Year except

-8-

Iltem 7.

63




for a reasonable carryover amount. The carryover amount will not exceed the greater of
(1) one year's earnings on the Bond Fund or (2) one-twelfth of Annual Debt Service. The
Issuer will spend moneys deposited from time to time into such fund within 13 months
after the date of deposit. Revenues, intended to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds,
will be deposited into the Bond Fund as set forth in the Resolution. The Issuer will spend
interest earned on moneys in such fund not more than 12 months after receipt.
Accordingly, the Issuer will treat the Bond Fund as a bona fide debt service fund as
defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b).

Investment of amounts on deposit in the Bond Fund will not be subject to
arbitrage rebate requirements as the Bonds meet the safe harbor set forth in Regulation
1.148-3(k), because the average annual debt service on the Bonds will not exceed
$2,500,000, the Bonds meet the safe harbor set forth in Code Section 148(f)(A)(4)(ii)
because the Bonds are not private activity bonds, the average maturity of the issue
(determined in accordance with Code Section 147(b)(2)(A)) is at least 5 years and the
rates of interest on the bonds which are part of the issue do not vary during the term of
the issue, and the Bonds are expected to meet one or more of the spending exemptions
from rebate as provided in Section 3.3 hereof.

(d) The Minor Portion of the Bonds will be invested without regard to yield.

Section 2.7  Pertaining to Yields

@ The purchase price of all Taxable Obligations to which restrictions apply
under this Certificate as to investment yield or rebate of Excess Earnings, if any, has been
and shall be calculated using (i) the price taking into account discount, premium and
accrued interest, as applicable, actually paid or (ii) the fair market value if less than the
price actually paid and if such Taxable Obligations were not purchased directly from the
United States Treasury. The Issuer will acquire all such Taxable Obligations directly
from the United States Treasury or in an arm's length transaction without regard to any
amounts paid to reduce the yield on such Taxable Obligations. The Issuer will not pay or
permit the payment of any amounts (other than to the United States) to reduce the yield
on any Taxable Obligations. Obligations pledged to the payment of debt service on the
Bonds, or deposited into any reserve fund after they have been acquired by the Issuer will
be treated as though they were acquired for their fair market value on the date of such
pledge or deposit. Obligations on deposit in any reserve fund on the Closing Date shall
be treated as if acquired for their fair market value on the Closing Date.

(b) Quialified guarantees have not been used in computing yield.

(©) The Bond Yield has been computed as not less than 2.685710 percent.
This Bond Yield has been computed on the basis of a purchase price for the Bonds equal
to the Issue Price.

Section 2.8  Reimbursement Bonds

@ Not later than 60 days after payment of Original Expenditures, the Issuer
has adopted an Official Intent and has declared its intention to make a Reimbursement

-9-

Iltem 7.

64




Allocation of Original Expenditures incurred in connection with Project Segment(s) from
proceeds of the Reimbursement Bonds.

(b) The Reimbursement Allocation will occur on or before the later of (i)
eighteen months after the Original Expenditures are paid or (ii) eighteen months after the
first Project Segment is placed in service, but in no event more than three years after the
Original Expenditures are paid.

(c) No other Reimbursement Allocation will be made except for Preliminary
Expenditures.

(d) The Reimbursement Allocation has not been undertaken to avoid, in
whole or in part, arbitrage yield restrictions or arbitrage rebate requirements and will not
employ an abusive arbitrage device under Regulation 1.148-10.

(e Within one year of the Closing Date, the Reimbursement Allocation will
not be used in a manner that results in the creation of replacement proceeds, as defined in
Regulation 1.148-1.

U] For purposes of Section 2.8, the following terms shall have the meanings
set forth below:

1) "Official Intent” means a declaration of intent described under
Regulation 1.150-2 to reimburse Original Expenditures with the proceeds of the
Bonds.

(2 "Original Expenditure” means an expenditure for a governmental
purpose that is originally paid from a source other than the Reimbursement
Bonds.

3) "Preliminary Expenditures”, as defined in Regulation 1.150-
2(f)(2), means architectural, engineering, surveying, soil tests, Reimbursement
Bond issuance costs, and similar costs incurred prior to commencement of
construction, rehabilitation or acquisition of a Project Segment which do not
exceed 20% of the Issue Price of the portion of the Bonds that finances the Project
Segment for which they were incurred.

4) "Project Segment” means the costs, described in an Official Intent
of the Issuer, incurred prior to the Closing Date to acquire, construct, or improve
land, buildings or equipment excluding current operating expenses but including
costs of issuing the Reimbursement Bonds.

(5) "Reimbursement Allocation™ means written evidence of the use of
Reimbursement Bond proceeds to reimburse a fund of the Issuer for Original
Expenditures paid or advanced prior to the Closing Date and incurred in
connection with a Project Segment.

-10 -

Iltem 7.

65




(6) "Reimbursement Bonds" means the portion of the Bonds which are
allocated to reimburse the Original Expenditures paid prior to the Closing Date
and incurred in connection with a Project Segment.

ARTICLE IlI

REBATE
Section 3.1  Records

Sale Proceeds of the Bonds will be held and accounted for in the manner provided in the
Resolution. The Issuer will maintain adequate records for funds created by the Resolution and
this Certificate including all deposits, withdrawals, transfers from, transfers to, investments,
reinvestments, sales, purchases, redemptions, liquidations and use of money or obligations until
six years after the Final Bond Retirement Date.

Section 3.2  Rebate Fund

@ In the Resolution, the Issuer has covenanted to pay to the United States the
Rebate Amount, an amount equal to the Excess Earnings on the Gross Proceeds Funds, if
any, at the times and in the manner required or permitted and subject to stated special
rules and allowable exceptions.

(b) The Issuer may establish a fund pursuant to the Resolution and this
Certificate which is herein referred to as the Rebate Fund. The Issuer will invest and
expend amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund in accordance with this Certificate.

(©) Moneys in the Rebate Fund shall be held by the Issuer or its designee and,
subject to Sections 3.4, 3.5 and 6.1 hereof, shall be held for future payment to the United
States as contemplated under the provisions of this Certificate and shall not constitute
part of the trust estate held for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds or the Issuer.

(d) The Issuer will pay to the United States from legally available money of
the Issuer (whether or not such available money is on deposit in any fund or account
related to the Bonds) any amount which is required to be paid to the United States.

Section 3.3  Exceptions to Rebate

The Issuer reasonably expects that the Bonds are eligible for one or more exceptions from
the arbitrage rebate rules set forth in the Regulations. If any Proceeds are ineligible, or become
ineligible, for an exception to the arbitrage rebate rules, the Issuer will comply with the
provisions of this Article I1l. A description of the applicable rebate exception(s) is as follows:

. $5,000,000 Small Issuer Exception

The reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt bonds (other than private activity
bonds) which will be issued by the Issuer and all subordinate entities of the Issuer during the
calendar year will not exceed $5,000,000.

-11 -

Iltem 7.

66




. Eighteen-Month Exception

The Gross Proceeds of the Bonds are expected to be expended for the governmental
purposes for which the Bonds were issued in accordance with the following schedule:

1) 15 percent spent within six months of the Closing Date;
2) 60 percent spent within one year of the Closing Date;

3) 100 percent spent within eighteen months of the Closing Date (subject to 5
percent retainage for not more than one year).

In any event, the Issuer expects that the 5% reasonable retainage will be spent within 30 months
of the Closing Date. For purposes of determining compliance with the six-month and twelve-
month spending periods, the amount of investment earnings included shall be based on the
Issuer's reasonable expectations that the average annual interest rate on investments will be not
more than 2%. For purposes of determining compliance with the eighteen-month spending
period, the amount of investment earnings included shall be based on actual earnings. If the
Issuer fails to meet the foregoing expenditure schedule, the Issuer shall comply with the arbitrage
rebate requirements of the Code.

. Election to Treat as Construction Bonds.

The Issuer reasonably expects that more than 75 percent of the "available construction
proceeds” ("ACP") of the Bonds, as defined in Section 148(f)(4)(C)(vi) of the Code, will be used
for construction expenditures. ACP includes the issue price of the issue plus the earnings on
such issue. Not less than the following percentages of the ACP will be spent within the
following periods:

1) 10 percent spent within six months of the Closing Date;
2) 45 percent spent within one year of the Closing Date;
3) 75 percent spent within eighteen months of the Closing Date;

4) 100 percent spent within two years of the Closing Date (subject to 5
percent retainage for not more than one year).

In any event, the Issuer expects that the 5% reasonable retainage will be spent within a three-year
period beginning on the Closing Date. A failure to spend an amount that does not exceed the
lesser of (i) 3% of the issue price or (ii) $250,000, is disregarded if the Issuer exercises due
diligence to complete the Project.

. Election with respect to future earnings

Pursuant to Section 1.148-7(f)(2) of the Regulations, the Issuer elects to use actual
investment earnings of the ACP in determining compliance with the above schedule.

-12 -

Iltem 7.

67




If the Issuer fails to meet the foregoing expenditure schedule, the Issuer shall comply
with the arbitrage rebate requirements of the Code.

Section 3.4  Calculation of Rebate Amount

@ As soon after each Computation Date as practicable, the Issuer shall, if
necessary, calculate and determine the Excess Earnings on the Gross Proceeds Funds (the
"Rebate Amount™). All calculations and determinations with respect to the Rebate
Amount will be made on the basis of actual facts as of the Computation Date and
reasonable expectations as to future events.

(b) If the Rebate Amount exceeds the amount currently on deposit in the
Rebate Fund, the Issuer may deposit an amount in the Rebate Fund such that the balance
in the Rebate Fund after such deposit equals the Rebate Amount. If the amount in the
Rebate Fund exceeds the Rebate Amount, the Issuer may withdraw such excess amount
provided that such withdrawal can be made from amounts originally transferred to the
Rebate Fund and not from earnings thereon, which may not be transferred, and only if
such withdrawal may be made without liquidating investments at a loss.

Section 3.5  Rebate Requirements and the Bond Fund

It is expected that the Bond Fund described in the Resolution and Section 2.6(c) of this
Certificate will be treated as a bona fide debt service fund as defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b).
As such, any amount earned during a Bond Year on the Bond Fund and amounts earned on such
amounts, if allocated to the Bond Fund, will not be taken into account in calculating the Rebate
Amount for the reasons outlined in Section 2.6(c) hereof. However, should the Bond Fund cease
to be treated as a bona fide debt service fund, the Bond Fund will become subject to the rebate
requirements set forth in Section 3.4 hereof.

Section 3.6  Investment of the Rebate Fund

@ Immediately upon a transfer to the Rebate Fund, the Issuer may invest all
amounts in the Rebate Fund not already invested and held in the Rebate Fund, to the
extent possible, in (1) SLGS, such investments to be made at a yield of not more than
one-eighth of one percent above the Bond Yield, (2) Tax Exempt Obligations, (3) direct
obligations of the United States or (4) certificates of deposit of any bank or savings and
loan association. All investments in the Rebate Fund shall be made to mature not later
than the next Rebate Payment Date.

(b) If the Issuer invests in SLGS, the Issuer shall file timely subscription
forms for such securities (if required). To the extent possible, amounts received from
maturing SLGS shall be reinvested immediately in zero yield SLGS maturing on or
before the next Rebate Payment Date.

-13-

Iltem 7.

68




Iltem 7.

Section 3.7  Payment to the United States

@ On each Rebate Payment Date, the Issuer will pay to the United States at
least ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount less a computation credit of $1,000 per
Bond Year for which the payment is made.

(b) The Issuer will pay to the United States not later than sixty (60) days after
the Final Bond Retirement Date all the rebatable arbitrage as of such date and any income
attributable to such rebatable arbitrage as described in Regulation 1.148-3(f)(2).

(© If necessary, on each Rebate Payment Date, the Issuer will mail a check to
the Internal Revenue Service Center, Ogden, UT 84201. Each payment shall be
accompanied by a copy of Form 8038-T, Arbitrage Rebate, filed with respect to the
Bonds or other information reporting form as is required to comply with the Code and
applicable Regulations.

Section 3.8  Records

@ The Issuer will keep and retain adequate records with respect to the
Bonds, the Gross Proceeds Funds, the Bond Fund, and the Rebate Fund until six years
after the Final Bond Retirement Date. Such records shall include descriptions of all
calculations of amounts transferred to the Rebate Fund, if any, and descriptions of all
calculations of amounts paid to the United States as required by this Certificate. Such
records will also show all amounts earned on moneys invested in such funds, and the
actual dates and amounts of all principal, interest and redemption premiums (if any) paid
on the Bonds.

(b) Records relating to the investments in such Funds shall completely
describe all transfers, deposits, disbursements and earnings including:

1) a complete list of all investments and reinvestments of amounts in
each such Fund including, if applicable, purchase price, purchase date, type of
security, accrued interest paid, interest rate, dated date, principal amount, date of
maturity, interest payment dates, date of liquidation, receipt upon liquidation,
market value of such investment on the Final Bond Retirement Date if held by the
Issuer on the Final Bond Retirement Date, and market value of the investment on
the date pledged to the payment of the Bonds or the Closing Date if different from
the purchase date.

2 the amount and source of each payment to, and the amount,
purpose and payee of each payment from, each such Fund.

Section 3.9  Additional Payments

The Issuer hereby agrees to pay to the United States from legally available money of the
Issuer (whether or not such available money is on deposit in any fund or account related to the
Bonds) any amount which is required to be paid to the United States, but which is not available
in a fund related to the Bonds for transfer to the Rebate Fund or payment to the United States.

-14- 69




ARTICLE IV

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

Section 4.1  Avoidance of Prohibited Payments

The Issuer will not enter into any transaction that reduces the amount required to be
deposited into the Rebate Fund or paid to the United States because such transaction results in a
smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the transaction had been at arm's length
and had the Bond Yield not been relevant to either party. The Issuer will not invest or direct the
investment of any funds in a manner which reduces an amount required to be paid to the United
States because such transaction results in a small profit or larger loss than would have resulted if
the transaction had been at arm's length and had the Bond Yield not been relevant to the Issuer.
In particular, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in the Resolution, the
Issuer will not invest or direct the investment of any funds in a manner which would violate any
provision of this Article IV.

Section 4.2  Market Price Requirement

@ The Issuer will not purchase or direct the purchase of Taxable Obligations
for more than the then available market price for such Taxable Obligations. The Issuer
will not sell, liquidate or direct the sale or liquidation of Taxable Obligations for less than
the then available market price.

(b) For purposes of this Certificate, United States Treasury obligations
purchased directly from the United States Treasury will be deemed to be purchased at the
market price.

Section 4.3  Investment in Certificates of Deposit

@ Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in the
Resolution, the Issuer will invest or direct the investment of funds on deposit in the
Reserve Fund, any other Gross Proceeds Fund, the Bond Fund, and the Rebate Fund, in a
certificate of deposit of a bank or savings bank which is permitted by law and by the
Resolution only if the purchase price of such a certificate of deposit is treated as its fair
market value on the purchase date and if the yield on the certificate of deposit is not less
than (1) the yield on reasonably comparable direct obligations of the United States; and
(2) the highest yield that is published or posted by the provider to be currently available
from the provider on reasonably comparable certificates of deposit offered to the public.

(b) The certificate of deposit described in paragraph 4.3(a) above must be
executed by a dealer who maintains an active secondary market in comparable
certificates of deposit and must be based on actual trades adjusted to reflect the size and
term of that certificate of deposit and the stability and reputation of the bank or savings
bank issuing the certificate of deposit.

-15-

Iltem 7.

70




Iltem 7.

Section 4.4  Investment Pursuant to Investment Contracts and Agreements

The Issuer will invest or direct the investment of funds on deposit in the Gross Proceeds
Funds, the Bond Fund, and the Rebate Fund pursuant to an investment contract (including a
repurchase agreement) only if all of the following requirements are satisfied:

@) The Issuer makes a bona fide solicitation for the purchase of the
investment. A bona fide solicitation is a solicitation that satisfies all of the following
requirements:

1) The bid specifications are in writing and are timely forwarded to
potential providers.

2 The bid specifications include all material terms of the bid. A term
is material if it may directly or indirectly affect the yield or the cost of the
investment.

(3)  The bid specifications include a statement notifying potential
providers that submission of a bid is a representation that the potential provider
did not consult with any other potential provider about its bid, that the bid was
determined without regard to any other formal or informal agreement that the
potential provider has with the issuer or any other person (whether or not in
connection with the Bonds), and that the bid is not being submitted solely as a
courtesy to the issuer or any other person for purposes of satisfying the
requirements of paragraph (d)(6)(iii)(B)(1) or (2) of Section 1.148-5 of the
Regulations.

4) The terms of the bid specifications are commercially reasonable.
A term is commercially reasonable if there is a legitimate business purpose for the
term other than to increase the purchase price or reduce the yield of the
investment.

(5) For purchases of guaranteed investment contracts only, the terms
of the solicitation take into account the Issuer’s reasonably expected deposit and
drawdown schedule for the amounts to be invested.

(6) All potential providers have an equal opportunity to bid and no
potential provider is given the opportunity to review other bids (i.e., a last look)
before providing a bid.

@) At least three reasonably competitive providers are solicited for
bids. A reasonably competitive provider is a provider that has an established
industry reputation as a competitive provider of the type of investments being
purchased.

(b) The bids received by the Issuer meet all of the following requirements:

-16 - -




Iltem 7.

1) The Issuer receives at least three bids from providers that the
Issuer solicited under a bona fide solicitation meeting the requirements of
paragraph (d)(6)(iii)(A) of Section 1.148-5 of the Regulations and that do not
have a material financial interest in the issue. A lead underwriter in a negotiated
underwriting transaction is deemed to have a material financial interest in the
issue until 15 days after the issue date of the issue. In addition, any entity acting
as a financial advisor with respect to the purchase of the investment at the time
the bid specifications are forwarded to potential providers has a material financial
interest in the issue. A provider that is a related party to a provider that has a
material financial interest in the issue is deemed to have a material financial
interest in the issue.

(2 At least one of the three bids described in paragraph
(d)(6)(ii1)(B)(1) of Section 1.148-5 of the Regulations is from a reasonably
competitive provider, within the meaning of paragraph (d)(6)(iii)(A)(7) of Section
1.148-5 of the Regulations.

3) If the Issuer uses an agent to conduct the bidding process, the agent
did not bid to provide the investment.

(© The winning bid meets the following requirements:

1) Guaranteed investment contracts. If the investment is a guaranteed
investment contract, the winning bid is the highest yielding bona fide bid
(determined net of any broker's fees).

(2 Other investments. If the investment is not a guaranteed
investment contract, the winning bid is the lowest cost bona fide bid (including
any broker's fees).

(d) The provider of the investments or the obligor on the guaranteed
investment contract certifies the administrative costs that it pays (or expects to pay, if
any) to third parties in connection with supplying the investment.

(e) The Issuer will retain the following records with the bond documents until
three years after the last outstanding bond is redeemed:

1) For purchases of guaranteed investment contracts, a copy of the
contract, and for purchases of investments other than guaranteed investment
contracts, the purchase agreement or confirmation.

(2)  The receipt or other record of the amount actually paid by the
Issuer for the investments, including a record of any administrative costs paid by
the Issuer, and the certification under paragraph (d)(6)(iii)(D) of Section 1.148-5
of the Regulations.

3) For each bid that is submitted, the name of the person and entity
submitting the bid, the time and date of the bid, and the bid results.

-17 - 79




4) The bid solicitation form and, if the terms of the purchase
agreement or the guaranteed investment contract deviated from the bid solicitation
form or a submitted bid is modified, a brief statement explaining the deviation and
stating the purpose for the deviation.

(5) For purchases of investments other than guaranteed investment
contracts, the cost of the most efficient portfolio of State and Local Government
Series Securities, determined at the time that the bids were required to be
submitted pursuant to the terms of the bid specifications.

Section 4.5  Records

The Issuer will maintain records of all purchases, sales, liquidations, investments,
reinvestments, redemptions, disbursements, deposits, and transfers of amounts on deposit.

Section 4.6  Investments to be Legal

All investments required to be made pursuant to this Certificate shall be made to the
extent permitted by law. In the event that any such investment is determined to be ultra vires, it
shall be liquidated and the proceeds thereof shall be invested in a legal investment, provided that
prior to reinvesting such proceeds, the Issuer shall obtain an opinion of Bond Counsel to the
effect that such reinvestment will not cause the Bonds to become arbitrage bonds under Sections
103, 148, 149, or any other applicable provision of the Code.

ARTICLE V
GENERAL COVENANTS

The Issuer hereby covenants to perform all acts within its power necessary to ensure that
the reasonable expectations set forth in Article Il hereof will be realized. The Issuer reasonably
expects to comply with all covenants contained in this Certificate.

ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

Section 6.1  Opinion of Bond Counsel; Amendments

The various provisions of this Certificate need not be observed and this Certificate may
be amended or supplemented at any time by the Issuer if the Issuer receives an opinion or
opinions of Bond Counsel that the failure to comply with such provisions will not cause any of
the Bonds to become "arbitrage bonds" under the Code and that the terms of such amendment or
supplement will not cause any of the Bonds to become "arbitrage bonds™ under the Code, or
otherwise cause interest on any of the Bonds to become includable in gross income for federal
income tax purposes.

-18-

Iltem 7.

73




Section 6.2  Additional Covenants, Agreements

The Issuer hereby covenants to make, execute and enter into (and to take such actions, if
any, as may be necessary to enable it to do so) such agreements as may be necessary to comply
with any changes in law or regulations in order to preserve the tax-exempt status of the Bonds to
the extent that it may lawfully do so. The Issuer further covenants (1) to impose such limitations
on the investment or use of moneys or investments related to the Bonds, (2) to make such
payments to the United States Treasury, (3) to maintain such records, (4) to perform such
calculations, and (5) to perform such other lawful acts as may be necessary to preserve the tax-
exempt status of the Bonds.

Section 6.3  Internal Revenue Service Audits

The Internal Revenue Service has not audited the Issuer regarding any obligations issued
by or on behalf of the Issuer. To the best knowledge of the Issuer, no such obligations of the
Issuer are currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service.

Section 6.4  Amendments

Except as otherwise provided in Section 6.1 hereof, all the rights, powers, duties and
obligations of the Issuer shall be irrevocable and binding upon the Issuer and shall not be subject
to amendment or modification by the Issuer.

ARTICLE VII

QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The Issuer, a "qualified small issuer,” designates the Bonds as "qualified tax exempt
obligations™ as defined in Code Section 265(b)(3) and represents that the reasonably anticipated
amount of tax-exempt governmental and qualified 501(c)(3) obligations (including for this
purpose tax exempt installment sales, lease or lease purchase agreements or other tax exempt
obligations) which will be issued during the current calendar year will not exceed ten million
dollars ($10,000,000).

In support of the foregoing, the Issuer states:

@ In the current calendar year the Issuer has issued governmental or
qualified 501(c)(3) obligations as follows:

$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022 (Covered by this certificate)

(b) The Issuer expects to issue during the remainder of the calendar year
governmental or qualified 501(c)(3) obligations as follows:

NONE

(c) The Issuer has subordinate entities or is subordinate to another entity
governed by separate governing bodies which have issued or expect to issue

-19-

Iltem 7.

74




Iltem 7.

governmental or qualified 501(c)(3) obligations on behalf of the Issuer during the
calendar year which must be aggregated under Code Section 265(b)(3)(E) as follows:

NONE

(d) The Issuer is a member of or affiliated with one or more organizations
(such as an lowa Code Chapter 28E or 28F organization or other multimember body
under which more than one governmental entity receives benefits) governed by a separate
governing body which has or expects to issue governmental or qualified 501(c)(3)
obligations during the calendar year all or a portion of which are allocable to the Issuer
under Code Section 265(b)(3)(C)(iii) as follows:

NONE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Certificate to be executed by its
duly authorized officer, all as of the day first above written.

Director of Finance & Business Operations,
City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa
(SEAL)

-20- 75




EXHIBIT "A"
$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022
ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, on behalf of Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. ("Purchaser"), hereby certifies
as set forth below with respect to the sale of the above-captioned obligations (the "Bonds").

1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price.

a) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices of the Bonds to
the Public by Purchaser are the prices listed in Schedule A (the "Expected Offering Prices™). The
Expected Offering Prices are the prices for the Maturities of the Bonds used by Purchaser in
formulating its bid to purchase the Bonds. Attached as Schedule B is a true and correct copy of
the bid provided by Purchaser to purchase the Bonds.

b) Purchaser was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to submitting
its bid.

C) The bid submitted by Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the Bonds.
2. Defined Terms.

a) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds with
different maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates,
are treated as separate Maturities.

b) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership,
association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an
Underwriter. The term "related party" for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or
more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly.

C) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for
the sale of a Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is July 18, 2022.

d) Underwriter means (i) the Purchaser or any person that agrees pursuant to a
written contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate)
to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees
pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this
paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a
selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the
Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.
Nothing in this certificate represents Purchaser’s interpretation of any laws, including
specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the
Treasury Regulations thereunder. The undersigned understands that the foregoing information

Iltem 7.

76




will be relied upon by the Issuer and its advisors with respect to certain of the representations set
forth in the Tax Exemption Certificate and with respect to compliance with the federal income
tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. in connection with rendering its
opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal
income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Bonds.

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO., INC.

By:

Name:

Dated: August 31, 2022

Iltem 7.

77




SCHEDULE A
EXPECTED OFFERING PRICES

(Attached)

Iltem 7.

78




SCHEDULEB
COPY OF UNDERWRITER’S BID

(Attached)

Iltem 7.

79




EXHIBIT "C"
CONSTRUCTION ISSUE CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that | am the Director of Finance & Business
Operations of the City of Cedar Falls. | acknowledge that this Certificate is given as the basis for
certain representations made in the Tax Exemption Certificate delivered by the City of Cedar
Falls, State of lowa (the "Issuer"), as of the date hereof, in connection with the issuance of
$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, of the Issuer (the "Bonds").

The Issuer has elected to satisfy the requirements of Code Section 148(f)(4)(C)(iv)(1)
based upon its reasonable expectations that more than 75% of the "available construction
proceeds” of the Bonds, as defined in Section 148(f)(4)(C)(vi) of the Code, are to be used for
construction expenditures with respect to property to be owned by the Issuer as a governmental
unit.

Construction expenditures means capital expenditures, as defined in Regulation 1.150-
1(b), that, on or before the date the property financed by the expenditures is placed in service, as
defined in Regulation 1.150-2(c), will be properly chargeable to or may be capitalized as part of
the basis of (1) real property, other than expenditures for the acquisition of any interest in land or
real property other than land, (2) constructed personal property as defined in Regulation 1.148-
7(9)(3), or (3) specially developed computer software as defined in Regulation 1.148-7(g)(4),
that is functionally related and subordinate to real property or constructed personal property.

As of the date of issue of the Bonds, it is my opinion that at least 75% of the available
construction proceeds of the Issue will be used for construction expenditures as defined above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto affix my official signature this 31% day of August,
2022.

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

By:

Title: Director of Finance & Business Operations

02081943-1\10283-185

Iltem 7.

80




CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate™) is executed and
delivered by the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa (the "Issuer"), in connection with the issuance
of $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022 (the "Notes") dated August
31, 2022. The Notes are being issued pursuant to a Resolution of the Issuer approved on August
15, 2022 (the "Resolution™). The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate; Interpretation. This Disclosure
Certificate is being executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Holders and
Beneficial Owners of the Notes and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in
complying with S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5). This Disclosure Certificate shall be governed by,
construed and interpreted in accordance with the Rule, and, to the extent not in conflict with the
Rule, the laws of the State. Nothing herein shall be interpreted to require more than required by
the Rule.

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this
Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Financial Information™ shall mean financial information or operating data of the
type included in the final Official Statement, provided at least annually by the Issuer pursuant to,
and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly,
to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Notes (including persons
holding Notes through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the
owner of any Notes for federal income tax purposes.

"Business Day" shall mean a day other than a Saturday or a Sunday or a day on which
banks in lowa are authorized or required by law to close.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer or any Dissemination Agent designated in
writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of such
designation.

"Financial Obligation™ shall mean a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered
into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned
debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term Financial Obligation shall not include
municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB
consistent with S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12.

"Holders" shall mean the registered holders of the Notes, as recorded in the registration
books of the Registrar.

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

Iltem 7.

81




"Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board" or "MSRB" shall mean the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board, 1300 I Street NW, Suite 1000, Washington, DC 20005.

"National Repository" shall mean the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access
website, a’k/a "EMMA" (emma.msrb.org).

"Official Statement" shall mean the Issuer's Official Statement for the Notes, dated
, 2022.

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Notes
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Notes.

"Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission
(S.E.C.) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and any guidance and procedures
thereunder published by the S.E.C., as the same may be amended from time to time.

"State" shall mean the State of lowa.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Financial Information.

a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than two
hundred seventy (270) days after the end of the Issuer's fiscal year (presently June 30th),
commencing with information for the 2021/2022 fiscal year, provide to the National
Repository an Annual Financial Information filing consistent with the requirements of
Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Financial Information filing must be
submitted in such format as is required by the MSRB (currently in "searchable PDF"
format). The Annual Financial Information filing may be submitted as a single document
or as separate documents comprising a package. The Annual Financial Information filing
may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure
Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the Issuer may be submitted
separately from the balance of the Annual Financial Information filing and later than the
date required above for the filing of the Annual Financial Information if they are not
available by that date. If the Issuer's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such
change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

b) If the Issuer is unable to provide to the National Repository the Annual
Financial Information by the date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send a notice
to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, if any, in substantially the form attached
as Exhibit A.

¢) The Dissemination Agent shall:

i. each year file Annual Financial Information with the National
Repository; and

ii. (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Issuer), file a report with
the Issuer certifying that the Annual Financial Information has been filed pursuant
to this Disclosure Certificate, stating the date it was filed.

Iltem 7.

82




Section 4. Content of Annual Financial Information. The Issuer's Annual Financial
Information filing shall contain or incorporate by reference the following:

a) The last available audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior fiscal
year, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles promulgated
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board as modified in accordance with the
governmental accounting standards promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board or as otherwise provided under State law, as in effect from time to time,
or, if and to the extent such financial statements have not been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, noting the discrepancies therefrom and the
effect thereof. If the Issuer's audited financial statements for the preceding years are not
available by the time Annual Financial Information is required to be filed pursuant to
Section 3(a), the Annual Financial Information filing shall contain unaudited financial
statements of the type included in the final Official Statement, and the audited financial
statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Financial Information when
they become available.

A table, schedule or other information prepared as of the end of the preceding fiscal year, of the
type contained in the final Official Statement under the caption "Property Valuations" (formerly
identified as "City Property Values™), "Trend of Valuations", "Larger Taxpayers", "Direct Debt",
"Indirect General Obligation Debt", "Debt Ratios", "Tax Rates", and "Levies and Tax
Collections". Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities,
which have been filed with the National Repository. The Issuer shall clearly identify each such
other document so included by reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Notes in
a timely manner not later than 10 Business Days after the day of the occurrence of the
event:

i. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
ii. Non-payment related defaults, if material;

iii. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

iv. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements relating to the Notes
reflecting financial difficulties;

v. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

vi. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS
Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the

Iltem 7.

83




tax-exempt status of the Series Notes, or material events affecting the tax-exempt
status of the Notes;

vii. Modifications to rights of Holders of the Notes, if material;

viii. Note calls (excluding sinking fund mandatory redemptions), if
material, and tender offers;

ix. Defeasances of the Notes;

X. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Notes, if material;

xi. Rating changes on the Notes;
xii. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer;

xiii. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition
involving the Issuer or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer,
other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement
to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to
any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;

xiv. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of
name of a trustee, if material,

xv. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other
similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect security
holders, if material; and

xvi. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of
terms or other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the
Issuer, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

b) Whenever the Issuer obtains the knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed
Event, the Issuer shall determine if the occurrence is subject to notice only if material,
and if so shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under
applicable federal securities laws.

c) If the Issuer determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event is
not subject to materiality, or determines such occurrence is subject to materiality and
would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Issuer shall promptly, but
not later than 10 Business Days after the occurrence of the event, file a notice of such
occurrence with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through the filing with the
National Repository.

Iltem 7.

84




Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate with respect to each Series of Notes shall terminate upon the legal
defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Notes of that Series or upon the
Issuer's receipt of an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that, because of
legislative action or final judicial action or administrative actions or proceedings, the failure of
the Issuer to comply with the terms hereof will not cause Participating Underwriters to be in
violation of the Rule or other applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate,

and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.

The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or
report prepared by the Issuer pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate. The initial Dissemination
Agent shall be the Issuer.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this
Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), 4, or 5(a),
it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a
change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of
an obligated person with respect to the Notes, or the type of business conducted;

b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of
the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the Notes, after taking into account any
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and

c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Holders of the Notes in
the same manner as provided in the Resolution for amendments to the Resolution with
the consent of Holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond
counsel, materially impair the interests of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of the Notes.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer
shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Financial Information filing, and shall
include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its
impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of
financial information or operating data being presented by the Issuer. In addition, if the
amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements,
(1) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section
5(c), and (ii) the Annual Financial Information filing for the year in which the change is made
will present a comparison or other discussion in narrative form (and also, if feasible, in
quantitative form) describing or illustrating the material differences between the financial
statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the
basis of the former accounting principles.

Iltem 7.

85




Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be
deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or
including any other information in any Annual Financial Information filing or notice of
occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate.
If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Annual Financial Information filing or
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this
Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this Certificate to update such
information or include it in any future Annual Financial Information filing or notice of
occurrence of a Listed Event.

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision
of this Disclosure Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Notes may take such
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance
by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure
Certificate. Direct, indirect, consequential and punitive damages shall not be recoverable by any
person for any default hereunder and are hereby waived to the extent permitted by law. A
default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default under the
Resolution, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of
the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure
Certificate, and the Issuer agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers,
directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may
incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder,
including the costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) of defending against any claim of
liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful
misconduct. The obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive resignation or removal
of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Notes.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of
the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and Beneficial
Owners from time to time of the Notes, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Section 13. Rescission Rights. The Issuer hereby reserves the right to rescind this
Disclosure Certificate without the consent of the Holders in the event the Rule is repealed by the
S.E.C. orisruled invalid by a federal court and the time to appeal from such decision has
expired. In the event of a partial repeal or invalidation of the Rule, the Issuer hereby reserves the
right to rescind those provisions of this Disclosure Certificate that were required by those parts
of the Rule that are so repealed or invalidated.

Iltem 7.

86




Date: 31% day of August, 2022.

ATTEST:

By:

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA

By:

Iltem 7.

Robert M. Green, Mayor

87




EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO NATIONAL REPOSITORY OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Name of Issuer: City of Cedar Falls, lowa.
Name of Note Issue: $3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022
Dated Date of Issue: August 31, 2022
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided Annual Financial
Information with respect to the above-named Notes as required by Section 3 of the Continuing

Disclosure Certificate delivered by the Issuer in connection with the Notes. The Issuer
anticipates that the Annual Financial Information will be filed by

Dated: day of , 20

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA

By:

Iltem 7.

Its:

02059918-1\10283-185

88




LOAN AGREEMENT

This Loan Agreement is entered into as of the 31 day of August, 2022, by and between
the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa (the "City") acting through its City Council (the "Council")
and Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. of Milwaukee, Wisconsin (the "Lender™). The parties agree as
follows:

1. The Lender shall loan to the City the sum of $4,084,730.40, and the City's
obligation to repay hereunder shall be evidenced by the issuance of General Obligation Capital
Loan Notes, Series 2022, in the aggregate principal amount of $3,860,000 (the "Notes™).

2. The loan proceeds shall be used to pay costs of City capital projects, including
opening, widening, extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways,
avenues, alleys and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and replacement of dead
or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street
improvements, bridges, grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition, installation,
and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, water service
lines, street lighting, and traffic control devices, and the acquisition of any real estate needed for
any of the foregoing purposes; and equipping the fire department; City capital projects, including
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of City
facilities, including camera installation, replacement and maintenance, and a finance system; and
expanded public infrastructure, related amenities and site improvements; and City capital
projects, including acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, drainage
enhancements, grading and terracing, slope stabilization and protection, and equipping of
recreational trails and parks associated with the Cedar River Recreation Project (the "Project™).
Any remaining loan proceeds, including accrued interest, if any, shall be deposited in the Note
Fund (defined in the Resolution hereinafter referred to) and shall be held therein and used, along
with other amounts therein, to pay interest on the Notes on June 1, 2023.

3. The City agrees to repay the loan and interest thereon as hereinafter provided.
The Notes, in substantially the form set forth in the Resolution hereinafter referred to, shall be
executed and delivered to the Lender to evidence the City's obligation to repay the amounts
payable hereunder. The Notes shall be dated August 31, 2022, shall bear interest payable June 1,
2023, and semiannually thereafter on the first day of June and December in each year at the
respective rates and shall mature in principal amounts in each of the respective years, as follows:

Iltem 7.

89




Principal Interest Maturity
Amount Rate June 1%
$250,000 5.000% 2024
$260,000 5.000% 2025
$275,000 5.000% 2026
$285,000 5.000% 2027
$300,000 5.000% 2028
$310,000 5.000% 2029
$325,000 5.000% 2030
$340,000 3.000% 2031
$355,000 3.000% 2032
$370,000 3.000% 2033
$385,000 3.000% 2034
$405,000 3.000% 2035
4. The Council has adopted a Resolution (the "Resolution™) authorizing and

approving the form of this Loan Agreement and providing for the issuance and securing the
payment of the Notes and establishing the terms thereof, and the Resolution is incorporated
herein by reference, and the parties agree to abide by the terms and provisions of the Resolution.
The Notes and the interest thereon shall be payable from the levy of a sufficient continuing
annual tax on all the taxable property within the territory of the City and provision has been
made in the Resolution for the levy and collection of such tax.

5. The City may borrow additional money, issue general obligation bonds or enter
into other loan agreements and issue additional Notes which are at the time of their issuance on a
parity and equality of rank with the Notes with respect to the lien and claim of such collection of
taxes thereof provided that the total indebtedness of the City including this Loan Agreement and
Notes issued hereunder does not exceed the Constitutional or statutory limitations.

6. The Lender is acquiring the Notes with the intent of making offers and sales of
the Notes to the public. The Lender agrees to comply with all federal and state securities laws
and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board, including but not limited to Rules 15¢2-12 and 10b-5, in making
offers and sales of the Notes to the public. All such information provided by the City will be true
and correct in all material respects. When the Official Statement is in a form acceptable to the
City, the City agrees to "deem final" the Official Statement for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12 and to
provide the Lender with a certification with respect thereto.

7. The Lender and the City represent and agree that no financial advisory
relationship as defined by Rule G-23 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board has existed
between them with respect to this Loan Agreement or presently exists between them with respect
to other similar matters and that no employee of the Lender is an employee or official of the
City.

Iltem 7.

90




8. This Loan Agreement is executed pursuant to the provisions of Sections 384.24A,
384.25, 384.26 and 384.28 of the Code of lowa, as amended, and shall be read and construed as
conforming to all provisions and requirements thereof.

9. The City and the Lender agree this Agreement and all documents related thereto
and referenced herein may be entered into and provided for pursuant to and in accordance with
Chapter 554D of the Code of lowa (providing for electronic execution).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto affixed our signatures all as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA
(City)

By:

Iltem 7.

Robert M. Green, Mayor
ATTEST:

By:
Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk

(SEAL)

91




02081951-1\10283-185

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO., INC. (Lender)

By:

Iltem 7.

(Signature)

(Name)

(Title)

92




DELIVERY CERTIFICATE

We the undersigned City Officials, do hereby certify that we are the officers, respectively
below indicated, of a municipal corporation in the State of lowa, known as the City of Cedar
Falls, State of lowa; that in pursuance of the provisions of Sections 384.24A, 384.25, 384.26 and
384.28, Code of lowa, there have been heretofore lawfully authorized and this day by us lawfully
executed, issued, caused to be registered, authenticated and delivered fully registered General
Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, of the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa, in the
amount of $3,860,000, dated August 31, 2022, bearing interest and maturing as follows:

Principal Interest Maturity
Amount Rate June 1%
$250,000 5.000% 2024
$260,000 5.000% 2025
$275,000 5.000% 2026
$285,000 5.000% 2027
$300,000 5.000% 2028
$310,000 5.000% 2029
$325,000 5.000% 2030
$340,000 3.000% 2031
$355,000 3.000% 2032
$370,000 3.000% 2033
$385,000 3.000% 2034
$405,000 3.000% 2035

Each of the Notes has been executed with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and the
manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk of the City.

The Notes have been delivered to DTC on behalf of:
Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. of Milwaukee, Wisconsin

and have been paid for in accordance with the terms of the contract of sale and at a price of
$4,084,730.40, and accrued interest.

We further certify that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or threatened
involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City, or the titles of the
undersigned City officers to their respective positions, or the validity of the Notes, or the power
and duty of the City to provide and apply adequate taxes for the full and prompt payment of the
principal and interest of the Notes, and that no measure or provision for the authorization or
issuance of the Notes has been repealed or rescinded.

We further certify that due provision has been made for the collection of sufficient taxes
to meet all payments coming due, whether of principal or of interest on the Note Issue; that all
payments coming due before the next collection of the tax provided for as aforesaid will be paid

Iltem 7.

93




promptly when due from cash on hand; and that the proceedings authorizing the issuance and
delivery of the Notes remain in full force and effect and have not been withdrawn, amended or
rescinded.

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, we further certify that the Official
Statement dated July 18, 2022, as of its date and the date hereof, did not and does not contain any
untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the
statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading.

We further certify that each of the officers whose signatures appear on the Notes were in
occupancy and possession of their respective offices at the time the Notes were executed and do
hereby adopt and affirm their signatures appearing in the Notes.

We further certify that the present financial condition of the Note is as follows:

Assessed and taxable value of all taxable property within

the City, except moneys and credits and tax free lands

(Year 2022/2023), according to the last completed State

and County tax lists (100% - Before Rollback) $3,735,193,238

Total general obligation bonded indebtedness of the City,
including this issue $15,710,000

All other general obligation indebtedness, (including

warrants, judgments, contracts of purchase or

lease/purchase, self-insurance or local government risk pool

obligations, loan agreements, and revenue bonds issued

under Code Section 403.9), of the City of any kind $1,591,710

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto affixed our hands at the City of Cedar
Falls, State of lowa, this 31% day of August, 2022.

Iltem 7.

Robert M. Green, Mayor

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer

(CITY SEAL)

02081945-1\10283-185

94




TRANSCRIPT CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, being first duly sworn, do hereby depose and certify that | am the duly
appointed, qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa, and that as
such Clerk I have in my possession or have access to the complete corporate records of the City
and of its Council and officials, and that | have carefully compared the transcript hereto attached
with the aforesaid corporate records and that the transcript hereto attached is a true and complete
copy of all the corporate records in relation to the authorization, issuance and disposition of
$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, of the City dated August 31,
2022, and that the transcript hereto attached contains a true and complete statement of all the
measures adopted and proceedings, acts and things had, done and performed up to the present
time, in relation to the authorization, issuance and disposition of the Notes, and that the City
Council consists of a Mayor and seven (7) Council Members, and that the offices were duly and
lawfully filled by the individuals listed in the attached transcript as of the dates and times
referred to therein.

| further certify that the City is and throughout the period of such proceedings has been
governed under the Mayor/Council form of municipal government authorized by Chapter 372,
Code of lowa, under the provisions of its charter as recorded with the Secretary of State.

| further certify that according to the records in my office, the named members of the
Council were duly and regularly elected to such office, and were, during all of the year 2022, and
now are, the legally elected, constituted and acting City Council of the City.

| further certify that no litigation is pending, prayed or threatened affecting the validity of
the Notes hereinabove referred to, nor affecting the title of any of the City officers and Council
Members to their official positions.

| further certify that all meetings of the City Council of the City at which action was
taken in connection with the Notes were open to the public at all times in accordance with a
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of
the Council and was duly given at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the
meeting by notification of the communications media having requested such notice and posted
on a bulletin board or other prominent place designated for the purpose and easily accessible to
the public at the principal office of the Council all pursuant to the provisions and in accordance
with the conditions of the local rules of the Council and Chapter 21, Code of lowa.

| further certify that no City officer or employee has any interest in the contract for the
sale of the Notes or any matter incidental thereto, according to my best knowledge and belief.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the City hereto attached this day of
, 2022, at Cedar Falls, lowa.

Iltem 7.

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk
City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa

(SEAL)

95




Finally, the below stated officers whose signatures appear hereafter are now the duly
qualified and acting officials of the City, possessed of the offices as designated below, to-wit:

Mayor:

Clerk:

Controller/City Treasurer:

Director of Finance & Business
Operations

STATE OF IOWA

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK

Subscribed and sworn to before me by Rob Green, Jacqueline Danielsen, Lisa Roeding
day of , 2022,

and Jennifer Rodenbeck on this

(SEAL)

02081946-1\10283-185

Rob Green

Iltem 7.

(Original Signature)

Jacqueline Danielsen

(Original Signature)

Lisa Roeding

(Original Signature)

Jennifer Rodenbeck

(Original Signature)

) SS
)

Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County,

lowa

96




COUNTY AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, , County Auditor of Black Hawk County, State of lowa,
hereby certify that on the day of , 2022 there was filed in my
office the Resolution of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of lowa, adopted on the
15" day of August, 2022, the Resolution authorizing execution of a Loan Agreement and
authorizing the issuance of $3,860,000 of General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022,
and levying a tax therefor, dated August 31, 2022.

Iltem 7.

(COUNTY SEAL) County Auditor of Black Hawk County
State of lowa

02081948-1\10283-185

97




Form 8038-G Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds

(Rev. October 2021)

Department of the Treasury

» Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e)
» See separate instructions.
Caution: If the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC.

Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/F8038G for instructions and the latest information.

Reporting Authority

1

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Iltem 7.

OMB No. 1545-0047

Check box if Amended Return » []

Issuer’s name 2 Issuer’s employer identification number (EIN)

42-6004332

3a Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return (see instructions)

3b Telephone number of other person shown on 3a

4 Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite 5 Report number (For IRS Use Only)

220 Clay Street | S | |
6 City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 7 Date of issue

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613 08/31/2022
8 Name of issue 9 CUSIP number

$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022 150195 4C6

10a Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information

Lisa Roedlng, Controller/City Treasurer

10b Telephone number of officer or other
employee shown on 10a

(319) 273-8600

Type of Issue (Enter the issue price.) See the instructions and attach schedule.

Educatlon 11
12 Health and hospltal 12
13 Transportation 13
14  Public safety . 14
15  Environment (including sewage bonds) 15
16  Housing 16
17  Utilities . 17
18  Other. Describe > 18
19a If bonds are TANs or RANSs, check only box 19a » [
b If bonds are BANs, check only box 19b . » [
20 If bonds are in the form of a lease or installment sale check box » [
Pa Description of Bonds. Complete for the entire issue for Wh|ch th|s form is be|ng filed.
(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price & ,frtiiegtfgi?:ﬁ);on a\/(:r)a\sl:lnggtticriity (e) Yield
21 06/01/2035 $ 4,123,826.65 $ 3,860,000 7.640 years 2.685710 %
Pa Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)
22  Proceeds used for accrued interest . . 22 -0-
23  Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21 column (b)) e 23 4,123,826.65
24  Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount) 24 83,346.25
25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement . . . . . 25 -0-
26 Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund . 26 -0-
27  Proceeds used to refund prior tax-exempt bonds. Complete PartV . . . 27 -0-
28 Proceeds used to refund prior taxable bonds. Complete PartV . . . . 28 -0-
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . 29 83,346.25
Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract I|ne 29 from I|ne 23 and enter amount here) 30 4,040,480.40
Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.
31  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the tax-exempt bonds to be refunded . | 2 years
32 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the taxable bonds to be refunded | 2 years
33  Enter the last date on which the refunded tax-exempt bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY) . >
34  Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued » (MM/DD/YYYY)
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat. No. 63773S Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)

98




Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)
Part Vi Miscellaneous

35
36a

b
c

37

38a

o 0T

39
40
41a

42
43

44
45a

b

Iltem 7.

Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141(b)(5) .

Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract

(GIC). See instructions .
Enter the final maturity date of the GIC > (MM/DD/YYYY)
Enter the name of the GIC provider »

Pooled financings: Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans

to other governmental units .

35

36a

37

If this issue is a loan made from the proceeds of another tax- exempt issue, check box > I:I and enter the following information:

Enter the date of the master pool bond » (MM/DD/YYYY)

Enter the EIN of the issuer of the master pool bond »

Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool bond »

If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(1ll) (small issuer exception),
If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box

If the issuer has identified a hedge, check here » [] and enter the following |nformat|on
Name of hedge provider
Type of hedge »
Term of hedge P
If the issuer has superintegrated the hedge, check box .

check box

If the issuer has established written procedures to ensure that aII nonquallfled bonds of thls issue are remediated

according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), check box

If the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, check box .
If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here » [] and enter the amount

of reimbursement . . . | 2

Enter the date the official |ntent was adopted > (MM/DD/YYYY)

> [
> [
> [
> [
> [0

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge

S- t and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. | further declare that | consent to the IRS’s disclosure of the issuer’s return information, as necessary to
ignature process this return, to the person that | have authorized above.
and
Consent
Signature of issuer’s authorized representative Date Type or print name and title
Pald Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’s signature Date Check D if | PTIN
J. Eric Boehlert self-employed | p1077288

Preparer . ,

Firm’s name » Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. Firm’s EIN » 42-1323559
Use Only [— ,

Firm’s address » 100 Court Ave., Ste, 600, Des Moines, lowa 50309 Phone no. 515-243-7611

Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)

99




Item 8.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Human Resources Division

TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members

FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager
DATE: August 8, 2022

SUBJECT: Horticulturist Job Classification

As part of the FY23 budget process, staff recommended adding a full time Horticulturist position
to the budget. This position was approved by the City Council and this job classification
implements that position.

Staff recommends your approval of the Horticulturist position. If you have questions

regarding the job classification, please contact Bailey Schindel at 319-268-5531 or Brian
Heath at 319-268-5575.

Attachments:  Horticulturist Job Classification

100




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Item 8.

Job Title Horticulturist Job Code 815
Department  Public Works Pay Band 307

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared February 1999 Adopted

Amended 5/24/99, 8/25/2003, 6/24/2014, 10/19/2015, 8/15/22

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Provide grounds maintenance, equipment operations and other tasks related to the maintenance of
parklands, city right of way and public building landscaping. Participate in a variety of manual labor tasks;
aid in the development of public programs, tours, and events; serve as a lead staff person to provide
guidance to part time, volunteers, and seasonal personnel. Provide responsible staff assistance to the
Public Works & Parks Supervisor.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Public Works & Parks Supervisor.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities but serves as a lead staff person to provide
guidance for part-time, volunteers, and seasonal personnel.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Maintain an orderly and aesthetically pleasing appearance of parklands and other city public
grounds.

e Plan, participate, and oversee the planting of new trees; develop programs for care of trees.

e Plan, participate, and oversee the planting, conservation, and care of vegetation including native
plants and tallgrass prairie.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Horticulturist 1

101




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Identify equipment needs for each assigned project. Carry out prescribed work methods and
procedures; maintain records of time, materials, and equipment usage.

Select and apply proper fertilizers and water for turf, shrubs, trees, and flowers.

Coordinate the work of assigned staff as appropriate.

Train and mentor staff on use of equipment and procedures for vegetation care and maintenance.

Evaluate garden needs periodically and determine appropriate action; purchase plant material
and supplies as needed; coordinate contractors for landscape improvement projects.

Act as a lead staff person; recruit and schedule volunteers; provide guidance to part time,
volunteers and seasonal personnel in assigned area.

Perform routine clerical duties as required; attend workshops; and conduct garden tours.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Check vehicles, tools and equipment for maintenance and repair. Make minor repairs and report
major repair needs to Public Works & Parks Supervisor and division mechanic.

Assist the Arborist with maintenance of city tree nurseries.
Assist in snow removal activities.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Horticulture, arboriculture plant and tree care practices and techniques.
Variety of plants, soils and gardening.

Principles of leading and staff training.

Various diseases indigenous to plants and trees in the area.

Safety rules and procedures for all applicable equipment and activities.
Proper techniques and uses of a variety of hand tools.

Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Horticulturist

Item 8.

102




JOB CLASSIFICATION

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Analyze and resolve concerns and issues in an efficient and effective manner.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

o Effectively handle working on a variety of projects simultaneously.

o Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work
including city officials, community groups, and the general public.

e Perform manual labor tasks in extreme weather conditions.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of experience in landscaping, maintenance, construction and installation of plant materials.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma, or equivalent, supplemented by training in landscaping and plant maintenance
services and activities.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.
Possession of, or ability to obtain, Class B lowa Commercial Driver’s license (CDL).

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate state pesticide applicator license.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Field environment; exposure to hazardous chemicals and materials, fumes, electrical hazards, dust, dirt
and noise (>85dB); work in inclement and extreme weather conditions; work in close proximity to moving
machinery, equipment, and traffic.

Work irregular work hours, including weekends, holidays, and extended hours in emergencies, disasters
or other situations influenced by workload or staffing difficulties.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Horticulturist 3

Item 8.

103




Item 8.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for standing, stooping,
climbing, or walking for prolonged periods of time; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds;

kneeling and bending while performing work activities; pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder
motions; operating a motor vehicle.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Horticulturist 104




Item 9.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Information Systems Division

Honorable Mayor Rob Green and City Council

Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations
Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager

DATE: August 8, 2022
SUBJECT: Nondisclosure agreements for City View

The City has been investigating options for a replacement financial system and
community development software. We released an RFP the later part of February. The
team has scored the RFPs and invited two vendors in for scripted demonstrations. One
of the vendors giving demonstrations is City View.

The City has requested that we record the demonstrations so that we can share with
staff not able to attend the demonstrations. Because of this request, City View has
requested that the City enter into a nondisclosure agreement (NDA).

I've included the NDA for City View for your review and approval. City attorney Kevin
Rogers has suggested this go before council because only Council may contract for the
City unless another contract approved by Council or Resolution of Council delegated
the authority to another to enter into a contract. We do not have a resolution or another
contract in place to delegate authority.

Please feel free to contact us with any questions.

Attachments:
Cedar Falls lowa — recorded demo NDA (City View)

105




MUTUAL CONFIDENTIAL DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

Effective Date: 12 July 2022

In order to protect certain confidential information which may be disclosed between them, N. Harris
Computer Corporation (“CityView”), and City of Cedar Falls IA, agree that:

1. Both parties are DISCLOSERS and RECIPIENTS of confidential information.

2. The confidential information disclosed under this Agreement shall be marked or otherwise
identified as Confidential or Proprietary, and shall include without limitation of data, plans, reports,
drawings, forecasts, software, trade secrets, technical, business or financial information
transmitted orally, in writing or electronically, which is not published or readily available to the

general public.

3. RECIPIENT shall use the confidential information exclusively for the purpose of gaining a better
understanding of the solutions that CityView offers and provide the RECIPIENT's team a
consistent level of knowledge so that, as consultants, RECIPIENT can offer the best advice to
clients. RECIPIENT shall not disclose or otherwise use the confidential information for any other
project or purpose or in any other way without first obtaining written permission from the

DISCLOSER.

4, All tangible documentation, Webex recordings and other materials provided to RECIPIENT under
this Agreement shall remain the property of the DISCLOSER and shall be returned to the
DISCLOSER or completely destroyed, in the case of electronic files. A certificate of destruction
will be provided upon written request from the DISCLOSER. RECIPIENT shall make no copies of
any tangible documentation or materials provided hereunder, except to the extent necessary for
the permitted use. RECIPIENT shall retain no copies, and shall return all copies when originals

are returned or destroyed.

5. RECIPIENT shall use the same degree of care to prevent the unauthorized use, dissemination or
publication of the confidential information as RECIPIENT uses to protect its own confidential

information of a like nature, but no less than a reasonable degree of care.

6. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and may be terminated by either party on
not less than ten (10) days prior written notice to the other party. RECIPIENT’s duty to protect
confidential information disclosed under this Agreement shall extend for five (5) years from the

date of termination.

7. RECIPIENT may disclose the confidential information provided hereunder to such employees as
may be directly involved in the project, but to no other persons. Upon request, RECIPIENT shall
provide DISCLOSER with a list of all persons having had access to such confidential information.

8. This Agreement imposes no obligation upon a RECIPIENT with respect to disclosed information

which:
(@) was in RECIPIENT’s possession before receipt, as evidenced by written records;

(b) is or becomes a matter of public knowledge through no fault of RECIPIENT;

(c) is rightfully obtained by RECIPIENT from a third party who is legally free to pass on such

information without a duty of confidentiality;

(d) is disclosed by DISCLOSER to a third party without a duty of confidentiality on the third

party;

(e) is independently developed by RECIPIENT without reference to the disclosed confidential

information; or

(f) is required to be disclosed by operation of law.

Item 9.

106




Item 9.

9. Each DISCLOSER warrants that it has the right to make disclosures under this Agreement.

10. RECIPIENTS do not acquire any intellectual property rights in the confidential information
disclosed under this Agreement except the limited right to use set forth in paragraph 3 above.

11. RECIPIENT acknowledges that a breach of this Agreement can cause the DISCLOSER to suffer
irreparable harm with no adequate remedy at law. If any such breach occurs or is threatened, the
Discloser will be entitled (in addition to any and all other remedies) to injunctive relief, specific
performance and other equitable remedies without proof of monetary damages or the inadequacy
of other remedies, and the Recipient waives its right to all such defenses.

12. The parties do not intend that any agency or partnership relationship be created between them by
this Agreement.

13. All additions or modifications to this Agreement must be made in writing and must be signed by
both parties.

14, No part of this Agreement may be assigned by either of the parties hereto without the prior written
consent of the other party, and any attempt to assign the rights, duties or obligations under this
Agreement without such consent shall have no effect.

15. If a provision of this Agreement is wholly or partially invalid, this Agreement shall be interpreted
as if the invalid provision had not been part of this Agreement.

16. All notices, demands and payments required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall
be in writing and may be delivered personally or by facsimile transmission to the addresses set
forth below or to such other addresses as may from time to time be notified in writing by the
parties. Any notice delivered personally shall be deemed to have been given and received at the
time of delivery. Any notice sent by facsimile transmission shall be deemed to be given and
received on the first business day following the date of transmission.

17. This Agreement may be signed in facsimile counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original and both of which will be deemed to be one and the same document.

18. This Agreement is made in and shall be governed, interpreted and enforced exclusively in
accordance with the laws of the State of lowa, except for any conflicts of laws rules.

For: N. Harris Computer Corporation For: City of Cedar Falls, IA

Wzozz.osm
16:03:14-07'00"

By: Susan McCormick By:

Title: Senior VP, Customer Success Title:

Date: Date:

Address: 4464 Markham St., Suite 1202 Address: 220 Clay Street

Victoria, British Columbia, Canada Cedar Falls 1A 50613-2783
V8Z 7X8 USA
Telephone: (250) 475-6600 Telephone: (319) 273-8600

107




DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

Item 10.

MEMORANDUM

Honorable Mayor Rob Green and City Council

Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations
Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager

DATE: August 8, 2022
SUBJECT: Nondisclosure agreements for Tyler

The City has been investigating options for a replacement financial system and
community development software. We released an RFP the later part of February. The
team has scored the RFPs and invited two vendors in for scripted demonstrations. One
of the vendors giving demonstrations for both the financial system and the Community
Development software is Tyler.

The City has requested that we record the demonstrations so that we can share with
staff not able to attend the demonstrations. Because of this request, Tyler has
requested that the City enter into a nondisclosure agreement (NDA).

I've included the NDA for Tyler for your review and approval. City attorney Kevin
Rogers has suggested this go before council because only Council may contract for the
City unless another contract approved by Council or Resolution of Council delegated
the authority to another to enter into a contract. We do not have a resolution or another
contract in place to delegate authority.

Please feel free to contact us with any questions.

Attachments:
Tyler NDA — Recorded demo — DEMO Ready Q120

Information Systems Division

108




Item 10.

CONFIDENTIALITY & NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Confidentiality & Non-Disclosure Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this day of

202_ between Tyler Technologies, Inc., with offices at 1 Tyler Drive, Yarmouth, Maine 04096 (“Tyler”) and,
City of Cedar Falls, Towa , with offices at __ 220 Clay Street C, Cedar Falls, lowa 50613 (the “Client”),

with Tyler and the Client also being referred to individually herein as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties.”

WHEREAS, Tyler may disclose Confidential Information, as hereinafter defined, to the Client during a recorded
demonstration provided in connection with Tyler’s response to a Client Request for Proposal; and

WHEREAS, the Parties may thereafter continue to exchange Confidential Information during the proposal
evaluation process; and

WHEREAS, whereas each Party desires to protect its Confidential Information;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and promises set forth herein
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
Parties agree as follows:

I. Confidential Information. As used in this Agreement, “Confidential Information” means all
information of the Parties, in whatever form transmitted, including but not limited to Tyler’s recorded
demonstration, that:

A. is not generally known to the public, whether of a technical, business or other nature including,
without limitation any and all intellectual property rights either Party holds in and to its software,
services and/or documentation, including patents, copyrights, and trademarks and trade secrets;

B. is disclosed by one Party (the “Disclosing Party”) to the other Party (the “Receiving Party”) or
that is otherwise learned by the Receiving Party in the course of its discussions or business
dealings with, or due to its physical or electronic access to the premises or property of, the
Disclosing Party; and/or

C. has been identified as being proprietary and/or confidential, or that would reasonably be deemed
to be proprietary and/or confidential based upon the nature of the circumstances surrounding its
disclosure or receipt.

Il. Exceptions. “Confidential Information” does not include information which

A. becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by the Receiving
Party;

B. was available to the Receiving Party on a non-confidential basis prior to its receipt by the
Receiving Party;

C. becomes available to the Receiving Party on a non-confidential basis from a source other than the
Disclosing Party, its representatives or its agents, provided that such source is not bound by a
confidentiality agreement with the Disclosing Party, its representatives or its agents or otherwise
is prohibited from transmitting the information to the Receiving Party by a contractual, legal or
fiduciary obligation; or

D. was independently developed by the Receiving Party without access to or the benefit of the
Confidential Information.

I1l. Use of Confidential Information. The Receiving Party, except as expressly provided in this
Agreement, will not disclose Confidential Information to anyone without the Disclosing Party's prior
written consent. In addition, the Receiving Party will not use, or permit others to use, Confidential
Information for any purpose other than for the limited purpose or purposes for which the disclosure
of the Confidential Information is originally made. Permitted use of Tyler’s recorded
demonstration is exclusively limited to the Client’s internal reference for the purposes of
evaluating proposal responses. Permitted use of other Confidential Information under this

1

109




VI.

VIL.

VIIL.

XI.

XIlI.

XII1.

Item 10.

Agreement may include disclosure of that other Confidential Information to employees or
representatives of the Receiving Party provided, however, that the Receiving Party informs such
person or persons of this Agreement and will be responsible for any breach of this Agreement by
such person or persons.

Exportation. Neither Party shall export, directly or indirectly, any technical data acquired from the
other Party pursuant to this Agreement or any product utilizing any such data to any country for
which the United States government or any agency thereof at the time of export requires an export
license or other governmental approval without first obtaining such license or approval.

Public Records or Governmental Request. Should the Receiving Party receive a public records
request, or otherwise be directed by any governmental authority to disclose any or all of the
Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information, the Receiving Party shall promptly provide notice to the
Disclosing Party of such request to allow the Disclosing Party an opportunity to prevent such
disclosure in accordance with applicable law.

Ownership of Confidential Information. All Confidential Information will remain the exclusive
property of the Disclosing Party, and the Receiving Party will have no rights, by license or otherwise,
to use the Confidential Information except as expressly provided herein or in a separate written
agreement specifically granting such rights.

Protection of Confidential Information. The Receiving Party will take all reasonable measures to
avoid disclosure, dissemination or unauthorized use of Confidential Information, including, at a
minimum, those measures it takes to protect its own confidential information, and, in any event, at
least in a manner considered commercially reasonable.

Unauthorized Disclosure. The Receiving Party shall immediately notify the Disclosing Party upon
the discovery of any loss or unauthorized disclosure or use of the Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party.

Injunctive Relief. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that a breach by it or one of its affiliates,
employees or representatives of any of the covenants set forth in this Agreement will cause
irreparable injury to the other Party and its business for which damages, even if available, will not
constitute an adequate remedy. Accordingly, each Party, for itself and its affiliates, employees and
representatives, agrees that the other Party, in addition to any other remedy available at law or in
equity, shall be entitled to the issuance of injunctive relief (including, without limitation, specific
performance) by a court of competent jurisdiction in order to enforce the covenants and agreements
contained herein. Nothing herein shall constitute a waiver of any immunity afforded the Client.

RESERVED.

Non-waiver. Any failure by either Party to enforce performance of any provision of this Agreement
will not constitute a waiver of its right to subsequently enforce such provision or any other provision
of this Agreement.

No Trading in Tyler Common Stock. The Client acknowledges that Tyler is a publicly-traded
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, and therefore agrees that any material, nonpublic
Confidential Information regarding Tyler that is disclosed to the Client may not be used as a basis for
trading in Tyler stock by the Client or its representatives.

Assignment. Neither Party may assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereof without

the prior written consent of the other Party, and any attempted assignment without such consent shall
be null, void, and of no effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tyler may without the prior written

2

110




XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVILI.

XVIII.

XIX.

Item 10.

consent of the Client, assign the contract in its entirety to the surviving entity of any merger or
consolidation or to any purchaser of substantially all of Tyler’s assets.

Survival. The Receiving Party’s obligations under this Agreement shall survive termination or
expiration of this Agreement and shall be binding upon the Receiving Party’s heirs, successors, and
assigns, as applicable.

Notices. All notices or communications required or permitted as a part of this Agreement shall be in

writing (unless another verifiable medium is expressly authorized) and shall be deemed delivered

when:

A. actually received,

B. upon receipt by sender of a certified mail, return receipt signed by an employee or agent of the
Party,

C. upon receipt by sender of proof of email delivery, or

D. if not actually received, ten (10) days after deposit with the United States Postal Service
authorized mail center with proper postage (certified mail, return receipt requested) affixed and
addressed to the respective other party at the address set forth in this Agreement or such other
address as the Party may have designated by notice or Agreement amendment to the other Party.

Consequences to be borne due to failure to receive a notice due to improper notification by the
intended Receiving Party of a new address will be borne by the intended Receiving Party. The
addresses of the Parties to this Agreement are as follows:

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Client: City of Cedar Falls
1 Tyler Drive Client Address 1: 220 Clay Street C
Yarmouth, ME 04096 Client City/State/Zip:_Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Attention: Chief Legal Officer  Attention:

Cumulative Nature of Obligations. Each Party's obligations hereunder are in addition to, and not
exclusive of, any and all of its other obligations and duties to the other Party, whether express,
implied, in fact or in law.

Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the
substantive laws of the Client’s state of domicile, without giving effect to any conflicts-of-law rule or
principle that might require the application of the laws of another jurisdiction.

Jurisdiction & Venue. Any judicial proceeding brought by or against any of the Parties to this
Agreement on any dispute arising out of this Agreement or any matter related hereto shall be brought
exclusively in a federal or state court of competent jurisdiction in your state of domicile. By
execution and delivery of this Agreement, each of the Parties to this Agreement accepts for itself the
exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the aforesaid courts, and irrevocably agrees to be bound by any
final non-appealable judgment rendered in connection with this Agreement. Each Party expressly
waives any objection (including, without limitation, objections based on forum non conveniens)
which any Party may have now or hereafter to the laying of venue or to the jurisdiction of any such
suit, action, or proceeding, and irrevocably submits generally and unconditionally to the jurisdiction
of any such court in any such suit, action, or proceeding. Each Party hereby agrees that in connection
with any such suit, action, or proceeding, service of process may be accomplished by certified mail,
return receipt requested, to the president, managing partner, or other appropriate official at the
address set forth in the Notices section above.

Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof shall, to any

extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such term
or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or

3

111




Item 10.

unenforceable shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Agreement shall 'oe
valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

XX. Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified by written amendment signed by authorized
representatives of both Parties.

XXI. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be
deemed an original and all of which will constitute one and the same Agreement.

XXIl. Term and Termination. This Agreement is intended to cover Confidential Information disclosed or
received by either Party prior or subsequent to the date of this Agreement. Unless otherwise earlier
terminated, this Agreement automatically will expire five (5) years from the date first written above;
provided, however, that each Party's obligations with respect to the other Party's Confidential
Information disclosed or received prior to termination or expiration will survive until such
Confidential Information ceases to be confidential.

XXIII. Return of Materials. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, or upon receipt of written
request from the Disclosing Party, the Receiving Party shall promptly return to the Disclosing Party
all documents or other tangible materials representing the Disclosing Party’s Confidential
Information, including any copies made thereof.

XXIV. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the Client and Tyler with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any prior agreements, understandings, and
representations, whether written, oral, expressed, implied, or statutory. The Client hereby
acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement it did not rely on any information not explicitly set
forth in this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by a duly authorized
representative to be effective as of the last date set forth below.

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Client:__City of Cedar Falls, lowa

By, ey (ke By:

Name: Sherry érk Name:

Title: Group General Counsel Title:

Date: August 8, 2022 Date:
4

112




Item 11.

FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Public Records Division

Honorable Mayor Green and City Council
FROM: Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk
DATE:  August 4, 2022

SUBJECT: lowa Department of Transportation — Transfer of Jurisdiction
TJ-218-0(125)—2M-07, Agreement No. 90-TJ-002
Quit Claim Deed — Portions of University Avenue, Main Street, West 6%
Street and Franklin Street (Old US Highway 218)

The lowa Department of Transportation has recorded with the Black Hawk County
Recorder’s Office the attached Quit Claim Deed, in conjunction with the 1990 Transfer
of Jurisdiction of portions of University Avenue, Main Street, West 6" Street and
Franklin Street, f/n/a U.S. Highway 218.

City staff recommends that City Council accept the Quit Claim Deed to complete the
above reference transfer in compliance with lowa Code Section 306.42.

Thank you.

113




(PIOWADOT

GETTING YOU THERE»

April 14, 2022 When communicating, refer to:
Black Hawk County
Transfer of Jurisdiction
TJ-218-0(125)--2M-07
Agreement No. 90-TJ-002

David Wicke

City Engineer

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Dear Mr. Wicke:

Enclosed is the recorded Quitclaim Deed conveying a portion of former Primary Road No. U.S.
218, which is now a part of the municipal street system known as University Ave., Main St., West
6™ St., & Franklin St., to the City of Cedar Falls, lowa. The original acquisition documents with
plats will be mailed to you. These documents are provided to complete the above referenced
Transfer of Jurisdiction in compliance with lowa Code Section 306.42. Please deliver them to the
appropriate office.

Sincerely,

Allyssa Myers
Fiscal & Title Section
Right of Way Bureau

aem

Enc.

c: E. Jon Ranney, District Engineer
Nick Humpal, Assistant District Engineer
Barry Thede, Maintenance Manager
Miranda Eilders, District Land Surveyor
Brent Christian, Advertising Management
Hannah Bibiano, Agreements Specialist
Katie Johnson, Production Coordinator
Mike Jackson, Title & Closing Supervisor

1 515-239-1757 | allyssa.myers@iowadot.us e | Address:
i | 515-233-7850 (fax) & | www.iowadot.gov 800 Lincoln Way, Ames, IA 50010

Item 11.

114




Item 11.

Number: 202200019687

Recorded: 4/7/2022 at 3:28:23.0 PM
County Recording Fee: $47.00

lowa E-Filing Fee: $3.00

Combined Fee: $50.00

Revenue Tax: $0.00

Sandie L. Smith, RECORDER

Black Hawk County, lowa

IoOWADOT

Prepared by & Return to:  Allyssa Myers, Office of Right of Way, 800 Lincoln Way, Ames, |A 50010, 515-239-1757
Address Tax Statements: Tax Exempt-IA Code Sec. 427.1 City of Cedar Falls Engineer, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, 1A
50613

STATE OF IOWA
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

QUITCLAIM DEED
TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

The lowa Department of Transportation, by Scott Marler, Director, acting for the State of
lowa by authority of lowa Code Section 306.42, hereby quitclaims unto the CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, all its right, title and interest, however acquired, in all land used
as street and highway right of way, all roadway, and all right of way and roadway
appurtenances thereto, and any bridges, culverts or structures that may be situated
thereon, to the following described roadway situated in Black Hawk County, lowa, to-wit:

That portion of former Primary Road No. U.S. 218, which is now a part of
the municipal street system known as University Avenue, Main Street, West
6t Street and Franklin Street, from Primary Road No. 1A 58 beginning at a
point described as being N89°18'568"E 483.09 feet from the N1/4 Corner of
Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5t P.M., Black Hawk
County, lowa; thence westerly on University Avenue to Main Street; thence
northerly on Main Street to 6% Street; thence westerly on 6t Strest to
Franklin Street; thence north on Franklin Street to the south right of way line
of Primary Road No. IA 57 (15t Street), a length of approximately 2.03 miles.
For the purpose of this point of beginning, the North line of the NE % of said
Section 24 is assumed to bear N89°18'58"E.

This instrument hereby transfers all access rights, if any, acquired for the
above described roadway, excepting and reserving to the Grantor all rights
of direct access to University Avenue in the City of Cedar Falls, lowa.

Title and interest to part of the above described roadway was acquired by the State of
lowa through the following title instrument(s) filed and recorded in the records of Black
Hawk County, lowa.

GENERAL LOCATION

Vs Y4 SECTIONS SEC-TWP- TYPE OF DATE
GRANTOR(S) LOTS, BLOCKS RNG INSTRUMENT FILED BOOK  PAGE
lowa St. Teachers College NE ¥ 24-T89N- 03/10/1970 03/10/1970 489 15
R14W
Except that portion transferred to the City of Cedar Fails in a Quit Claim Deed recorded September 4, 2014, as Doc. No. 201500004194,
Fred M. Messerer, et ux Lot 46 Fairvalley Addition 13-T89N- Easement 02/29/1952 110 429
R14W

Lot 3, Block 20
JR & S Cameron's 2 13-T8AON-
Mary Dall Jensen Addition R14W Warranty Deed 12/24M1962 434 142

Black Hawk County Project No. TJ-218-0(125)--2M-07
Agreement No. 90-TJ-002 Page 1 of 3

115




Item 11.

Ya Vs SECTIONS SEC-TWP- TYPE OF DATE
GRANTOR(S LOTS. BLOCKS RNG INSTRUMENT FILED BOOK PAGE
Lot 4, Block 20
JR & S Cameron's 2m 13-T89N-
George Newgard, et ux Addition R14W Warranty Deed 6/26/1962 430 282
Lot 5, Block 13 13-T8ON-
Vernon C. LaVelle, et ux Taylor's 2 Addition R14W Warranty Deed 6/26/1962 430 279
Lots 1 and 2, Black 21
JR & S Cameron's 2/ 13-T89N-
Fred Petersen, et ux Addition R14W Warranty Deed 8/31/1962 431 630
Lot 2, Block 21
JR & S Cameron's 2nd 13-T89N-
Mathilda H. Koborg Addition R14W Warranty Deed 7/30/1962 431 146
Lot 3, Block 21
JR & S Cameron's 2nd 13-T89N-
Mildred Thode Addition R14W Warranty Deed 7/2/1962 430 396
Lot 4, Block 21
JR & S Cameron's 2 13-T89N-
Ferrol R. Huyck, et vir Addition R14W Warranty Deed 6/26/1962 430 281
Part of Lot 4 13-T89N-
Roger L. Clay, et ux of Auditor's Plat No. 14 R14W Warranty Deed 6/25/1962 430 258
Part of Lot 2 13-T89IN-

Lawrence E. Bitcon, et ux in Auditor's Plat No. 11 R14W Condemnation 09/04/1962 142 5563
Title and interest to any remainder of the above described roadway has never been
conveyed by title instruments to the State of lowa. All available descriptions, plats, maps,
or engineering drawings will be transmitted in accord with lowa Code Section 306.42(1).

This transfer is subject to the rights of all utilities in possession of any right of way and all
rights of ingress and egress whether excepted, reserved, or granted by the transferring
authority to land or to owners of land adjacent to the above described roadway.

This transaction is exempt from transfer tax and a Declaration of Value is not required
because the State of lowa is the grantor, pursuant to lowa Code Section 428A.2(6).

The Grantee for itself, its successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the
consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree, as a covenant running with the
land, that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the
said property described in this deed for a purpose for which a Department of
Transportation program or activity is extended or for another purpose involving the
provisions of similar services or benefits, the Grantee shall maintain and operate such
facilities and services in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant
to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office
of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the
Department of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and
as said Regulations may be amended.

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, the lowa
Department of Transportation, acting for the State of lowa, shall have the right to re-enter
said land and facilities thereon, and the above described lands and facilities shall
thereupon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of lowa Department of
Transportation, acting for the State of lowa, and its assigns.

Should Grantee elect to dispose of these premises in the future, Grantee acknowledges
that these premises were acquired for highway purposes and therefore any future
disposal shall be in accordance with lowa Code 306.23 in regard to the disposal of
highway right of way.

Black Hawk County Project No. TJ-218-0(125)--2M-07

Agreement No. 90-TJ-002 Page 2 of | 116




Item 11.

Signed this 288 ay of Mere L 2022,

St AL

Scott Marler, Director
lowa Department of Transportation

STATE OF IOWA, STORY COUNTY, ss:

On this 22 mday of [Ha ¢ h , 2022, before me, the undersigned, a Notary
Public in and for the State of lowa, personally appeared Scott Marler, to me personally
known, and who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Director of the lowa
Department of Transportation; that he signed this deed on behalf of the State of lowa by
authority of Order No. H-91-14 of the State Transportation Commission dated July 3,
1990.

COMMISSION NO, 157978 ic! T
N CLMELSON e Notary Public.

o | [D-l~09%
(AFFIX NOTARIAL SEAL ABOVE A )

I%‘i SHERI L. RAAB (\gm”ﬁﬁ ab (Sign in Ink)

Approved as to form:

Shean Fletchall
Special Assistant Attorney General

BY\\\\\ (Date) >~ RN
Midhoel =C. ASSS T N (TypelPrint Name)
Assistant Attorney General

Black Hawk County Project No. TJ-218-0(125)--2M-07
Agreement No. 90-TJ-002 Page 3 of| 117




Item 11.

RESOLUTION NO. 8286

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF

AN ADDENDUM TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE IOWA DEPARTMENT

OF TRANSPORTATION PROVIDING FOR THE TRANSFER OF

JURISDICTION OF U.S. HIGHWAY 218 TO THE CITY OF CEDAR

FALLS, IOWA.

WHEREAS, the Iowa Department of Transportation has proposed
to transfer what has been U. S. Highway 218 to the City of Cedar
Falls, Iocwa, the same to become a part of the street system of the
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and

WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation has agreed to
make the necessary repairs to said highway and to put it in a good
state of repair prior to completion of the transfer of jurisdiction,

NCW, THEREFOﬁE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that the addendum to the agreement between
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and the Iowa Department of
Transportation, providing for the transfer of jurisdiction of
ownership of what is now known as U. S. Highway 218 within the City
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby approved, and the Mayor and City
Clerk are hereby authorized to execute said agreement on bePalf of

the Clty of Cedar Falls, Iowa. ‘

R o ADOPTED this 11th day of March, 1991.

£ g v T. Crews, Mayor

Gary La Hesse, City Clerk

118




(bage 1 c:f 6)

Printed from CME

7vbQ

JOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
AGREEMENT FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC ROAD JURISDICTION

CITY: Cedar Falls, Iowa
Agreement No.: 90-TJ-002

Project No.: TJ-218-0(125)~--2M-0T7

This AGREEMENT entered into by and between the Iowa
Department of Transportation, hereinafter designated as
STATE; and Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter designated as
CITY; and in consideration of these premises and the mutual
covenants hereinafter set forth, it is hereby agreed that
the public road segments described below be transferred:

WITNESSETH, that

I. In compliance with the provisions of Section 306.8 and
Section 306.43, Code of Iowa 1989, the STATE agrees to
transfer to the CITY the public road segment including
right-of-way as follows:

That portion of U.S. Highway 218
beginning at the east corporate limits
of the CITY and extending west and north
to the junction of Iowa Highway 57
(First Street), a length of
approximately 4.03 miles, as shown on
Exhibit A attached.

A. The CITY agrees to accept the public road segment
described in Section I of this agreement into its
municipal street system 1in accordance with the
provisions of Section 306.42, Code of Towa 1989
and this Agreement.

B. The CITY and STATE do hereby Jjointly agree to the
jurisdictional change stated above in the manner
provided in this Agreement and pursuant to Section
306.42 and Section 313.2 of the Code of Iowa 1989

which authorizes such Agreements respecting
highways.
C. The CITY and the STATE have examined the physical

condition of the public road segment described in
Section I of this agreement and have agreed that:

1. On the section beginning at the end of the
east return of the South Main
Street/University Avenue intersection, and
extending east 1300 feet, the STATE shall, at

Item 11.

119




\
(bage 2 of 6)

Printed from CME

...

its cost, and as part of the IX-58 relocation
project;

a. perform any necessary surface
preparation and/or milling, and;

b. resurface using 3 inches of asphalt
surface course.

On the section beginning 1300 feet east of
the end of the east return of the South Main
Street/University Avenue intersection and
extending east to the CITY’s east corporate
limits, the STATE shall, at its cost;

a. mill 1 1/2-inch of the A.C.C. surface.,
The milling shall be of uniform depth,
including areas over existing loop
detectors. If any loop detectors are
damaged, they will be replaced by the
STATE at no cost to the CITY. The CITY
shall conduct testing on the loop

detectors to determine if any are
damaged;
b. perform necessary surface and full-depth

pavement patching;

Ch remove the 9-inch P.C.C. dowelled-on
median and underlying P.C.C. pavement;

d. construct a 2.5-foot wide median curb
and gutter unit;

e. construct 4-foot wide median curb units
at the left turn areas;

f. prlace suitable earth fill material,
including top soil, within the median
area for CITY-performed seeding and
landscaping; and

g. resurface wusing 3 inches of asphalt
surface course which will include the
recycled A,.C.C. millings.

On the section beginning at the end of the
south return of the University Avenue/South
Main Street intersection and extending north
to the end of +the 1985 resurfacing (and
including the east and west returns of the
University Avenue/South Main Street
intersection), the STATE shall, at its cost;

Item 11.

120




(Page 3 olf 6)

Printed from CME

a. remove and replace the

doweled-on median;

b. perform the necessary
full-depth pavement patching and

sealing; and

Ci resurface using 3 inches

surface course.

4, On the section beginning at the
1985 resurfacing and extending north to
at its cost,

Highway 57, the STATE shall,

a. perform necessary crack sealing.

D. The transfer of Jjurisdiction of

segment described in Section I of this

the public

g—inch PnCoC-

and

crack

asphalt

the

Iowa

road
agreement

shall take place following the execution of this

agreement by both +the CITY and the

follows:

1. The CITY shall assume Jjurisdiction

as

of the

public road segment described in Section I of

this agreement following completion
repairs listed in Sections
I.C.4, and upon notification from the
to the CITY of +the STATE’s

transfer.

II, The CITY has inspected the public
described in Section I of this agreement and agrees
accept said road subject to the conditions set
therein. In accordance with Section 306.42(6),

intention

the

through
STATE

to

segment

to

forth
Code of

Towa 1989, neither the CITY nor the STATE shall be held
liable for any claim for damage for any act or omission
relating to the design, construction, or maintenance of

the public road segment described in Section I of
agreement that occurred prior to the effective date

the transfer.

this

of

III. The STATE shall transfer to the CITY by quit-claim deed

all its legal or equitable title or

right-of-way, except as noted in Section IV
in Section I
said deed,

of the public road segment described

this agreement. The CITY shall accept
pursuant to Section 306.42, Code of Iowa 1989.

IV. For the public road segment described in Section I,

interest in
following,

the

of

if

the STATE has acquired access rights by warranty deed,
the CITY shall neither alter those rights nor allow any

new access within 150 feet from the near edge of

remaining primary highway intersection.

any

Item 11.

121




(Page 4 of 6)

Printed from CME

VII.

If any section, provision, or part of this Agreement
shall be found to be invalid or unconstitutional, such
judgement shall not affect the wvalidity of the
Agreement as a whole or any section, provision, or part
thereof not found to be invalid or unconstitutional.
VI, This Agreement shall be executed in two
counterparts, each of which shall constitute but o©ne

and the same instrument.

This Agreement as set forth in Sections I through VII
herein (inclusive) represents +the entire Agreement
between the CITY and the STATE. Any subsequent change
or modification to the terms of this Agreement shall be
in the form of a duly executed addemdum to this

Agreement.

Item 11.

122




(Page 5 ;f 6)

Printed from CME

IN WITNESS THEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed

Agreement No. 90-TJ-002 as of the date shown opposite its

signature hereafter.

CITY wy&_&aus, IOWA
o= { -~
BY: ; : Jdoune 1, 1994

P

Titlz/ Mayor
I, KﬁNNﬁ?"H ﬁMﬁ‘?L‘f , certify that I am the

Clerk of the CITY, and that _ (Jon 7. £ Rew , who

signed said Agreement for and on behalf of the CITY was

duly authorized to execute +the same by virtue of a formal

resolution paszed and adopted by the CITY on the Z/Zﬂ day

of . 22}5{& ., 19890 .

Signed
City Clerk of Cedar Falls

Date Jouwe 1 , 19494

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ey - Chyef Engineer 4

Comm. Order No. }4*ql~14-

Item 11.

Date 7/3 i 1920

123




(page 6 of 6)

Printed from CN{E

Item 11.

corp Limits

NOTES
From Hwy SR o ECL-

has ez hrousPerved -
200 T- oA - @b is Q&
Pavt Eemwa% (S

Huony BF w:ahll-o

Prom

EXHIBIT.A

124




Item 12.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-268-5161

Fax: 319-268-5197
www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Inspection Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council

FROM: Jamie Castle, AlA
Building Official

DATE: August9, 2022
SUBJECT: City Hall Remodel Furniture Contract

At the July 6, 2022 Council Meeting the City Hall Remodel Furniture Bids were
reviewed. At that time the low bid submitted by Kirk Gross Company for a total of
$378,647.51 was accepted. Attached are the official contract, performance bond,
payment bond, and certificate of liability insurance. We are asking for approval to move
forward with a fully executed contract.

125




Init.

v f
!',.

(L~

u?}“,/
g
E§.:

\

AIA Document A151 - 2019

CONTRACTOR'S C

Item 12.

Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and Vendor for Furniture,

Furnishings, and Equipment (FF&E)

AGREEMENT made as of the Sixth day of July in the year Two Thousand Twenty-Two

(In words, indicate day, month, and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Telephone Number: 319.268.5189

and the Vendor:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Kirk Gross Company

4015 Alexandra Drive

Waterloo, 1A 50704

Telephone Number: 319.234.6641

for the following Project:
(Name, location, and detailed description)

Furniture for Cedar Falls City Hall Remodel

Cedar Falls, Iowa

Furniture to accommodate the concurrent remodel of City Hall for the City of Cedar

Falls.

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Emergent Architecture

100 E 2nd St, Ste 204

Cedar Falls, A 50613

Telephone Number: 319.529.3945

The Owner and Vendor agree as follows.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to
the standard form text is available
from the author and should be
reviewed. A vertical line in the left
margin of this document indicates
where the author has added
necessary information and where
the author has added to or deleted
from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

AIA Document A151~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of

Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was
produced by AIA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tim

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 126

User Notes:

(3BSADASey



Init.

Item 12.

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 CONTRACT SUM AND PAYMENTS

3 TIME

4 OWNER

5 VENDOR

6 TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS

7 DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION

8 ACCEPTANCE

9 WARRANTIES

10 ARCHITECT

11 RELATED ACTIVITIES OF OWNER OR OF SEPARATE VENDORS
12 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
13 INSURANCE

14 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

15 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

ARTICLE1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 1.1 Governing Law, including the Uniform Commercial Code

This Agreement is for the sale of goods, specifically fumniture, furnishings, and equipment (FF&E), and shall be
governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that jurisdiction’s choice of law rule and
including the jurisdiction’s Uniform Commercial Code (UCC) as adopted. If this Agreement conflicts with terms
provided by the UCC, the Agreement shall prevail. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding
dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 14.7.

§ 1.2 The Contract Documents

The Contract Documents are enumerated in Article 15 and consist of this Agreement (including, if applicable,
Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to the
execution of this Agreement, other documents listed in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of
this Agreement. The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and
completion of the Work by the Vendor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one
shall be as binding as if required by all. Performance by the Vendor shall be required to the extent consistent with
the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the indicated results.

§ 1.3 The Contract

The Contract Documents form the Contract for the Work. The Contract represents the entire and integrated
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior proposals, offers, terms and conditions, negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a
Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind
between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the Vendor. The primary purpose of the Contract is the
sale of goods, and any services provided are incidental to such primary purpose.

AIA Document A151™ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The "American Institute of

Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AIA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (3BSADA49

127




Init.

Item 12.

§ 1.4 Modifications

A Modification is a written amendment to the Contract for changes in the Work signed by both parties or a written
order for a minor change in the Work signed by the Architect. A minor change in the Work is a change that is
consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents and does not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an
extension of the Contract Time.

§ 1.5 The Work

The Work means the Vendor’s performance, including the sale of FF&E and any incidental fabrication, shipping,
warehousing, delivery, installation, and other items or services required by the Contract Documents and provided, or
to be provided, by the Vendor. The Work includes all labor, materials, temporary protection, storage, and equipment
necessary to fulfill the Vendor’s obligations, except as specifically indicated in the Contract Documents to be the
responsibility of others. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.

§ 1.6 Instruments of Service

Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the
tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their
respective professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies,
surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.7 Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications, and Other Instruments of Service

§ 1.7.1 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and will retain all common law, statutory, and
other reserved rights in their Instruments of Service, including copyrights. The Vendor, sub-vendors, and suppliers
shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or distribution to meet official regulatory
requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation
of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights.

§ 1.7.2 The Vendor, sub-vendors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the Instruments of Service
provided to them, subject to the protocols established pursuant to Sections 1.8 and 1.9, solely and exclusively for
execution of the Work. All copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if any, shown on the
Instruments of Service. The Vendor, sub-vendors, and suppliers may not use the Instruments of Service on other
projects, or in connection with additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written
consent of the Owner, Architect, and the Architect’s consultants.

§ 1.8 Digital Data Use and Transmission

The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any other
information or documentation in digital form. The parties will use AIA Document E203™-2013, Building
Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission,
and exchange of digital data.

§ 1.9 Building Information Models Use and Reliance

Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols
governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set
forth in AIA Document E203™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite
AIA Document G202™-2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form, shall be at the using or
relying party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its vendors or consultants, the authors of, or
contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees.

§ 1.10 Severability

The invalidity of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not invalidate the Contract or its remaining
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Contract Documents violates any law, or is otherwise invalid
or unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and
enforceable. In such case the Contract Documents shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give
effect to the parties' intentions and purposes in executing the Contract.

AlA Document A151™ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AIA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tim

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service, To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (3B9ADA4S

128




Init.

Item 12.

§ 1.11 Notice

§ 1.11.1 Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.11.2, where the Contract Documents require one party to notify or
give notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the party to
whom the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by
courier, or by electronic transmission as set forth below:

(If other than in accordance with AIA Document E203-2013, insert requirements for delivering Notice in electronic
Jormat such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and whether and how the system will be required to
generate a read receipt for the transmission.)

Via email to both Owner's representative(s) and Architect's representative(s) with "Read Receipt" enabled on all
correspondences.

§ 1.11.2 Notice of Claims shall be provided in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly served only if delivered
to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by certified or registered mail, or by
courier providing proof of delivery.

§ 1.12 Assignment of Contract

Neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract without written consent of the other, except that the Owner
may, without consent of the Vendor, assign the Contract to a lender providing financing for the Project if the lender
assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract Documents. The Vendor shall execute all consents
reasonably required to facilitate such assignment.

ARTICLE 2 CONTRACT SUM AND PAYMENTS

§ 2.1 Contract Sum

§ 2.1.1 The Owner shall pay the Vendor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Vendor’s performance of the
Contract. The Contract Sum shall be Three Hundred Seventy-Eight Thousand, Six Hundred Forty-Seven Dollars and
Fifty-One Cents ( $378,647.51 ), subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 2.1.2 Alternates
§ 2.1.2.1 Alternates, if any, included in the Contract Sum:

Item Price
None

§ 2.1.2.2 Subject to the conditions noted below, the following alternates may be accepted by the Owner following
execution of this Agreement. Upon acceptance, the Owner shall issue a Modification to this Agreement.
(Insert below each alternate and the conditions that must be met Jor the Owner to accept the alternate.)

Item Price Conditions for Acceptance
Not Applicable

§ 2.1.3 Unit prices, if any:
(Identify the item and state the unit price and the quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be
applicable.)

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)
None

§ 2.1.4 Allowances, if any, included in the Contract Sum:
(Identify each allowance.)

Item Price
None

§ 2.1.5 Liquidated damages, if any:
(Insert terms and conditions for liquidated damages, if any.)

AIA Document A1561~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AlA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia. org.

User Notes: (3B9ADA49

129




Init.

Item 12.

None

§ 2.1.6 Other:
(Insert provisions for bonus or other incentives, if any, that might result in a change to the Contract Sum.)

None

§ 2.2 Payments
§ 2.2.1 The Owner shall make payments to the Vendor in conformance with the following payment terms:
(Insert payment terms, such as payment due dates, deposit requirements, and prompt payment discounts, if any.)

Applications for Payment shall be submitted to the Architect no later than the last day of the month. Payment shall
be made following approval by City Council at the meeting on the 3rd Monday of the following month.

§ 2.2.2 When payment is due pursuant to the payment terms of Section 2.2.1, the Vendor shall submit to the Owner
via the Architect an itemized invoice, supported by data substantiating the Vendor’s right to payment.

§ 2.2.3 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Vendor shall not engage in any activity, or offer any
employment, interest, or contribution to the Owner’s employees or consultants, that would reasonably appear to
compromise the Owner’s employees’ or consultants’ judgment with respect to this Project.

ARTICLE 3 TIME

§ 3.1 Contract Time

§ 3.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in
the Contract Documents for completion of the Work. The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of
commencement. The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise
specifically defined.

§ 3.1.2 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing this
Agreement, the Vendor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

§ 3.1.3 If the Vendor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by (1) changes ordered in
the Work; (2) labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, abnormal adverse weather conditions not reasonably
anticipatable, unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the Vendor’s control; or (3) other causes that the Vendor
asserts, and the Architect determines, justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended for such reasonable
time as the Architect may determine, subject to the provisions of Article 14.

§ 3.1.4 If the Vendor fails to achieve completion of the Work as provided in this Article 3, liquidated damages, if
any, shall be assessed as set forth in Section 2.1.5.

§ 3.2 Date of Commencement
The date of commencement of the Work shall be:
(Check one of the following boxes.)
[ X] The date of this Agreement with furniture installed in phases as indicated on the drawings.
[ 1 A date set forth in a notice to proceed issued by the Owner.
[ ] Established as follows:
(Insert a date or a means to determine the date of commencement of the Work.)
(Paragraph Deleted)
§ 3.3 Completion

§ 3.3.1 Completion of the Work occurs upon acceptance of all FF&E in the Contract Documents in accordance with
Article 8.

AlA Document A151~ — 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AlA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tim

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (3BYADA:

130




Init.

Item 12.

§ 3.3.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the Vendor shall achieve
completion of the entire Work:
(Check the appropriate box and complete the necessary information.)

[ ] Notlaterthan ( ) calendar days from the date of commencement of the Work.
[X ] By the following date: December 23, 2022.
§ 3.3.3 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work

are to be completed prior to completion of the entire Work, the Vendor shall achieve completion of such portions by
the following dates:

Portion of Work Completion Date
Phase I 09/12/2022 or as coordinated with Owner and Peters Construction Company
Phase 11 12/23/2022 or as coordinated with Owner and Peters Construction Company

ARTICLE 4 OWNER

§ 4.1 The Owner’s Representative

The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Owner with respect to the Project. The
Owner’s representative shall not be changed without ten days’ prior notice to the Vendor. The Owner identifies the
following representative:

(Name, address, email address, and other information)

Jamie Castle

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, 1A 50613

Telephone Number: 319.268.5189

Email Address: jamie.castle@cedarfalls.com

§ 4.2 Information and Services Required of the Owner

§ 4.2.1 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing
architecture, in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.

§ 4.2.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall provide

areas of the Project premises that the Vendor may use to perform the Work;

access to the Project premises for the Vendor at reasonable times;

information regarding any restrictions on the use of, or access to, the Project premises;

suitable space for receipt, inspection, acceptance, and staging of materials and FF&E;

utilities and facilities on the Project premises and vertical transportation necessary for progress and
execution of the Work; and

6 asecured premises for storage of FF&E until acceptance.

PR PN

§ 4.2.3 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and
relevant to the Vendor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Vendor's written
request for such information or services.

ARTICLE S VENDOR

§ 5.1 The Vendor’s Representative

The Vendor shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Vendor with respect to the Project. The
Vendor’s representative shall not be changed without ten days’ prior notice to the Owner and Architect. The Vendor
identifies the following representative:

(Name, address, email address, and other information)

AIA Document A151~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA," the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AIA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (3BSADA4

131




Init.

Item 12.

Greg Vandersee

4015 Alexandra Dr

Waterloo, IA 50702

Cell: 319.243.8585

Email Address: gregvandersee@kirkgross.com

§ 5.2 The Vendor shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract.

§ 5.3 The Vendor shall coordinate its Work with the work provided by the Owner and the Owner’s other vendors,
consultants, and contractors. The Vendor may communicate with the Owner’s other vendors, consultants, and
contractors, for the purposes of completing the Work. The Vendor shall keep the Owner reasonably informed of any
such communications. The Vendor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of work and
information furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s other vendors, consultants, and contractors. The Vendor shall
provide prompt written notice to the Owner if the Vendor becomes aware of any error, omission, or inconsistency in
such work or information.

§ 5.4 Review of Contract Documents and Inspection of Project Premises by Vendor

§ 5.4.1 Execution of the Contract by the Vendor is a representation that the Vendor has visited the Project premises,
if required in the Contract Documents, and correlated personal observations with requirements of the Contract
Documents.

§ 5.4.2 Before starting each portion of the Work, including placing orders for FF&E, the Vendor shall (1) carefully
study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the information
furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 4.2; (2) visit and inspect the Project premises in order to gain an
understanding of the conditions under which the Work is to be performed; (3) determine availability of facilities for
access, delivery, transportation, and staging; (4) determine any restrictions imposed by the Owner and the Owner’s
separate vendors and contractors; and (5) correlate observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
The Vendor shall promptly report to the Owner and Architect conditions observed that would impede the Vendor’s
performance of the Work. The Vendor’s obligations to review the Contract Documents are for the purpose of
facilitating delivery and installation by the Vendor and are not for the purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or
inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Vendor shall promptly report to the Architect any errors,
inconsistencies, or omissions discovered by or made known to the Vendor as a request for information in such form
as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the Vendor’s review is made in the Vendor’s capacity as a vendor
and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise specifically provided for in the Contract Documents.

§ 5.4.3 The Vendor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable laws,
statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Vendor shall
promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Vendor as a request for
information in such form as the Architect may require.

§ 5.4.4 If the Vendor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the
Architect issues in response to the Vendor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 5.4.2 or 5.4.3,
the Vendor shall submit Claims as provided in Article 14. If the Vendor fails to perform the obligations of Sections
5.4.2 or 5.4.3, the Vendor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner, subject to Section 14.12, as would have
been avoided if the Vendor had performed such obligations. If the Vendor performs those obligations, the Vendor
shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, inconsistencies, or omissions in the
Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions and the Contract Documents, or for
nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations,
and lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 5.5 Supervision

§ 5.5.1 The Vendor shall supervise and direct the Work using the Vendor’s best skill and attention. The Vendor shall
be solely responsible for and have control over the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of
fabrication, shipment, delivery, and installation, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract,
unless the Contract Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters.

AIA Document A151~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of

Architects,” “AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was
produced by AlA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tim
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 132

User Notes: (3B9ADA4Ly



Init.

Item 12.

§ 5.5.2 The Vendor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Vendor’s employees, sub-
vendors, and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for or on
behalf of the Vendor or any of its sub-vendors.

§ 5.5.3 The Vendor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of the Work already performed to determine that
such portions are in proper condition for subsequent Work.

§ 5.6 Labor and Materials

§ 5.6.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Vendor shall provide and pay for labor, materials,
tools, installation equipment and machinery, delivery, and other facilities and services necessary for proper
execution and completion of the Work whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be
incorporated in the Work.

§ 5.6.2 The Vendor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Vendor’s employees and other persons
carrying out the Work. The Vendor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not skilled in tasks
assigned to them,

§ 5.6.3 The Vendor shall make no substitution or change in the Contract Documents unless done in accordance with
a Modification, and after providing the Architect notice and a reasonable opportunity to evaluate the proposed
substitution or change and consult with the Owner.

§ 5.7 Taxes
The Vendor shall pay sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes that are legally enacted when quotes are received
or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to go into effect.

§ 5.8 Permits, Fees, Notices, and Compliance with Laws

§ 5.8.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Vendor shall secure and pay for permits, fees,
licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work that
are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally required at the time bids are received or
negotiations concluded.

§ 5.8.2 The Vendor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules
and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work. If the Vendor
performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or
lawful orders of public authorities, the Vendor shall assume appropriate responsibility for such Work and shall bear
the costs attributable to correction.

§ 5.9 Allowances

The Vendor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. The Owner shall
select items under allowances with reasonable promptness. Allowance amounts shall include the costs to the Vendor
of items delivered at the Project premises and all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts. Vendor’s costs for
unloading and handling at the Project premises, labor, installation, overhead, profit, and other expenses
contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but not in the allowance.
Whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by
Modification. The amount of the Modification shall reflect the difference between actual costs and the allowances
under Section 2.1.4.

§ 5.10 Vendor's Schedules

§ 5.10.1 The Vendor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall submit for the Owner’s and Architect’s
information a progress schedule for the Work. The schedule shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract
Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the progress of the Work and Project, shall be
related to the entire Project, and shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work.

§5.10.2 The Vendor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedule submitted to the
Owner and Architect.

AIA Document A151~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of

Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was
produced by AIA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. e

User Notes: (3BOADA4



Init.

Item 12.

§ 5.10.3 The Vendor’s progress schedule shall indicate dates for commencement and completion of phases of the
Work within the Contract Time, including dates for order placement, fabrication, shipping, delivery, and installation.
The schedule shall indicate other critical dates, such as deadlines for approval of submittals of colors, finishes, and
materials. The Vendor shall obtain and submit for the Owner’s and the Architect’s information written confirmation
from sub-vendors of dates of fabrication and delivery.

§ 5.10.4 The Vendor shall cooperate with the Owner and Architect in coordinating the Vendor’s progress schedule
with those of contractors and separate vendors and with the requirements of the Owner and Architect. The Vendor
shall cooperate in determining mutually acceptable dates and times for delivery, installation, and inspection of the
Work, and use of services and facilities provided to the Vendor, all to be confirmed in writing within a reasonable
time in advance of such dates and times.

§ 5.11 Submittals

§ 5.11.1 The Vendor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents and submit to the Architect shop
drawings, product data, samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents in coordination with
the Vendor’s progress schedule and in such sequence as to allow the Architect reasonable time for review. By
submitting shop drawings, product data, samples, and similar submittals, the Vendor represents to the Owner and
Architect that the Vendor has (1) reviewed and approved them; (2) determined and verified materials, field
measurements, and field installation criteria related thereto, or will do so; and (3) checked and coordinated the
information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents.
The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals. Shop drawings, product data, samples and similar
submittals are not Contract Documents.

§ 5.11.2 The Vendor shall provide the Owner with available manufacturer’s warranty documents, product data, and
material safety data sheets.

§ 5.12 Cleaning Up

The Vendor shall keep the Project premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Vendor shall remove waste
materials, rubbish, the Vendor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus material from and about the
Project.

§ 5.13 Access to Work
The Vendor shall provide the Owner and Architect with reasonable access to the Work in preparation and progress
wherever located.

§ 5.14 Indemnification

§ 5.14.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Vendor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, Architect,
Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages, losses and
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work,
provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to
injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the
negligent acts or omissions of the Vendor, a sub-vendor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone
for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in
part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other
rights or obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section
5.14.1.

§ 5.14.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under Section 5.14.1 by an employee of the Vendor, a
sub-vendor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the
indemnification obligation under Section 5.14.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Vendor or sub-vendor under workers’ compensation acts, disability
benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

§ 5.14.3 Provided the Owner has fulfilled its payment obligations under the Contract Documents, the Vendor shall
defend and indemnify the Owner from all loss, liability, damage or expense, including reasonable attorney’s fees
and litigation expenses, arising out of any lien claim or other claim for payment by any sub-vendor or supplier of

AIA Document A151~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AIA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tim

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (3B9ADA4

134




Init.

Item 12.

any tier. Upon receipt of notice of a lien claim or other claim for payment, the Owner shall notify the Vendor. If
approved by the applicable court, when required, the Vendor may substitute a surety bond for the property against
which the lien or other claim for payment has been asserted.

ARTICLE 6 TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS
§ 6.1 Title to all FF&E shall be transferred to the Owner upon acceptance in accordance with Article 8.

§ 6.2 The risk of loss with respect to all FF&E provided by the Vendor shall remain with the Vendor, and the Owner
has no obligation to insure such FF&E, until acceptance in accordance with Article 8.

ARTICLE 7 DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION
§ 7.1 The Vendor shall deliver FF&E in accordance with the Vendor’s progress schedule, or at a time agreed upon
by the Owner and Architect, and in accordance with Article 5.

§ 7.2 Delivery and installation of all FF&E shall be made at the Project premises unless otherwise specified in the
Contract Documents.

§ 7.3 The Vendor shall coordinate with the Owner regarding the logistics of the Vendor’s delivery and installation
obligations at the Project premises.

ARTICLE 8 ACCEPTANCE

§ 8.1 The Owner and Architect may conduct a preliminary inspection of FF&E within seven days after its delivery to
the Project premises for the purpose of verifying the delivery and quantities. Preliminary inspections shall not
constitute acceptance of, taking charge over, or taking control of, such FF&E. The Architect shall report to the
Vendor any defects, damage, deficiencies, or nonconformity observed during the preliminary inspection.

§ 8.2 When the Vendor considers the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept separately, to be
complete, the Vendor shall notify the Owner and Architect. The Vendor shall allow the Owner and Architect a
reasonable amount of time to inspect the FF&E to determine, based on conformance with the Contract Documents,
if it is accepted or rejected in whole or in part. Based on the Architect’s recommendation to the Owner and the
Owner’s own inspection, if any, the Owner shall accept or reject the FF&E, in whole or in part.

§ 8.3 If the Owner rejects any of the FF&E, the Owner, or the Architect acting on behalf of the Owner, shall notify
the Vendor within seven days of the date of inspection, specifying the basis for such rejection. Upon rejection, the
Vendor shall provide a remedy and evidence of arrangements to accomplish such remedy. The Owner shall allow
the Vendor a reasonable amount of time to remedy the rejected FF&E. When the Vendor considers the remedied
FF&E to be complete, the parties shall follow the procedures set forth in Section 8.2. If the Owner rejects any of the
FF&E for a second time, the Owner shall promptly notify the Vendor and the Vendor shall promptly remove the
rejected FF&E from the Project premises and refund payments made for such rejected goods to the Owner. If the
Vendor disagrees with an Owner’s rejection, the Vendor may make a claim.

§ 8.4 FF&E not inspected in accordance with Section 8.2 or rejected in accordance with Section 8.3 shall be deemed
accepted.

§ 8.5 The Owner’s acceptance under this Article 8 cannot be revoked; however, the provisions of this Article 8 do
not preclude recovery of damages as provided by law. The Owner’s acceptance, or failure to discover a Vendor’s
breach after acceptance, shall not bar the Owner from making claims in accordance with Article 14 or from remedies
and damages due to the Vendor’s breach of this Agreement, including the Vendor’s breach of warranties in Article
9.

ARTICLE9 WARRANTIES

§ 9.1 The Vendor warrants to the Owner that the FF&E furnished under the Contract will be of good quality and new
unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Vendor further warrants that the FF&E will
conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. FF&E not conforming to these requirements may be
considered defective. The Vendor’s warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to
the FF&E not executed by the Vendor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear
and tear and normal usage.

AlA Document A151™ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was
produced by AlA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

135

User Notes: (3BOADA49




Init.

Item 12.

§ 9.2 The Vendor assigns to the Owner all FF&E manufacturers’ warranties and guarantees upon acceptance in
accordance with Article 8.

§ 9.3 The Vendor hereby provides to the Owner all warranties relating to the FF&E implied by law, including the
warranty of merchantability and warranty of fitness for a particular purpose.

§ 9.4 The Vendor acknowledges that no exclusion of, or limitation on, warranties contained in any proposal, product
literature, or other submittal shall affect the warranties provided in this Article 9.

ARTICLE 10 ARCHITECT

§ 10.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be
an Owner’s representative during the Vendor’s performance, and until completion, of the Work. The Architect will
have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents, unless
otherwise modified in writing in accordance with other provisions of the Contract.

§ 10.2 Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been specially
authorized, the Owner and Vendor shall endeavor to communicate with each other through the Architect about
matters arising out of or relating to the Contract. Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be
through the Architect. Communications by and with sub-vendors and suppliers shall be through the Vendor.
Communications by and with separate vendors shall be through the Owner. The Contract Documents may specify
other communication protocols.

§ 10.3 The Architect will assist the Owner in coordinating schedules for fabrication, delivery, and installation of the
Work, but will not be responsible for failure of the Vendor or a sub-vendor to meet schedules for completion or to
perform their respective duties and responsibilities in conformance with applicable schedules.

§ 10.4 The Architect will visit the Project premises at intervals appropriate to the stage of the Work, or as otherwise
agreed with the Owner, to become generally familiar with, and to keep the Owner informed about, the progress and
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed
in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents.
The Architect will not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for, the means, methods, techniques, sequences,
or procedures of fabrication, shipment, delivery, storage, or installation, or for the safety precautions and programs
in connection with the Work, as these are solely the Vendor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract
Documents.

§ 10.5 The Architect may order minor changes in the Work. The Architect’s order for minor changes shall be in
writing. If the Vendor believes that the proposed minor change in the Work will affect the Contract Sum or Contract
Time, the Vendor shall notify the Architect and shall not proceed to implement the change in the Work. If the
Vendor performs the Work set forth in the Architect’s order for a minor change without prior notice to the Architect
that such change will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Vendor waives any adjustment to the Contract
Sum or extension of the Contract Time.

§ 10.6 The Architect will conduct inspections of FF&E and provide recommendations as set forth in Article 8.
Pursuant to Article 8, the Architect is only responsible for identifying defects, deficiencies, or nonconformities that
the Architect actually observes, or reasonably should observe, during its inspections. The Architect is not required to
make exhaustive or continuous inspections to fulfill its responsibilities in Article 8 and has no responsibility to
discover latent defects.

§ 10.7 The Architect will review and approve or take other appropriate action upon the Vendor’s submittals such as
shop drawings, product data, and samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 11 RELATED ACTIVITIES OF OWNER OR OF SEPARATE VENDORS
§ 11.1 The Owner shall coordinate the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each separate vendor or
contractor, if any, with the Work.

AIA Document A151~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of

Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was
produced by AlA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tim
only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 136

User Notes: (3BSADA4~



Init.

Item 12.

§ 11.2 If the Work depends for proper execution or results upon activities by the Owner or a separate vendor or
contractor, the Vendor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly report to the Owner and
Architect apparent discrepancies or defects in, or arising from, the activities of the Owner or separate vendors or
contractors, that would impede the Vendor in achieving proper execution and results. If the Vendor fails to report
reasonably discoverable discrepancies or defects, it shall be responsible for deficiencies or defects in its Work due to
such deficiencies or defects.

§ 11.3 The Vendor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate vendor or
contractor because of the Vendor’s delays, improperly timed activities, or damage to the work of a separate vendor
or contractor. The Owner shall be responsible to the Vendor for costs the Vendor incurs because of the delays,
improperly timed activities, or damage to the Work caused by a separate vendor or contractor.

§ 11.4 If a dispute arises among the Vendor, separate vendors, or contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility
under their respective contracts for maintaining the Project premises and surrounding area free from waste materials
and rubbish, the Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible.

ARTICLE 12 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§ 12.1 Safety Precautions and Programs
The Vendor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in
connection with the performance of the Contract. The Vendor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and
shall provide reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to

A1 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;

.2 the Work, and materials and FF&E to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Project

premises, under care, custody, or control of the Vendor or sub-vendors; and
.3 other property at the Project premises or adjacent thereto.

The Vendor shall comply with, and give notices required by, applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and
regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on safety of persons and property and their protection
from damage, injury, or loss. The Vendor shall promptly remedy damage and loss to property caused in whole or in
part by the Vendor, sub-vendors, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose
acts they may be liable and for which the Vendor is responsible under Sections 12.1.2 and 12.1.3. The Vendor may
make a claim for the cost to remedy the damage or loss to the extent such damage or loss is attributable to acts or
omissions of the Owner or Architect, or of anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable
to the fault or negligence of the Vendor. The foregoing obligations of the Vendor are in addition to the Vendor’s
obligations under Section 5.14.

§ 12.2 Hazardous Materials and Substances

§12.2.1 The Vendor is responsible for compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents regarding
hazardous materials or substances. If the Vendor encounters a hazardous material or substance not addressed in the
Contract Documents, and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily injury or death
to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl
(PCB), encountered on the Project premises by the Vendor, the Vendor shall, upon recognizing the condition,
immediately stop Work in the affected area and notify the Owner and Architect of the condition. When the material
or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement of the
Owner and Vendor. By written agreement between the Owner and Vendor, the Contract Time shall be extended
appropriately, and the Contract Sum shall be increased in the amount of the Vendor’s reasonable additional costs of
shutdown, delay, and start-up.

§12.2.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Vendor, sub-
vendors, Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims,
damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from
performance of the Work in the affected area, if in fact, the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or
death as described in Section 12.2.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or
expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property
(other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss, or expense is due to the fault or negligence
of the party seeking indemnity.

AlA Document A151™ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” *AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AlA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org

User Notes: (3B9ADA49

137




Init.

Item 12.

§ 12.2.3 If, without negligence on the part of the Vendor, the Vendor is held liable by a government agency for the
cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the
Contract Documents, the Owner shall indemnify the Vendor for all cost and expense thereby incurred.

ARTICLE 13 INSURANCE

§ 13.1 The Vendor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Contract Documents (Specification
Section 002213.01 — Insurance.

(Paragraphs Deleted)

ARTICLE 14 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

§ 14.1 Binding Dispute Resolution

For any claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Section 14.6, the method of binding dispute
resolution shall be as follows:

(Check the appropriate box.)

[ ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 14.7 of this Agreement

[ X ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[ 1 Other (Specify)

If the Owner and Vendor do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, claims will be resolved in a court of competent
jurisdiction.

§ 14.2 Claims, disputes, and other matters in question arising out of or relating to this Contract, including those
alleging an error or omission by the Architect but excluding those arising under Section 12.2, shall be referred
initially to the Architect for decision. Such matters, except those waived as provided for in Section 14.12, shall, after
initial decision by the Architect or 30 days after submission of the matter to the Architect, be subject to mediation as
a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution.

§ 14.3 Notice of Claims
Claims by either the Owner or Vendor shall be initiated by notice to the other party in accordance with Section
1.11.2.

§ 14.4 Time Limits on Claims

The Owner and Vendor shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or
related to the Contract in accordance with the requirements of the final dispute resolution method selected in this
Agreement, whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty, or otherwise, within the period specified by applicable
law, but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of completion of the Work. The Owner and Vendor waive
all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 14.4,

AlA Document A151~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of

Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was
produced by AIA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-timg

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

138

User Notes: (3BSADA4L,




Init.

Item 12.

§ 14.5 If a claim, dispute, or other matter in question relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party
asserting such matter may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien procedures, including
notice or filing deadlines.

§ 14.6 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their disputes by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with their Construction
Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of this Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in
writing, delivered to the other party to this Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the
mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such
event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the
parties or court order. If an arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the
selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 14.7 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement, any
claim, subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually
agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association, in accordance with the
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of this Agreement. Demand for arbitration shall be
made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the
arbitration. The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 14.8 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either party,
at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other arbitration to
which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration permits consolidation;
(2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact; and (3) the arbitrations
employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

§ 14.9 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, any party to
an arbitration may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common question of law or fact
whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration provided that the party sought to be
joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not
constitute consent to arbitration of a Claim not described in the written Consent.

§ 14.10 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity
duly consented to by parties to this Agreement shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court
having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 14.11 Continuing Contract Performance

Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing, the Vendor shall proceed diligently with
performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

§ 1412 PARAGRAPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED

§ 14.13 Other Provisions

The City of Cedar Falls has provided specific Insurance Requirements as set forth in Specification Section
002213.01 — INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS and specific Agreement Terms as set forth in Specification Section
002213.02 — SERVICE/PRODUCT AGREEMENT. All provisions noted in these documents shall supersede any
provisions specifically noted in this AIA Document A151-2019, Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and
Vendor for Fumiture, Furnishings, and Equipment (FF&E).

AIA Document A151~ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The "American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AlA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (3B9ADA4

139




Init.

Item 12.

ARTICLE 15 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
§ 15.1 The Contract Documents are defined in Article 1 and, except for Modifications issued after execution of this
Agreement, are enumerated in the sections below.

§ 15.2 The Agreement is this executed AIA Document A151™-2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner
and Vendor for Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment.

§15.3 AIA Document E203™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit - EXCLUDED
FROM THIS CONTRACT.

§ 15.4 The Specifications:
(Either list the Specifications here or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.)

Section Title Date Pages

COMPLETE BOUND BOOK  FURNITURE FOR CEDAR FALLS 06.09.2022 106
CITY HALL REMODEL

§ 15.5 The Drawings:

(Either list the Drawings here or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.)

Number Title Date

F101 FURNITURE PLANS 06.09.2022

§ 15.6 The Addenda, if any:
Number Date Pages
None

(Paragraphs Deleted)

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER (Signature) VENﬂfDF‘ (Szgnature) = 7

Rob Green, Mayor " ,0w~ don T gwk-(e ~/ ?fes J,.V\
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

AlA Document A151™ - 2019. Copyright © 2003, 2007, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AlA software at 09:38:02 CT on 07/13/2022 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tim:

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (3BSADA

140




Item 12.

141




Init.

Item 12.

W

B ATA pocument A312™ - 2010

Bond Number: NIA4202

iz
oSS

K

)
A

Performance Bond

CONTRACTOR: SURETY:
(Name, legal status and address) (Name, legal status and principal place

Kirk Gross Company of business) _ .
4015 Alexandra Drive, P.O. Box 2007 Merchants National Bonding, INC. 115 gocument has important legal

Waterloo, lowa 50704 6700 Westown Parkway consequencles. Consultation.with
OWNER: West Des Moines, lowa 50266 f:szg‘c’t"t':‘ft;‘c’;ﬁ;,‘;ff: .
(Name, legal status and address) modification.
City of Cedar Falls, lowa Any singular reference to
220 Clay Street Contractor, Surety, Owner or
Cedar FaIIs, lowa 50613 other party shall t?e considered
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT L
Date: AlA Document A312-2010

© JUIy Sth' 2022 combines two separate bonds, a

Performance Bond and a
Payment Bond, into one form.
This is not a single combined

Furniture for Cedar Falls City Hall Remodel Performance and Payment Bond.

Amount: Three Hundred Seventy Eight Thousand Six Hundred Forty Seven & 51/100 ($378,647.51) Dollars

Description:
(Name and location)

BOND
Date: July 6th, 2022

(Not earlier than Construction Contract Date)

Amount: Three Hundred Seventy Eight Thousand Six Hundred Forty Seven & 51/100 ($378,647.51) Dollars
Modifications to this Bond: one [ See Section 16

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

C y C te Seal ! . Corporate Seal

}%ﬁf gsr,oss Company( orpordie Seal) Cl\%?éplyants National Egoﬁﬁ?%fgaﬁng?)
Signature: Signature: _\"u‘-( N \})L H(ﬁ’{
ia(;n”l?itle' S]a(;n’l?it]e' ﬂliana Bartlett, Attorney-in-Fact

(Any additional signatures appear on the last page of this Performance Bond.)

(FOR INFORMATION ONLY — Name, address and telephone)

AGENT or BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE:
AssuredPartners Great Plains, LLC ~ (A7chitect, Engineer or other party:)
4200 University Ave., Ste. 200 Jamie Castle
West Des Moines, lowa 50266 220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phi# (319) 268-5189 / Email: Jamie.Castle@CedarFalls.com
AlA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects. 061110

142




Init.

I

§ 1 The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors
and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.

§ 2 If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under

this Bond, except when applicable to participate in a conference as provided in Section 3.

§ 3 If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety’s obligation under this Bond shall arise
after

.1 the Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and the Surety that the Owner is considering declaring

a Contractor Default. Such notice shall indicate whether the Owner is requesting a conference among
the Owner, Contractor and Surety to discuss the Contractor’s performance. 1f the Owner does not
request a conference, the Surety may, within five (5) business days after receipt of the Owner’s notice,
request such a conference. If the Surety timely requests a conference, the Owner shall attend. Unless
the Owner agrees otherwise, any conference requested under this Section 3.1 shall be held within ten
(10) business days of the Surety’s receipt of the Owner’s notice. If the Owner, the Contractor and the
Surety agree, the Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract,
but such an agreement shall not waive the Owner’s right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor
Default;

.2 the Owner declares a Contractor Default, terminates the Construction Contract and notifies the Surety;
and

.3 the Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price in accordance with the terms of the
Construction Contract to the Surety or to a contractor selected to perform the Construction Contract.

§ 4 Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice requirement in Section 3.1 shall not constitute a failure
to comply with a condition precedent to the Surety’s obligations, or release the Surety from its obligations, except to
the extent the Surety demonstrates actual prejudice.

§ 5 When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Section 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety’s expense
take one of the following actions:

§ 5.1 Arrange for the Contractor, with the consent of the Owner, to perform and complete the Construction Contract;

§ 5.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or independent
contractors;

§ 5.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a contract for
performance and completion of the Construction Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the
Owner and a contractor selected with the Owner’s concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds
executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the
amount of damages as described in Section 7 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the Owner as
a result of the Contractor Default; or

§ 5.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor and with reasonable
promptness under the circumstances:
.1 After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the Owner and, as soon as
practicable after the amount is determined, make payment to the Owner; or
.2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the Owner, citing the reasons for denial.

§ 6 If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Section 5 with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to
be in default on this Bond seven days after receipt of an additional written notice from the Owner to the Surety
demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any
remedy available to the Owner. If the Surety proceeds as provided in Section 5.4, and the Owner refuses the payment
or the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any
remedy available to the Owner.

Item 12.

AlA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

143




Init.

!

Item 12.

§ 7 If the Surety elects to act under Section 5.1, 5.2 or 5.3, then the responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not
be greater than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and the responsibilities of the Owner to the
Surety shall not be greater than those of the Owner under the Construction Contract. Subject to the commitment by the
Owner to pay the Balance of the Contract Price, the Surety is obligated, without duplication, for
.1 the responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of defective work and completion of the
Construction Contract;
.2 additional legal, design professional and delay costs resulting from the Contractor’s Default, and
resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety under Section 5; and
.3 liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Construction Contract, actual
- damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor.

§ 8 If the Surety elects to act under Section 5.1, 5.3 or 5.4, the Surety’s liability is limited to the amount of this Bond.

§ 9 The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the
Construction Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such
unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than the Owner or its
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

§ 10 The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to
related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.

§ 11 Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in
the location in which the work or part of the work is located and shall be instituted within two years after a declaration
of Contractor Default or within two years after the Contractor ceased working or within two years after the Surety
refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this Paragraph
are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of
the suit shall be applicable.

§ 12 Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the page
on which their signature appears.

§ 13 When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where
the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement
shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be
deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and
not as a common law bond.

§ 14 Definitions

§ 14.1 Balance of the Contract Price. The total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction
Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to the Contractor of any amounts received
or to be received by the Owner in settlement of insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is
entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the Construction
Contract.

§ 14.2 Construction Contract. The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page,
including all Contract Documents and changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents.

§ 14.3 Contractor Default. Failure of the Contractor, which has not been remedied or waived, to perform or otherwise to
comply with a material term of the Construction Contract.

§ 14.4 Owner Default. Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required
under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the
Construction Contract.

§ 14.5 Contract Documents. All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.

§ 15 If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a Contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond
shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

AlA Document A312™ = 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

144




Init.

Item 12.

§ 16 Modifications to this bond are as follows:

(Space is provided below for additional signatures of added parties, other than those appearing on the cover page.)

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

Company: (Corporate Seal) Company: (Corporate Seal)
Signature: Signature:

Name and Title: Name and Title:

Address Address

CAUTION: You should sign an original AIA Contract Document, on which this text appears in RED. An original assures that
changes will not be obscured.

AlA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

145




Init.

@
PAIA T
= Document A312™ - 2010
Payment Bond
CONTRACTOR: SURETY:
(Name, legal status and address) (Name, legal status and principal place
Kirk Gross Company of business)

Merchants National Bonding, Inc.
4015 Alexandra Drive, P.O. Box 2097  Cronants ationalZonding, ine

Waterloo, lowa 50704

OWNER:

(Name, legal status and address)
City of Cedar Falls, lowa
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
Date: July 6th, 2022

6700 Westown Parkway
West Des Moines, lowa 50266

Amount: Three Hundred Seventy Eight Thousand Six Hundred Forty Seven & 51/100 ($378,647.51) Dollars

Description:
(Name and location)

Furniture for Cedar Falls City Hall Remodel

BOND
Date: July 6th, 2022

(Not earlier than Construction Contract Date)

Item 12.

Bond Number: NIA4202

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with
an attorney is encouraged with
respect to its completion or
modification.

Any singular reference to
Contractor, Surety, Owner or
other party shall be considered
plural where applicable.

AlA Document A312-2010
combines two separate bonds, a
Performance Bond and a
Payment Bond, into one form.
This is not a single combined
Performance and Payment Bond.

Amount:Three Hundred Seventy Eight Thousand Six Hundred Forty Seven & 51/100 ($378,647.51) Dollars

Modifications to this Bond: cme O See Section 18

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

Cor 1p31]1_y: (Corporate Seal) Company: (Corporate Seal)

Kirk Gross Company Merchantsjﬁi}\o{nal Bonding, Inc. q
Signature: Signature:. AL i G %(‘ ﬁl’(k‘(’{ﬁ
Name Name A N o

and Title: and Title: Juliana Bartlett, Attorney-in-Fact

(Any additional signatures appear on the last page of this Payment Bond.)

(FOR INFORMATION ONLY — Name, address and telephone)
AGENT or BROKER: OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE:
AssuredPartners Great Plains, LLC  (Architect, Engineer or other party:)

4200 University Ave., Ste. 200
West Des Moines, lowa 50266

Jamie Castle
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Ph# (319) 268-5189 / Email: Jamie.Castle@CedarFalls.com

AlA Document A312™ = 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

061110

146




Init.

/

Item 12.

§ 1 The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors
and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor, materials and equipment furnished for use in the performance of the
Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference, subject to the following terms.

§ 2 If the Contractor promptly makes payment of all sums due to Claimants, and defends, indemnifies and holds
harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens or suits by any person or entity seeking payment for labor, materials
or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, then the Surety and the Contractor
shall have no obligation under this Bond.

§ 3 If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety’s obligation to the Owner under this Bond
shall arise after the Owner has promptly notified the Contractor and the Surety (at the address described in Section 13)
of claims, demands, liens or suits against the Owner or the Owner’s property by any person or entity seeking payment
for labor, materials or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract and tendered
defense of such claims, demands, liens or suits to the Contractor and the Surety.

§ 4 When the Owner has satisfied the conditions in Section 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety’s expense
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner against a duly tendered claim, demand, lien or suit.

§ 5 The Surety’s obligations to a Claimant under this Bond shall arise after the following:

§ 5.1 Claimants, who do not have a direct contract with the Contractor,

.1 have furnished a written notice of non-payment to the Contractor, stating with substantial accuracy the
amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the materials were, or equipment was, furnished or
supplied or for whom the labor was done or performed, within ninety (90) days after having last
performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the Claim; and

.2 have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the address described in Section 13).

§ 5.2 Claimants, who are employed by or have a direct contract with the Contractor, have sent a Claim to the Surety (at
the address described in Section 13).

§ 6 If a notice of non-payment required by Section 5.1.1 is given by the Owner to the Contractor, that is sufficient to
satisfy a Claimant’s obligation to furnish a written notice of non-payment under Section 5.1.1.

§ 7 When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Sections 5.1 or 5.2, whichever is applicable, the Surety shall
promptly and at the Surety’s expense take the following actions:

§ 7.1 Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the Owner, within sixty (60) days after receipt of the Claim,
stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed; and

§ 7.2 Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts.

§ 7.3 The Surety’s failure to discharge its obligations under Section 7.1 or Section 7.2 shall not be deemed to
constitute a waiver of defenses the Surety or Contractor may have or acquire as to a Claim, except as to undisputed
amounts for which the Surety and Claimant have reached agreement. If, however, the Surety fails to discharge its
obligations under Section 7.1 or Section 7.2, the Surety shall indemnify the Claimant for the reasonable attorney’s
fees the Claimant incurs thereafter to recover any sums found to be due and owing to the Claimant.

§ 8 The Surety’s total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond, plus the amount of reasonable attorney’s
fees provided under Section 7.3, and the amount of this Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good faith
by the Surety.

§ 9 Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract shall be used for the performance
of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any construction performance bond. By the
Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds earned by the Contractor in the
performance of the Construction Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of the Contractor and Surety under this
Bond, subject to the Owner’s priority to use the funds for the completion of the work.

AlA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

147




Init.

/

Item 12.

§ 10 The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner, Claimants or others for obligations of the Contractor that are
unrelated to the Construction Contract. The Owner shall not be liable for the payment of any costs or expenses of any
Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligation to make payments to, or give notice on behalf
of, Claimants or otherwise have any obligations to Claimants under this Bond.

§ 11 The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to
related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.

§ 12 No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under this Bond other than in a court of competent
jurisdiction in the state in which the project that is the subject of the Construction Contract is located or after the
expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant sent a Claim to the Surety pursuant to

Section 5.1.2 or 5.2, or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone or the last materials or
equipment were furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the
provisions of this Paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a
defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.

§ 13 Notice and Claims to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown
on the page on which their signature appears. Actual receipt of notice or Claims, however accomplished, shall be
sufficient compliance as of the date received.

§ 14 When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where
the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement
shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be
deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and
not as a common law bond.

§ 15 Upon request by any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the Contractor and
Owner shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.

§ 16 Definitions
§ 16.1 Claim. A written statement by the Claimant including at a minimum:
A the name of the Claimant;
.2 the name of the person for whom the labor was done, or materials or equipment furnished,;
.3 acopy of the agreement or purchase order pursuant to which labor, materials or equipment was
furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract;
.4 abrief description of the labor, materials or equipment furnished;
.5  the date on which the Claimant last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment for use in
the performance of the Construction Contract;
.6 the total amount earned by the Claimant for labor, materials or equipment furnished as of the date of
the Claim;
.J  the total amount of previous payments received by the Claimant; and
.8 the total amount due and unpaid to the Claimant for labor, materials or equipment furnished as of the
date of the Claim.

§ 16.2 Claimant. An individual or entity having a direct contract with the Contractor or with a subcontractor of the
Contractor to furnish labor, materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Construction Contract. The term
Claimant also includes any individual or entity that has rightfully asserted a claim under an applicable mechanic’s lien
or similar statute against the real property upon which the Project is Jocated. The intent of this Bond shall be to
include without limitation in the terms “labor, materials or equipment” that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil,
gasoline, telephone service or rental equipment used in the Construction Contract, architectural and engineering
services required for performance of the work of the Contractor and the Contractor’s subcontractors, and all other
items for which a mechanic’s lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials or equipment were
furnished.

§ 16.3 Construction Contract. The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page,
including all Contract Documents and all changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents.

AlA Document A312™ = 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

148




Init.

/

Item 12.

§ 16.4 Owner Default. Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required
under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the

Construction Contract.
§ 16.5 Contract Documents. All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.

§ 17 If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a Contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond
shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

§ 18 Modifications to this bond are as follows:

(Space is provided below for additional signatures of added parties, other than those appearing on the cover page.)

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

Company: (Corporate Seal) Company: (Corporate Seal)
Signature: Signature:

Name and Title: Name and Title:

Address Address

CAUTION: You should sign an original AIA Contract Document, on which this text appears in RED. An original assures that
changes will not be obscured.

AlA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

149




Item 12.

MERCHANTS S\

BONDING COMPANY.
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know All Persons By These Presents, that MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, INC.,
both being corporations of the State of lowa (herein collectively called the “Companies”) do hereby make, constitute and appoint, individually,
Brandon Horbach; Courtney Meyer; Daniel M Molyneaux; E A von Harz; Greg T LaMair; Jeffrey R Baker; Joseph | Schmit; Juliana Bartlett; Karen S

Hartson; Laura J Adams; Lori S Burroughs; Stacey Rensberger; Stacy Paisley

their true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety(ies) and to execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, undertakings,
contracts and other written instruments in the nature thereof, on behalf of the Companies in their business of guaranteeing the fidelity of
persons, guaranteeing the performance of contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any actions
or proceedings allowed by law.

This Power-of-Attorney is granted and is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by authority of the following By-Laws adopted by the Board
of Directors of Merchants Bonding Company (Mutual) on April 23, 2011 and amended August 14, 2015 and adopted by the Board of Directors of
Merchants National Bonding, Inc., on October 16, 2015.

"The President, Secretary, Treasurer, or any Assistant Treasurer or any Assistant Secretary or any Vice President shall have power and
authority to appoint Attorneys-in-Fact, and to authorize them to execute on behalf of the Company, and attach the seal of the Company thereto,
bonds and undertakings, recognizances, contracts of indemnity and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof.”

“The signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile or electronic transmission to any Power of Attorney
or Certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or other suretyship obligations of the
Company, and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as though manually fixed."

In connection with obligations in favor of the Florida Department of Transportation only, it is agreed that the power and aut hority hereby given to the
Attorney-in-Fact includes any and all consents for the release of retained percentages and/or final estimates on engineering and construction
contracts required by the State of Florida Department of Transportation. It is fully understood that consenting to the State of Florida Department
of Transportation making payment of the final estimate to the Contractor and/or its assignee, shall not relieve this surety company of any of
its obligations under its bond.

In connection with obligations in favor of the Kentucky Department of Highways only, it is agreed that the power and authority hereby given
to the Attorney-in-Fact cannot be modified or revoked unless prior written personal notice of such intent has been given to the Commissioner-
Department of Highways of the Commonwealth of Kentucky at least thirty (30) days prior to the modification or revocation.

In Witness Whereof, the Companies have caused this instrument to be signed and sealed this 29th day of June , 2022
“..uuu.... etTTve,
SONONAL T, GG Lo,
3% aPog 0% > % ?\Pﬂé".’??'o MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL)
R _.-'(,0 4)"-.1,'. o 9 Q AN MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, INC.
= o ) AL
-l . i e e
i : = " oz
By ; Lo 1933 oy By ;
",&I" L ; * ')'._’- .-'i&'.
2 Yenisoaaed .:;?4,- . { \‘}‘.' President
STATE OF IOWA . ®agenn?®

COUNTY OF DALLAS ss.
On this 29th day of June 2022 , before me appeared Larry Taylor, to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn
did say that he is President of MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, INC.; and that the
seals affixed to the foregoing instrument are the Corporate Seals of the Companies; and that the said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf
of the Companies by authority of their respective Boards of Directors.

&73"‘5 & POLLY MASON
' Commission Number 750576 _
* My Commission Expires ? 0
January 07, 2023 %m S
otary Public

(Expiration of notary's commission does not invalidate this instrument)

I, William Warner, Jr., Secretary of MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, INC., do hereby
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the POWER-OF-ATTORNEY executed by said Companies, which is still in full
force and effect and has not been amended or revoked.

In Witness Whereof, | Have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Companies on this 6th day of July , 2022
‘.-;;% \ON .4‘2"*.., . ;.:Q\)!g. L0z,
oo SR o) o
== o = o ,%ﬁ—/ LBt LT ‘
s » 4 S=

Secretary

POA 0018 (1/20)

150




A
ACORID
———

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

KIRKG-1 Item 12.
DATE (Mdroorrrrrr—

06/22/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) musThave ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION {S WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 319-233-8459

Elliott Hartman Agency
PO Box 748

Waterloo, IA 50701
Scott L Poppens

ﬁgluEACT Scott L Poppens
TN, Exty, 319-233-8459

319-232-0645 '

(mc Noj:

| ENIAL oo, scotip@elliotthartman.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE | NAaIC#H

insurer a : United Fire & Casualty Co. 13021

INSURED };ngGross Company _INSURERB : I

X 2
Wateﬂoo,ol?t\7so7o4 SURGRES o =

INSURER D :
INSURERE : | —
INSURERF :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

s TYPE OF INSURANCE |f‘N°§D'"_5“L,-'\?§ POLICY NUMBER [Eﬂ}z‘,‘:}’fﬁj. DO LMITS I
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE. 5 1,000,000
| CLAIMS-MADE | X | OCCUR X | X 60463458 07/01/2022 | 07/01/2023 mﬁ%@é?eﬁ;ﬁ%m s 100,000

l | MED EXP (Any one parson) | § 5'000

L PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000|

| poucy | X | 5EF D Loc _PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000

| OTHER = S —_—

A | auTOMOBILE LIABILITY | EMBNED SINGLE LIMIT s 1,000,000/
X | any auTO X | X |60463458 07/01/2022 | 07/01/2023 | poDILY INJURY (Per person) s
| OWNED [ SCHEDULED

AUTOS ONLY uToS | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | S
F'ROPFRTY DAMAGE
— ,"-\‘{JRT%DS ONLY QS{‘O%%?{FQ . {Per accident) S
. 1 l s |
A | X |umereLauae | X | occur ' | EACH 0CCURRENCE o 6,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE | X 60463458 07/01/2022 | 07/01/2023 AGGREGATE s 6,000,000
| | Dep | 'RETENTION § $ |
PER OTH-

A e SRR X [Bfure | [ ]
ANY PROPRIETOR/EARTNERIEXECUTIVE || X (60463458 | 0710112022 | 0710172023 | | i sccioen 2 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUD NIA| 1,000,000
(Mandatory i NH) | | EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § it
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below | | I E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § Lttt

A |Equipment 60463458 07/01/2022 | 07/01/2023 |Leased/ 100,000

Rented

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be d if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

CEDAR-2

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613-2726

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Srfyer

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 151

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights res -




Item 12.

CEDAR-2 KIRKG-1 PAG
. HOLDER CODE
NOTEPAD: insurep's Nave  Kirk Gross Company OP ID: LAA Date  (6/22/2022

The Citi of Cedar Falls, Iowa and its elected and appointed officials, all
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers are
additional insureds for General Liability on a primary and non-
contributor¥rbasis, including completed operations when required in
written contract. Waiver of subrogation agplies in favor of the additional
insureds for General Liability, Business Auto Liability and Workers
Compensation when required in written contract. Governmental Immunity
Endorsement applies to General Liability in favor of Cit§ of Cedar Falls.
30 Day Notice of Cancellation provided to City of Cedar Falls.

152




Item 13.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

MEMORANDUM

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION . i i
IS TRATION DIVISIO! TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 . .
319-273-8629 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works
FAX 319-273-8632

OPERATIONS AND DATE: August 5, 2022

MAINTENANCE DIVISION

2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY SUBJECT: 4919 Hudson Road - Demolition
319-273-8629
FAX 319-273-8632

The Public Works Department recently received quotations for the demolition of the
buildings located at 4919 Hudson Road. This project is in conjunction with the future
Ashworth Road Extension Project(CIP # 110) from Hudson Road to Kara Way. The
below quotation includes the demolition of 6 structures and the clearing/grubbing of
trees.

Following is a summation of the quotes received,;

Lehman Trucking & Excavating $31,819
Bentons Sand & Gravel $47,777
Peterson Contractors $82,000

The quotation received from Lehman Trucking & Excavating in the amount of $31,819
was in order and the lowest bid received. The Capital Improvements Program item #110
has funding of $930,000 that began in FY22. The funding source for this project as well
as the future roadway project will be the street construction fund and capital projects
fund.

The tentative schedule for this demolition project is to have the buildings/trees cleared
prior to December 31, 2022. The roadway project would follow in the spring of 2023.

The public works department is recommending moving forward with approving a

resolution accepting the low bid from Lehman Trucking & Excavating and the execution
of the service agreement to perform such work.

Please feel free to contact me if you have questions or concerns.

153




Item 13.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SERVICE/PRODUCT AGREEMENTS

This Agreement is by and between Lehman Trucking & Excavating INC (“Contractor”) and the City of Cedar Falis, lowa
("City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below.

1.0. Contractor's Services

1.1. Contractor’s services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by
Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Scope of Services attached.

1.2, Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until
authorized in writing by the City. No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the
Contractor and the City in writing. Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively
presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such
work, has been agreed to in advance. If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall
not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.

1.3. Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby
warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services
required by this Agreement. Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the
Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement,
unless otherwise approved in writing by the City. In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced,
Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as
approved by the City.

1.4. Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in
Exhibit “A”. The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor's performance
under this Agreement.

1.5. Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any
third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to
the City. Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-parly licenses, approvals and permits for the
provision of Services, at Contractor's cost.

1.6. The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has
full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor.

2.0. Compensation

2.1. All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars. All prices must remain firm for the duration of this
Agreement.

2.2. City shall pay Contractor in accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “B". The maximum
amount of all payments for Services shall be the amount set forth in Exhibit “B", unless additional Services are agreed
upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.

2.3. Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of 2 proper invoice. The invoice shall include, at a minimum. The name and address of the Contractor, the
invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or

154




goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid. The invoice shall be mailed
or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below.

24 Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit "B".

25. If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must
provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made.

286. If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest
on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid. In addition, Contractor may, after giving seven (7) days
written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full.

27. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for
faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other ctaims against any Services, including products.

3.0. Taxes.

3.1. The City is exempt from all federal, State of lowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and
services used by the City within the State of lowa. The City shall provide tax exemption certification as required.

3.2. Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.

4.0. Ownership and Use of Documents

41. All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation
(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the
Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual
property rights. To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title
and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights. Upon the
City's request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership
rights.

42. Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and
other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services.

4.3. Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also
known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or
of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor. Any
conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk.

4.4. During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor
and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in
providing Services under this Agreement. The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such
information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5)
years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this
Agreement, whichever date is latest. No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or
inspection by the City or designee.

5.0. Term and Termination.

5.1. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date and end on December 31, 2022 unless
earlier terminated under the terms of this Agreement.

5.2 The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the
Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days
before the effective date of termination. In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials

Item 13.

155




prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property. If the Agreement
is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized,
approved and provided up to the effective date of termination. The City will not be subject to any termination fees
from the Contractor.

5.3. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the
other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party
initiating the termination.

6.0. Warranties.

6.1. Contractor represents and warrants that Services shali be performed in a manner consistent with the
standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.

6.2. Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each
component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall
meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services. If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by
the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15
days after notification by the City, at Contractor's expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete
satisfaction of the City.

6.3. Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all
Services under this Agreement. Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary
as a result of Contractor's acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor's Services.

6.4. Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor's
acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or
remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions.

6.5. Contractor's obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the
availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor. None of the provisions of this
Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City's right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of
Contractor’s fault or breach.

7.0. Warranties — Intellectual Property.

71. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon
any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or
entity.

7.2. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City’s use of the same, and the exercise by the
City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity.

7.3. Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the
Services contemplated by this Agreement.

8.0. Disputes.

8.1. Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such
dispute. Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes.

8.2. Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out
ali of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make
payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement. Should the Contractor fail to

Item 13.

156




continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs
incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor.

8.3. Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in
mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party. The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties
except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with
mediation. The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute.

9.0. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

9.1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor (for purposes of this Section 9.0, includes employees,
subcontractors, agents and others working on behalf of Contractor under this Agreement) agrees to defend (for all
non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City (for purposes of this Section 9.0 includes elected and
appointed officials, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City) against any and all claims, demands, suits
or loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages, which may be asserted,
claimed or recovered against or from the City, including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason of personal
injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage, which arises out of or is in any way connected or
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City under this Agreement, to the extent
caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the Contractor.

9.2 Contractor's duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor's breach
or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this
Agreement. Such duty also includes damage, loss or injury to the City or City property.

9.3. Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for loss, expense, damages or injuries which may result to
the Contractor by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by Contractor under this
Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the
Contractor.

94, It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any
member of the public third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to maintain a
suit for personal injuries or property damage.

10.0. Insurance.

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit "C"
unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section.

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance.

11.0. Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

11.1. Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal,
state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations and shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its
employees, agents, subcontractors and others working on behalf of the Contractor under this Agreement do the
same.

11.2. Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under
applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (*SDS”) with the initial shipment of such
chemicals. Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its
delivery may be refused. It is also the Contractor's responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS
as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City.

Item 13.

157




12.0. Independent Contractor.

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents,
employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another. The employees or agents of one party shall not be
deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever.

13.0. Non-Collusion.

13.1. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or
procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in
connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement.

13.2. Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied,
contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in
such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.

13.3. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered
into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free
competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement.

14.0. Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity.

14.1. Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex,
color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity,
genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law, except where
age or sex is an essential bona fide occupational requirement, or where disability is a bona fide occupational
disqualification.

14.2. Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with
the same.

15.0. No Conflict of Interest

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this
Agreement that is a conflict of interest under lowa law. No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall
participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.
Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of
Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any
excess costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums yet
due to Contractor.

16.0. Force Majeure.

16.1. Force majeure shall be any of the following events: acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any
order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as
such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or
labor disputes; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or referred to in this
Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected. A delay in or failure of performance by
either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any claim for damages, if
and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure.

16.2. The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to
exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other
party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy
such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties.

Item 13.

158




16.3. If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this
Agreement may be terminated by either party.

17.0. Assighment.

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the
City. The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor's assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if
approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be
bound by the terms of this Agreement.

18.0. Governing Law.

18.1. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
lowa, regardless of choice of law principles.

18.2. Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, lowa.

19.0. Discrepancy.

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or
quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor's bid or quote is incorporated into this
Agreement.

20.0 Public Record.

20.1.  This Agreement as well as Contractor's bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote
shall become public documents subject to lowa Code Chapter 22, the lowa Open Records Law. By submitting the
bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this
and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on
behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted.

20.2. Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and
agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or
information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process.

20.3. Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any
submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information. Should the submitting party wish to
designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked. The City shall make no determination as
to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under lowa Code Chapter 22. Rather, the City shall
endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for
asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order. As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify
the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City's elected and appointed officers, the City's
employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such
disclosure, whether such disciosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or
occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.

21.0. Debarment.

21.1. Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
Agreement by any federal agency.

21.2. Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of lowa.

Item 13.

159




22.0 Confidentiality of Shared Information.

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed
confidential untess clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing. If
designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary
for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating
party, or as required by law, or by an order of a court or administrative agency. In the event of a dispute over the
confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information
until the issue of confidentiality is resolved. The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive
the termination of this Agreement.

23.0. Entire Agreement.

231. This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the
entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no
representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall
be of any force or effect.

23.2. No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing
and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced.

24.0. Additional Terms.

25.0. Notices.

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or
provided to:

City: Contractor:

Name: Name: Jacob Lehman
Title: Title:  President

Address: Address: 1422 Ashland Ave

Waterloo, 1A 50703

Telephone: Telephone; _ 319-415-2590

Email: Email: lehmante@hotmail.com

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the |ast date listed
below.

Item 13.

160




CONTRACTOR: Lehman Trucking & Excavating INC

(name of company or contractor)

By: Jacob Lehman Q@&é ZW
4

Its: President

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

By:

Robert M. Green, Mayor

Attest:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Date:

8/6/22

Item 13.

Date:

161




Item 13.

Exhibit A: Scope of Services

Demolition of Building Structures

The property at 4919 Hudson Road has a portion of property located in temporary
easement as show on the attachment. The property legal description is:
UNPLATTED CEDAR FALLS A PART OF NW 1/4 SEC 26 T 89 R 14 DES AS FOL
BEG AT A PT ON E LINE SAID NW 1/4 WHICH IS 725.2 FT N OF SE COR SAID NW
174 THW 215 FT TH N 40 FT TH W 435 FT TH N 205 FT TH E 650 FT TO E LINE
SAID NW 1/4 TH S 245 FT TO PT OF BEG E XC H. (see page 44 for property details)

The City’s contact person(s) for this project is Chase Schrage at 319-268-5170.

The contractor shall meet all insurance requirements outlined in Exhibit C.
Public sidewalk will not be removed with this project.

The property has been tested for asbestos containing material. All properties containing
asbestos will have asbestos abated prior to releasing the written Notice to Proceed.

Work shall include the removal of all wood, concrete and partial silo, rubble, building
structures, clearing and grubbing of 60’ City right-of-way.

All trees located within the property purchased by the City(60’)trees and stumps shall be
removed. The trees and vegetation can be hauled to the City compost facility for
disposal at no cost to contractor. This area can also be seen on the attachment. No
trees shall be removed outside of the City ROW within the temporary easement
areas unless agreed upon by the City in advance.

Plugging and/or removals of any wells or septic systems shall be in accordance with all
state, federal, and local laws.

Any foundations removed shall be filled with backfill material and compacted.

All work shall begin no sooner than September 1, 2022 and be completed no later than
December 30, 2022. All permitting for such work will be the responsibility of the
contractor.

All work shall be completed within the City property or temporary easement area as
shown. Work outside of these areas will be at the sole risk and liability of the contractor.
Property boundaries will be staked prior to the commencement of work.

All debris shall be disposed of at the Black Hawk County Landfill at the contractors
expense. The Generator, Contractor, Transporter, and/or any other party associated
with the demolition and contents of said properties shall be listed on the Waste
Shipment Record and delivery of said property contents to the landfill for disposal shall
comply with all applicable Local, State, Federal, Department of Transportation (State
and Federal), and Black Hawk County Landfill rules, regulations, and laws. Questions

1

162




Structure #2-4: Outbuildings

Item 13.

163




Item 13.

- B g
R i sy,
v

2o
i

o

6
"'T":‘.

[ extting Parcets
Propsed Road
Temporary Construction Eassment

City ROW

To be demolished

164




Exhibit B: Payment Terms

Item 13.

Structure Demo Price
Structure #1 - House $12,624.00
Structure #2 - Garage $950.00
Structure #3 - Outbuilding $3,110.00
Structure #4 - Barn $6,635.00
Structure #6 - Partial Silo $1,000.00
Clearing and Grubbing (0.6 Acres) $7,500.00
$31,819

Total:

*See Map in Exhibit A for structure photos

165




Firefox

1of1

about:blank

Item 13.

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

ORD’
ACOR CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lleu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER WAME: ' Paige Shanks L -
PRCM Insurance PONE  Ex; 319-234-8888 | A% Noy 319-234-7702
Waterloo IA 50704 Eﬁp’“"‘gﬁ'gss: pshanks@pdem.com
) INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE L NAICY
= . S R | Nsurer A : West Bend Mutual Insurance Co. 15350
INSURED LEHMTRU-01 B
Lehman Trucking & Excavating, Inc. HHSURER B — —
1422 Ashland Avenue JNSURERC: : | i
Waterloo IA 50703 INSURERD: ; —
| INSURERE : i ——
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1497255415 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$25,000 Equipment Borrowed, Leased, or Rented from Others with West Bend Mutual Insurance, Policy # 0988676. )

If required in a written contract, The City of Cedar Falls, including all its slected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all ifs boards,
commissions andfor authorities and their board members, employess and volunteers are additional insureds on a primary & non-confributory basis for ongoing
and completed OPeralions under the General Liability policy. A waiver of subrogation apfplies in favor of City of Cedar Falls, lows, ils elected and appointed
officials, its directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falis, lowa under the Gensral Liability policy if required in a
written contract. Governmental immunities endorsement is included under the General Liability policy. The carrier will endeavor to provide 30 day notice of
cancellation for The City of Cedar Falls.

INSR DE A INC IR AN L ADDL[SUBR] ) [ POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP |
LiR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER -|uE@n‘r}$w; ﬁ.‘r‘n%mwpl umiTs
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Y | Y | 0988676 | 5022 8772023 | EACH OCCURRENCE | s 1.000 000
T X [ |DAWAGETORENTED — | __ =
| cLAIMS-MADE | X | oCCUR | | | PREMISES (Ea nccurrencs) | § 300,000 |
_ S | MED EXP (Any one persam)_| $ 10,000 e
| - | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1.000000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: | | GENERAL AGGREGATE | §2,000.000
| poucy | X | BRS J Loc | | PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $2.000.000
| OTHER | | s
A | AuTOMOBILE LIABILITY . 0988676 [ 702 87772023 :%‘;”affulEeEus"’“LE M T's 1 000,000
X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALLOWNED | | SCHEDULED B
AT e AR e PROPERTY DARKGE e
| X | wRep autos | X | AuTos | Peracciceny |S
| 5
A | X | uMBRELLA LIAB X | occur 0988676 712022 572023 | EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000.000
EXCESS LIAB || CLAMS-MADE _ | AGGREGATE | s 4.000.000
| pep | X | RETENTIONS o | | | s
A |WORKERS COMPENSATION 0988677 57202 | 572023 | X | BeRpire orn
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ' S STAIVIE | _ER S ——
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E L EACH ACCIDENT | 5 500,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? N/Al e ey
{Mandatory in NH) { E L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE, § 500,000
If yes, describe under I__" — i — 1 T
| DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below | EL DISEASE - PoLiCY LMIT | s 500.000
|
| i | |
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Schedule, may be if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay St

Cedar aIlslA 50613 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

P e

l

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

166

8/2/2022, 4:47 PM



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-268-5161
Fax: 319-268-5197
www.cedarfalls.com

O 2R RENE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Item 14.

MEMORANDUM

Luke Andreasen, PE

August 15, 2022

Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council

Main Street Reconstruction (6™ St. to University)

City Project Number: RC-000-3283
Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements

Engineering Division

The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6™ Street to
University Avenue from a 4 lane roadway to a 3 lane roadway. Included in the project
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18™ Street, 12" Street, and potentially 61
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous
roadway items. The project will require the acquisition of temporary easements from
one-hundred twenty-nine (129) properties to complete construction. The owners of the
following fifty-eight (58) properties have accepted our offer:

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type
14 Harding Enterprises, L.C. 110 E. Seerley Blvd Temporary Easement
15 Seven D, L.L.C. 2300, 2310, & Temporary Easement

2214 Main St.
16 Twin Card Holdings, L.L.C. 2120 Main St. Temporary Easement
22 Twin Card Holdings, L.L.C. 2120 Main St. Temporary Easement
31 Gregory and Vicki Angove Trust 891413402017 Temporary Easement
39 &40 | DJS Properties, L.L.C. (Contract 1934 Main St. Temporary Easement

Seller);

Titan Property Investments

(Contract Buyer)
43 JD & DD Properties, L.L.C. 1904 Main St. Temporary Easement
44 JD & DD Properties, L.L.C. 1820 Main St. Temporary Easement
50 CVVC Properties, L.L.C. 1703 State St. Temporary Easement
51 TRP Properties, L.L.C. 118 & 120 E. 18™ St. Temporary Easement
54 Judy L. Crew 1624 Main St. Temporary Easement
55 Christopherson Rentals, L.L.C. 1616 Main St. Temporary Easement
56 Tim Averill 1612 Main St. Temporary Easement
57 Christopher M